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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS SNAPSHOT: LADBROKES TV ADVERTISING CAMPAIGN, OCTOBER 2007

GLOSSARY

AWPs or Amusement with Prizes
Electronic slot machines into which customers insert coins to play games of chance.
Betting-in-Play
Betting-in-Play allows bettors the opportunity to bet on outcomes during
a live event.
Cost per Acquisition
Total of all online and offline marketing spend (including promotions and bonuses
netted from revenue), all affiliate expenses relating to deals where affiliates are paid
a one-off fee for each sign-up and all bonus costs (except those relating to sign-ups
from revenue share affiliates) divided by the aggregate of the number of real money
sign-ups from non-affiliate sources and the number of real money sign-ups through
affiliates that are paid a one-off fee.

Player Points
Customers can accumulate player points by playing raked hands on
Ladbrokespoker.com. Accumulating enough player points allows a customer
to enter tournaments for free and also entitles them to cashback bonuses.
Rake
Scaled commission fee charged by Ladbrokes for each hand of Poker,
i.e. a percentage taken from the pot after each betting round.
Real Money Sign-up
A new player who has registered and deposited funds into an account with the
Company. Customers are categorised between lines of business according to where
they first register on the gaming site to address the issues posed by shared wallets.

Electronic Point of Sale (EPOS)
Device which enables an efficient recording of the sale of goods or services to
the customer.

SIS (Satellite Information Services)
Ladbrokes owns 23.4 per cent of SIS, a leading supplier of television programming
and sports data to licensed betting offices in the UK, Ireland, Isle of Man and
Channel Islands.

FOBTs or Fixed Odds Betting Terminals
Computerised machines which allow players to bet on the outcome of various
games and events with fixed odds, including roulette.

Total Betting Service
Allows the customer to use the same account online, over the phone, on digital TV,
using WAP, or in any of our Ladbrokes shops nationwide.

Gambling Commission
Set up under the Gambling Act 2005, the Gambling Commission regulates casinos,
bingo, gaming machines and lotteries. It is also responsible for the regulation
of betting and remote gambling, as well as helping to protect children and
vulnerable people.

Unique Active Player
A player who has contributed to rake and/or placed a wager in the period.

Gaming Machines
Betting shops can operate machines with B2 content (including old FOBT
content) and B3 content (e.g. £500 payout jackpot games), as defined by the
2005 Gambling Act.

Virtual Call Centre
Allows Ladbrokes to operate two separate telephone call centres as one.
Calls overflow between the two sites to the next available agent, thus providing
a more efficient service to our customers.

Gross Win
Total customer stakes less customer winnings plus commission i.e. the amount
of money left behind by the customer.
Monthly Active Player Days
The sum of, for all Unique Active Players in the period, the number of days they have
played during the period.
Net Revenue
Gross win less fair value adjustments (e.g. free bets and promotional bonuses),
VAT and associate income.

Ladbrokes became the first UK bookmaker to advertise
sportsbetting on TV in October 2007. We are encouraged
by the positive response, particularly as we begin to refresh
the brand to appeal to existing, as well as to new, customer
groups. We expect to launch further campaigns, particularly
in support of our online casino business.
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS AT A GLANCE

A
WINNING
FORMATION
WE REMAIN FOCUSED ON GROWTH WITHIN
OUR ESTABLISHED RETAIL AND eGAMING
BUSINESSES, IN ADDITION TO MOVING OUR
BRAND OVERSEAS AS OTHER COUNTRIES
REGULATE BETTING AND GAMING ACTIVITIES.
WE WILL CONTINUE TO PURSUE OPPORTUNITIES
WHICH WE BELIEVE WILL CREATE
VALUE FOR SHAREHOLDERS.
Ladbrokes plc is one of the
world’s leading betting and
gaming companies.
At 31 December 2007, we
continue to have the largest retail
estate of betting shops in the
world with 2,640 shops in the
UK, Ireland, Belgium and Italy.
Our eGaming division has
customers in 230 countries
and operates in 12 currencies
and 17 languages.
Ladbrokes operates one
of Europe’s biggest telephone
betting businesses with over

2 Annual Report and Accounts 2007

15,000
EMPLOYEES ARE KEY TO
LADBROKES’ SUCCESS
AND HAVE ENABLED THE
COMPANY TO BUILD ON
ITS 122-YEAR HERITAGE.

110,000 active customers
served by call centres in London,
Liverpool and Kuala Lumpur.
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INTERNATIONAL
FORM GUIDE
Ladbrokes has 2,133 shops in the
UK at 31 December 2007. Ladbrokes
also operates two greyhound stadia
at Crayford and Monmore, 44 instadia betting operations at most
English and Scottish Premiership
clubs, and has outlets at a number
of leading racecourses.
We have the largest betting shop
estate in the Republic of Ireland
with 199 shops.
In addition, Ladbrokes has 16 shops
in Northern Ireland at the year end.
Our Belgian retail estate (274 shops)
is the largest betting shop estate
in the country and continues
to perform steadily in a highly
competitive marketplace.
During 2007, 17 betting shops
were acquired in Italy and 4 new
Bersani licence shops and corners
opened. Ladbrokes.it launched
in November 2007.

THE LADBROKES
STABLE

1 Ladbrokes Retail Ladbrokes shops
incorporate the latest in betting shop design
and technology, creating a state of the art
experience for betting shop customers,
with a distinct product offering.

2 Ladbrokes.com Ladbrokes.com is one
of the world’s leading betting and gaming
websites with over 600,000 active customers
betting in 17 languages and 12 currencies.
The Ladbrokes.com online Sportsbook
offers a comprehensive range of odds
on sportsbetting. Ladbrokes.com’s
online gaming services, which include
Ladbrokescasino.com, Ladbrokespoker.com
and Ladbrokesgames.com, are operated
from our Gibraltar office.

3 Telephone Betting Our Telephone Betting
business has call centres in London, Liverpool
and Kuala Lumpur, which are open 24 hours
a day, seven days a week.

Ladbrokes’ Hong Kong based
partnership is developing a new
product for the Chinese market.
In addition to opportunities at
a local level, we already have an
established international online
business with our portfolio of
eGaming products and services.
Today, the award-winning
Ladbrokes.com attracts nearly
0.6 million active customers
in over 230 countries.

4 International developments
Ladbrokes’ market leading position in the
UK has enabled us to explore overseas
growth opportunities.

5 Ladbrokes Casino Ladbrokes owns
the Ladbrokes Casino and Sports Bar
at the Paddington Hilton.
Annual Report and Accounts 2007 3
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THE YEAR
IN FIGURES
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£420

m

Operating profit(1) from
continuing operations increased
by 60.2 per cent to £420.0 million
(2006: £262.2 million).

£241

m

Operating profit (1) from continuing
operations and excluding
High Rollers decreased by
4.4 per cent to £241.0 million
(2006: £252.0 million).

6.0

%

Total gross win increased by
29.9 per cent to £1,286.4 million
(2006: £990.3 million). Total gross
win from continuing operations
and excluding High Rollers grew
by 6.0 per cent to £1,036.8 million
(2006: £978.1 million).

£917

m

Net debt of £917.0 million with
cash generated by operations
of £421.1 million.

15.6
9.05
19.9

%

Effective tax rate(2) of 15.6 per cent.

p

Final dividend of 9.05 pence
per share (up 5.2 per cent).

m

During 2007, 19.9 million shares
were purchased through Ladbrokes’
share buyback programme.
The buyback programme has
continued into 2008, with a further
10.3 million shares purchased.

£46

m

Profit on disposal of
Vernons of £46.0 million

Profit before tax, finance costs and nontrading items.
Before non-trading items for continuing
operations.

(1)

(2)
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

LADBROKES HAS
ACHIEVED RECORD
PROFITABILITY
FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS OF
£420.0 MILLION.
SIR IAN ROBINSON
CHAIRMAN

6 Annual Report and Accounts 2007
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adbrokes has achieved record
profitability(1) from continuing operations
of £420.0 million, benefiting from a
buoyant performance from Telephone
High Rollers.
It is disappointing to note that Ladbrokes’ share
price, along with the whole sector and many
consumer facing businesses, saw a weak close
around the year end.
As expected, 2007 has been a year of
significant change in the UK betting and gaming
sector, not least due to the inception of the 2005
Gambling Act from 1 September. As part of this
new legislation, we welcome the introduction of
the Gambling Commission, with whom we will
continue to work closely going forward.
Our focus remains on long-term, value creation
across all parts of the Ladbrokes business:
Our betting shops are well invested and have
already incorporated many of the changes now
allowed under the new Gambling Act and we
continue to implement initiatives to improve the
quality of our Retail business;
In eGaming, we will increase marketing
investment levels in 2008, to accelerate the new
customer acquisition rate;
International expansion has seen the launch
of our Italian business and our preparations in the
Madrid region are gathering pace. We continue to
pursue betting and gaming opportunities
in Asia.
Further details on the above developments
can be found in the Business Review sections on
pages 10 to 27.
The graph below shows our total shareholder
return since 2004. The betting and gaming sector
and virtually all consumer facing businesses came
under pressure as the year progressed, amidst
significant market volatility. Ladbrokes’ core
objective continues to be the creation of value
for our shareholders, through long-term growth
across the business.

L
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As an industry leader in betting and gaming,
we continue to focus on ensuring that the
appropriate steps are taken to achieve commercial
success with social responsibility.
In addition to benchmarking ourselves in indices
such as FTSE4Good and the Dow Jones
Sustainability Indexes, we support the Association
of British Bookmakers (ABB) and the Remote
Gambling Association (RGA) in establishing
industry-wide social responsibility standards.
Overview of results
Gross win of £1,286.4 million increased by
29.9 per cent, including a strong performance in
the Telephone High Rollers’ business.
Operating costs of £682.7 million increased by
17.4 per cent, due to winter evening opening costs
in UK Retail, a larger estate in Ireland, International
development costs and costs associated with
High Rollers.
Operating profit(1) for continuing operations was
£420.0 million (2006: £262.2 million).
The Board
The Board welcomed the return of Brian Wallace in
March, who replaced Rosemary Thorne as Group

AS AN INDUSTRY LEADER
IN BETTING AND GAMING,
WE CONTINUE TO FOCUS
ON ENSURING THAT THE
APPROPRIATE STEPS
ARE TAKEN TO ACHIEVE
COMMERCIAL SUCCESS
WITH SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY.

Finance Director. Nicholas Jones was appointed
senior independent non-executive director following
Pat Lupo’s departure from the Board during May
and Christopher Rodrigues was appointed chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.
Outlook
The Board is mindful of general concerns about
the state of the UK economy but is pleased to report
that, following a strong finish in 2007, Ladbrokes
has made a positive start to the year with gross
win and operating profit ahead of last year in each
of European Retail, eGaming and Telephone
Betting. We are encouraged by the positive
response to the initiatives which have been
implemented in the UK Retail estate, whilst the
Telephone High Rollers have maintained their
momentum from last year, with operating profit
from Telephone High Rollers of £36 million in
the seven week period to 18 February 2008.
Total gross win excluding Telephone High Rollers
for the same period increased by 16 per cent.
In eGaming, we are intent on maximising
our brand and technology advantage in our key
online markets and consequently, we are
increasing the investment levels in 2008 to
accelerate the new customer acquisition rate.
We expect to maintain eGaming profitability levels
in 2008, but with an objective to reach profitability
of £80 million to £90 million in 2010.
Dividend
The Board has recommended a final dividend
of 9.05 pence per share, representing an
increase of 5.2 per cent, payable on 2 June 2008
to shareholders on the register on 7 March 2008.
This final dividend, together with the interim
dividend of 4.85 pence, gives a total dividend of
13.90 pence.
Sir Ian Robinson Chairman
28 February 2008

LADBROKES’ TOTAL
SHAREHOLDER RETURN
(TSR) PERFORMANCE
AGAINST KEY INDICES

TSR
(%)
2.50
Ladbrokes
FTSE All Share
FTSE100
2.00

1.50

0

-0.5
2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

(1)

Profit before tax, finance costs and non-trading items.
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT

WE HAVE CONTINUED
TO BUILD ON STRONG
FOUNDATIONS AND OUR
HERITAGE DURING 2007
AND WE LOOK FORWARD
TO ANOTHER YEAR
OF ENDEAVOUR AND
PREPARATION, AS WE
DEVELOP OUR BUSINESS
FOR 2008 AND BEYOND.
CHRISTOPHER BELL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

8 Annual Report and Accounts 2007
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strong performance from our Telephone
Betting business has helped to drive
Ladbrokes’ highest ever profit (1) of
£420.0 million in 2007. Our established
European shop businesses produced
solid overall performances against tough
comparatives and eGaming again saw double
digit growth, following the acquisition of Sponsio
in January 2007. International development plans
are primarily focused on the establishment of new
businesses in Italy and Spain and opportunities in
China and Vietnam.
Total gross win in European Retail increased
by 5.3 per cent, including growth of 3.3 per cent
in UK Retail and 26.4 per cent in Ireland.
Over the Counter (OTC) gross win comparatives
were tough in the UK, with a football World Cup
in 2006 and the start of the 2007 domestic football
season having seen the worst run of results in six
years. Additionally, 2007 experienced the wettest
July since 1766, with abnormally high horse and
greyhound racing cancellations. Overall OTC gross
win declined by 3.8 per cent.
By October 2007, our 8,190 machines were
completely renewed with the latest dual screen
Laras, which have proved very popular with our
customers. The improved reliability has also
significantly reduced machine downtime and
machine gross win increased by 21.0 per cent.
Following the introduction of the Gambling Act in
September, our machines now feature £500
payout jackpots, Blackjack and Poker. In the last
quarter of 2007, with the benefit of these machine
developments and winter evening opening, UK
Retail gross win increased by 10.6 per cent, with
OTC and gaming machine gross win up by
1.2 per cent and 33.6 per cent respectively.
Ladbrokes became the first bookmaker to
advertise sports betting on TV in October 2007.
We are encouraged by the customer response to
the campaign which achieved a positive impact on
customer’s perceptions of brand values and their
choice of brand. We will be launching further
advertising campaigns during 2008, with the first
two campaigns, supporting our online bingo and
casino products, planned to commence in March
and April respectively.
A strong emphasis remains on cost control in
2008, with good progress made in 2007, when
costs increased by 7.9 per cent, much less than
the budgeted amount. Key initiatives in 2008
include the introduction of a new staff scheduling
system and rationalisation of certain areas of
service provision. In order to ensure that our
customers can continue to watch all live horse
racing in our UK and Irish shops we concluded a
five year supply contract with Turf TV on 1 January
2008, at significant incremental cost. Excluding Turf
TV, 2008 UK Retail cost growth is projected to be
less than in 2007.
During 2007, we relocated, refurbished and
extended 103 shops, bringing the total to
1,089 over the past five years, representing
approximately half of the UK estate. We also
opened 22 new licences and closed 30 shops.
Following the acquisition on 6 February 2008
of the Eastwood chain of 54 shops in Northern
Ireland for £117.5 million, we are now the market
leaders in Ireland with 271 shops. The Irish
business performed well in 2007, growing
operating profit by 43.6 per cent.
We have continued to invest in our Italian
business following re-regulation of the betting and
gaming environment in 2006 through the Bersani
decree. We now have 26 shops and seven
Bersani corner licences, which are trading in line
with our expectations. In the short term, our Italian
management team remains focused on the

A

‘
LADBROKES BECAME
THE FIRST BOOKMAKER
TO ADVERTISE BETTING
ON SPORT ON TV IN
OCTOBER 2007.

(1)

Profit before tax, finance costs
and non-trading items, for
continuing operations.
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challenging exercise of identifying and opening
suitable premises for our Bersani licences and in
making further shop acquisitions. Ladbrokes’ Italian
language website began trading in November.
eGaming showed good profit growth for the
seventh consecutive year, driven by growth in
Sportsbook, Games and Casino products, with
Sportsbook in particular delivering a buoyant
performance. The competitive landscape remains
tough for Poker with high customer acquisition
costs and margins squeezed by rakeback
and other promotional offers. Unique active
players across our range of products increased
9.4 per cent to 601,000. The acquisition of
Sponsio, our Nordic marketing partner in January
2007 helped us to increase our profit conversion
from 33.0 per cent of net gaming revenue in 2006
to 38.3 per cent in 2007.
Our objective for eGaming remains the
achievement of continued profit growth through
product innovation and market development,
whilst respecting jurisdictional barriers. Moving
forward, we intend to increase our investment
levels in customer acquisition which will maintain
profitability levels in the short term but drive profit
growth in future years.
Our Telephone Betting business increased
its profits from £17.3 million to £183.6 million, as
we saw increased activity from our High Rollers
for much of the year, which contributed significantly
to cash flow and profits.
Preparations continue in Spain, where we
expect to be awarded an operating licence in the
Madrid region in the near future. Our Sportium
business, a Joint Venture between Ladbrokes and
Cirsa Slot, has over 60 outlets which will be ready
to begin trading in the months following the award.
We await further de-regulation in other regions
during 2008.
Ladbrokes continues to explore opportunities
in Asia, particularly in Vietnam and China.
September 2007 saw the implementation of
the 2005 UK Gambling Act and following
comprehensive preparation, our UK shops have
already incorporated many of the changes allowed
under the new legislation.
On 20 February 2008, the Minister of State at
DCMS announced his determination of the Levy
(the amount payable by UK bookmakers to
horseracing via the Horserace Betting Levy Board).
His decision was to leave the rate at 10 per cent
of UK horseracing gross win. However, he has also
called for discussions to take place between the
racing and betting industries to find a replacement
for the outdated horserace betting levy. With British
racing now generating significant income from
commercial sources outside of the levy, including
horseracing media rights, Ladbrokes agrees that
the time has come to replace the current system
of statutory subsidies.
Following an internal review and as previously
reported, the decision was taken not to pursue any
of the new 16 casinos which may be allowed under
the 2005 Gambling Act, as returns could not be
expected prior to 2012.
In August 2007, the Board announced the
start of a share buyback programme and it is
intended that, over time, it will repurchase shares
in order to move towards its stated target net debt
to EBITDA range of 3.5 to 3.75 times (excluding
Telephone High Rollers), whilst continuing to invest
in growth opportunities. At the year end,
19.9 million shares had been bought back under
this programme.
Christopher Bell Chief Executive
28 February 2008
Annual Report and Accounts 2007 9
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS BUSINESS REVIEW: EUROPEAN RETAIL

THE
EUROPEAN
SHOP
WINDOW
BUSINESS REVIEW: EUROPEAN RETAIL
LADBROKES UK SHOP ESTATE HAS SEEN
A NUMBER OF IMPORTANT CHANGES FOLLOWING
THE 2005 GAMBLING ACT AND ITS 8,190
GAMING MACHINES WERE RENEWED IN 2007.
FOCUS REMAINS ON ENSURING THAT LADBROKES’
BRAND IS SYNONYMOUS WITH A HIGH QUALITY
OF SERVICE AND PRODUCT FOR OUR CUSTOMERS
AND THAT OUR SHOPS ARE THE BEST LOCATED
ON THE HIGH STREET.

10 Annual Report and Accounts 2007
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS BUSINESS REVIEW: EUROPEAN RETAIL

EUROPEAN
RETAIL
TOTAL GROSS WIN INCREASED BY 5.3 PER CENT
TO £842.4 MILLION (2006: £799.8 MILLION) WITH
OPERATING PROFIT(1) DECREASING BY 3.4 PER CENT
TO £209.5 MILLION (2006: £216.8 MILLION).
EUROPEAN RETAIL UK
Total gross win increased by 3.3 per cent
to £739.3 million (2006: £715.8 million). Whilst
2007 saw challenging comparatives, which
included a football World Cup in 2006, high
levels of lost racing and periods of difficult
sports margins, the gaming machine estate
performed well and winter evening opening,
which commenced for the first time on
1 September 2007, showed encouraging
early signs.
Total gross win in the first half increased by
1.1 per cent, whilst the second half delivered
an increase of 5.6 per cent in total gross win,
with a strong performance in the last two
months of 2007. Following the introduction of
the Gambling Act on 1 September, total gross
win in the last four months of 2007 showed
11.1 per cent growth, with an increase of
1.6 per cent and 31.8 per cent in OTC and
gaming machine gross win respectively.
The initial response to Ladbrokes’ first TV
advertising campaign for betting was positive
and the experience is proving valuable in
developing plans for 2008.
On a like for like shop basis (excluding
acquisitions and new licences and closed
shops but including extended opening hours),
total gross win showed an increase of
2.9 per cent.
OTC gross win decreased by 3.8 per cent to
£490.9 million (2006: £510.5 million), reflecting
some substitution following the renewal of our
gaming machine estate and a decline of
9.4 per cent in horse racing amounts staked,
whilst football saw an increase of 25.4 per cent
in amounts staked since the start of the
2007/08 premiership season, buoyed by
advertising and promotion. Focus has been
placed upon enhancing the range and value
of our football offering.
The horseracing product range has also
seen a number of developments, with the
introduction of betting in play on major race
meetings and the ‘Nation’s Favourite Bet’
in partnership with The Sun newspaper.
Ladbrokes Results Zone offers the most
comprehensive results service on the
high street.
The introduction of winter evening opening
across more than 95 per cent of shops has
been enhanced by additional evening betting
content for customers, including east coast
US racing, live and exclusive greyhound racing
content from Ladbrokes’ greyhound tracks and
more virtual content. A greater range of betting
opportunities than ever before is now screened
in UK shops, including more exclusive high
quality content than Ladbrokes’ competitors.

12 Annual Report and Accounts 2007

Like for like OTC gross win fell by 4.1 per
cent. Gross win margin was 17.1 per cent
(2006: 16.9 per cent).
Gaming machine gross win increased
by 21.0 per cent to £248.4 million (2006:
£205.3 million), with average weekly gaming
machine gross win of £585, compared to
£481 for 2006, an increase of 21.6 per cent.
All Fixed Odds Betting Terminals (FOBTs)
were upgraded to dual screen B2/B3 Gaming
Machines during Q1 2007 and Amusement
With Prizes (AWPs) were replaced with the
same dual screen machines by October 2007.
As well as significantly improved reliability
across the machine estate, the new B3 content
(£500 jackpots) now represents around
50 per cent of all gaming machine transactions
and contributed to an increase in overall margin
in 2007. Second half gaming machine gross
win growth was 26.9 per cent (H1 2007:
15.5 per cent), including the benefit of
extended opening hours from September.
The replacement of the shop EPOS system
was completed in the first half of 2007,
enabling high street functionality which is
bespoke to Ladbrokes, such as ‘Boost Your
Winnings’. Local communities now benefit
from Dynamic Zoning technology, which
tailors product and promotions to customers,
based on local football teams.
Operating costs increased by 7.9 per cent
to £445.9 million (2006: £413.1 million). This
increase was driven by additional opening
hours from September and a full year of
Amusement Machine Licence Duty (AMLD),
which was introduced in August 2006. Like
for like costs (excluding AMLD, winter evening
opening hours, new licences and closed
shops) increased by 3.0 per cent, with cost
control remaining a key area of focus
throughout 2007.
Operating profit of £187.8 million decreased
by 6.0 per cent (2006: £199.8 million).
During 2007, a mystery shopper programme
was rolled out across 600 UK shops, with
a focus on standards and customer service.
Given the importance of the relationship
between shop profitability and service,
increased emphasis will be placed on
maintaining and enhancing customer service
in our shops going forward. The programme
will be extended to all UK shops during 2008.
At 31 December 2007, Ladbrokes had
2,133 shops in the UK. During 2007, 22 new
licences were opened and 30 shops were
closed. 41 shops were relocated during
the year and 53 were refurbished.
Profit before tax, finance costs and non-trading items.

(1)

EUROPEAN RETAIL
UK
See main panel

EUROPEAN RETAIL
IRELAND
Gross win in Ireland
increased by 26.4 per cent
to £61.8 million (2006: £48.9
million), driven by good growth
from acquisitions and new
licences and despite a difficult
horseracing margin in the
second half.
Operating costs increased
by 25.5 per cent as a result
of the impact of a larger shop
estate and related establishment
costs. Operating profit increased
by 43.6 per cent to £20.1 million
(2006: £14.0 million).
Shop numbers in Ireland
increased from 195 at
31 December 2006 to 215
at the 2007 year end, with 13
acquisitions, nine new licences
and two closures during the year.
The acquisition of the
54 shop Eastwood chain in
Northern Ireland was completed
on 6 February 2008.
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EUROPEAN RETAIL
ITALY

EUROPEAN RETAIL
BELGIUM
Gross win in Belgium
showed a decline of
0.9 per cent with the
marketplace remaining highly
competitive, however operating
profit increased 6.7 per cent to
£3.2 million (2006: £3.0 million)
due to lower turnover tax and
a reduction in operating costs.
The number of Belgian
shops was 274 at
31 December 2007 (2006: 286).

EUROPEAN RETAIL
ITALY
The rollout programme
for the 142 new Bersani
licences continues, following the
licence award in March 2007,
with the first shop and corners
opened in December 2007.
Whilst finding premises for new
licences remains challenging,
they are scheduled to be
opened throughout 2008.

The newly re-regulated
Italian betting market
presents a good opportunity
for Ladbrokes. During 2007,
13 existing betting shops were
acquired for a cost of £16.7
million, giving a total of 17
acquired shops by the year end.
These shops traded in line with
our expectations during 2007.
Ladbrokes is now represented
in the major cities of Rome, Milan,
Turin, Naples and Genoa and
since the year end has completed
the acquisition of a further eight
shops around Turin and Vicenza.
Our local language internet
site, Ladbrokes.it, was
launched in November. Our
odds service provider, Pianetta
Scommesse increased its
customer numbers during
the year.
Gross win for the year
was £6.5 million, with
operational and administration
costs of £7.3 million and duty of
£0.8 million, resulting in a start-up
loss of £1.6 million for the year.

OUTLOOK

EUROPEAN RETAIL
ITALY
We have established a
head office in Milan which
is focused on the expansion
of the Italian business.

Our shops combine the
most recognised betting brand
with leading edge technology,
excellent staff service and key
high street locations. During
2008, Ladbrokes will focus on
maximising the opportunities
available to grow gross win,
whilst continuing to place
significant emphasis on
achieving cost savings.
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BUSINESS REVIEW:
REMOTE BETTING
AND GAMING
10 THINGS TO KNOW
ABOUT LADBROKES
REMOTE BETTING
AND GAMING
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THE
GLOBAL GAME
EGAMING

1

eGaming increased its profitability
by 24.2 per cent to £55.0 million
(2006: £44.3 million) with
Ladbrokes now one of the world’s
most profitable online betting
and gaming operators. Results
benefited significantly from the
acquisition in January 2007 of
Sponsio, Ladbrokes’ Nordic
marketing partners since 2001.
Net revenue conversion
consequently improved to 38.3
per cent (2006: 33.0 per cent).
eGaming net revenue increased
by 7.0 per cent to £143.5 million
(2006: £134.1 million), with
unique active players of 601,000,
9.5 per cent higher despite the
impact of the World Cup in 2006.
Yield per customer was down
2.0 per cent at £239.

3
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5

PLAYING
TO WIN
GAMES

Poker net revenue declined by
11.4 per cent to £31.0 million,
impacted by increased competition
in our key European markets.
Unique active players for the year
were down 1.9 per cent at 151,000
and yield per unique active player
was down 9.7 per cent to £205.
Net revenue for the second
half declined year on year by
7.8 per cent to £15.3 million. In the
second half our customer loyalty
programme was enhanced and
3D poker was soft launched in
November. The popular Ladbrokes
Poker Cruise took place early in
2008 and the coming year will see
further developments to the site
including multi currency tables
and a full launch of the new 3D
application, complemented by
a more aggressive affiliates
programme.

ROLL
WITH IT
CASINO

Casino net revenue of £43.1 million
grew by 5.1 per cent. Unique active
players were up 16.7 per cent at
105,000, with average monthly
active player days up 13.9 per cent
and yield per unique active player
down 9.7 per cent at £411. Whilst
the second half of the year saw
a decline in yield, net revenue
declined only marginally year
on year due to the benefit of a
27.5 per cent increase in active
customers. The increase in active
customers was driven by online
marketing activity and continual
improvements to our proposition,
including new products (e.g. The
Osbournes and Hitman branded
slots) and further foreign language
versions of the ‘1-click’ suite of
casino games. In 2008 a more
rapid rollout of new products
is planned, combined with
geographically targeted new
customer acquisition campaigns.

4

UP THE
ANTE
POKER

2

GOING STRONG
SPORTSBOOK

Sportsbook net revenue showed strong growth of 14.7 per cent
to £52.2 million, (2006: £45.5 million including £4.5 million
from the World Cup), with a gross win margin of 7.2 per cent
(2006: 6.4 per cent). Growth in the second half remained strong
at 15.7 per cent driven by continued expansion in the product
offering, including betting in play, video streaming and other
sports content. For the year, unique active players grew
5.8 per cent to 421,000 and yield per unique active player
grew 8.8 per cent to £124. Our new UK Sportsbook was
launched for beta testing at the end of 2007 with encouraging
initial feedback and full launch is scheduled for H1 2008.
Further localisation of our international offering is also a focus,
particularly in the key Nordic countries where new Sportsbooks
were launched in February 2008.

Games net revenue showed
significant growth of 36.5 per cent
to £17.2 million (2006: £12.6
million), with second half growth
of 27.6 per cent despite tougher
comparatives. Average monthly
active player days for the year
were up 43.4 per cent to 142,000,
with unique active players up
17.5 per cent. This performance
benefited from the new Bingo
product and supporting TV
advertising campaigns together
with a number of other new
product launches during the
year (including Deal or No Deal
Jackpot and Who Wants to be a
Millionaire Bingo). 2008 will see
enhancements to Ladbrokes’
bingo service, additional unique
branded content and focus on
localisation and affiliate growth.
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8

FAVOURABLE
IMPACT

eGaming’s operating costs of
£80.6 million were £2.3 million
lower than 2006 compared to
the 7.0 per cent increase in net
revenue, favourably impacted
by the acquisition of Sponsio
in January 2007. Like for like,
excluding the impact of this
acquisition, operating costs were
up approximately 6.5 per cent,
with savings in banking and
chargebacks offset by increased
staff costs. Marketing costs
overall increased by £2.8 million
(16.2 per cent), with real money
sign-ups 4,000 higher than last
year, despite the impact of the
World Cup. Adjusted cost per
acquisition comparatives are not
like for like, due to the impact of the
acquisition of Sponsio in January
2007. However even after adjusting
for this, the cost of £86 has risen,
reflecting the higher level of
competition in our key markets.

9

6

CONTINUOUS
IMPROVEMENT

2007 saw continuous
improvements and growth in
Ladbrokes’ mobile Sportsbook
and gaming offerings and further
developments are planned for
2008. Compared with the Internet,
wireless revenues are small but
are growing quickly and Ladbrokes
is positioned to take advantage
as consumer acceptance of the
technology grows.

7

STRENGTH IN
PARTNERSHIP

In partnership with News Group
Newspapers, Ladbrokes launched
the Sun and News of the World
betting and gaming sites in Q4
2007. This is an important
partnership for both parties,
recognising the power and
strength of Ladbrokes and
News Group Newspapers
in their respective markets.

EUROPEAN
REGULATIONS

The regulatory environment outside
of the UK and Ireland remains
challenging but there are early
signs that European Member
States are beginning to accept the
anachronism of protecting state
monopoly betting service providers
under European law. Nevertheless,
Ladbrokes remains unable to
accept bets from customers in
a number of important European
markets including, for example,
Germany and the Netherlands and
is prohibited from promoting its
services in a significantly greater
number of member states. 2007
has seen Ladbrokes acquire an
Internet betting licence in Italy and
it is hoped that further progress
is made in terms of both free
movement of services and freedom
of establishment in 2008 through
the assistance of the European
Commission and through national
courts and the European Court.

10

MAKING A
GOOD CALL
TELEPHONE

Telephone Betting achieved
operating profits of £183.6 million
in 2007 (£17.3m in 2006) buoyed
by high levels of activity from High
Rollers. Excluding High Rollers,
operating profit declined by
35.2 per cent to £4.6 million
(2006: £7.1 million).
Net revenue including High
Rollers was £279.8 million
(2006: £45.8 million).
Net revenue excluding High
Rollers decreased by 10.1 per
cent to £30.2 million (2006: £33.6
million including £1.6 million from
the World Cup) with gross win
margins of 7.1 per cent, slightly
behind 2006 levels (7.2 per cent).
Net revenue from High Rollers
was £249.6 million (2006:
£12.2 million).
Excluding provisions for
doubtful debts, operating
costs (excluding duty and levy)
increased by 13.6 per cent to
£20.9 million, mainly due to
additional costs relating to High
Rollers. Agent cost per call was
up 3.4 per cent to 61 pence
(H1 2007: up 14.5 per cent),
with efficiencies impacted by lost
racing both at the beginning of the
year and during the wet summer.
Excluding High Rollers, average
monthly active player days
declined by 7.6 per cent and call
volumes decreased by 8.5 per
cent, with yield down 2.8 per cent
at £263. Unique active players
were down 7.6 per cent at
115,000 (2006: 124,400).

OUTLOOK

Following a year in which both eGaming and Telephone Betting
delivered good performances, 2008 has commenced in similar
fashion. Telephone Betting has seen a continuation of higher
activity levels amongst our High Rollers and eGaming will
see increased investment in advertising and promotion to
accelerate the rate of new customer acquisition and growth
in net gaming revenue.
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AIMING TO
MAXIMISE
POTENTIAL
BUSINESS REVIEW: CORPORATE
THE BOARD AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
RECOGNISE THE IMPORTANCE OF THE
LADBROKES BRAND, BOTH IN THE UK
AND OVERSEAS AND WILL CONTINUE
TO DEVELOP IT AND MONITOR
PERFORMANCE TO ENSURE LADBROKES
STAYS AHEAD OF THE COMPETITION.
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International development
and casino
The International development
effort has focused mainly on
opportunities in Asia, particularly
in China, Vietnam and Taiwan,
in addition to initial development
activity in Italy and Spain. Whilst
Ladbrokes was unsuccessful
in its bid for the Taiwanese
sports lottery, developments
continue in China and Vietnam.
Development costs totalled
£4.5 million in 2007.
In Spain, Ladbrokes has applied
for an operating licence in the
Madrid region with our joint venture
partners, Cirsa Slot. Ladbrokes’
£0.9 million costs were incurred
in setting up the new business
during the year.
Casino losses of £1.6 million
reflect the development costs
of assessing the proposed new
regional, large and small UK
casinos and the operating results
of Ladbrokes Casino and
Sportsbar at Paddington Hilton.
Discontinued operations
Vernons
The sale of Vernons to Sportech
plc completed on 3 December
2007. Initial cash consideration
was £40.8 million after working
capital adjustments, with a further
£3.2 million payable in 2008 and
£3.0 million payable in 2009.
Technology
Central to Ladbrokes’ growth
strategy is our commitment to
maximise the potential of our
products. This continuous
improvement process is maintained
with the adoption of leading
edge technologies deployed
across all businesses – Retail,
eGaming, Telephone Betting
and International.

CENTRAL TO LADBROKES’
GROWTH STRATEGY IS
OUR COMMITMENT TO
MAXIMISE THE POTENTIAL
OF OUR PRODUCTS.
THIS CONTINUOUS
IMPROVEMENT PROCESS
IS MAINTAINED WITH THE
ADOPTION OF LEADING
EDGE TECHNOLOGIES
DEPLOYED ACROSS
ALL BUSINESSES –
RETAIL, eGAMING,
TELEPHONE, AND
INTERNATIONAL.
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OUR BRAND
Ladbrokes has maintained its
position as the leading betting
brand in the UK according to the
annual independent survey of
betting shop customers by TNS
(Taylor Nelson Sofres market
research, compiled quarterly
during 2007).
The survey revealed that
during 2007 the Ladbrokes’
brand had the highest level of
spontaneous awareness among
both the general public and
bettors. Ladbrokes recorded
37 per cent spontaneous
awareness compared with
15 per cent for William Hill.
It reached more customers
than any other brand (44 per cent
share vs. 30 per cent William Hill
and 23 per cent Corals) and had
more visits (33 per cent vs 25 per
cent William Hill and 18.4 per
cent Coral) than any other brand.
The research also revealed
that the Ladbrokes customer
is slightly younger and slightly
more affluent than the William
Hill customer base.
Following changes introduced
by the UK Gambling Act 2005
during 2007, Ladbrokes became
the first company in the UK to air
TV advertising for sports betting.
The initial response was positive
and the experience has proven
valuable in developing plans
for 2008.
The Board and senior
management recognise the
importance of the brand, both
in the UK and overseas and
will continue to develop it and
monitor performance to ensure
Ladbrokes stays ahead of
the competition.

Ladbrokes’ UK Retail business
develops and deploys some of
the most advanced transaction
processing systems and content
management applications available
in the retail sector. Customers
are assured that their business is
processed using fully integrated
services where the latest
information systems combine with
transaction software to deliver an
unparalleled betting experience.
Ladbrokes’ eGaming and
Telephone Betting businesses
operate using sophisticated and
advanced infrastructures that
ensure optimum performance
via high performance betting and
gaming systems, delivered via

an unmatched range of channels,
serving our customers throughout
the world.
Ladbrokes partners with third
parties, qualified in the development
and delivery of all our online
services. These suppliers provide
the infrastructure and facilities
that guarantee the delivery of
sophisticated, high performance
transaction processing systems,
which are deployed consistently
at installations throughout
the world.
Security is paramount in the
overall design and operation of
every Ladbrokes environment,
with advanced and integrated
security systems installed to

protect personal, financial and
transactional data. To ensure
fail-safe integrity, Ladbrokes has
implemented a series of storage
systems to ensure the integrity
of our data. Infrastructure, software
systems and communications
services are always up-to-date,
ensuring the best possible service
and experience for our customers.
Risks and uncertainties
Market and other general risks
A number of macro-level factors
exist which, whilst opportunities,
are also risks and could adversely
impact Ladbrokes’ core Retail and
Remote businesses and the results
of Ladbrokes plc. These include:
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could be incurred by Ladbrokes
in relation to each fixed odds
betting outcome is managed by
its highly experienced trading team.
Customer betting patterns,
particularly with regard to those
who bet large stakes, the outcome
of individual events or a prolonged
period of good or bad results could
have a material effect on the results
of Ladbrokes plc.
Ladbrokes’ core expertise is
risk management and through
its history, we have developed
the skills and systems to be able
to offer the breadth of betting
opportunities and to accept large
bets across the range.

WITH THE HIGHEST
AWARENESS OF ANY
BOOKMAKER IN THE UK,
LADBROKES CONTINUES
TO BUILD ON ITS BRAND
THROUGH A FULL RANGE
OF ADVERTISING AND
PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES
AROUND THE GLOBE.

Economic, consumer and
environmental factors within
Ladbrokes’ key markets reducing
customers’ disposable income;
Revenue and operating results
varying significantly from period
to period;
An impairment or inability
to maintain and enhance the
Ladbrokes brand;
Competition from existing
competitors or new entrants to
the Retail and Remote gambling
industry;
Changing consumer trends
and opportunities for betting
and gaming;
Entry into new betting and
gaming markets;

Relationships with key suppliers,
most notably in connection with
the financing of the horseracing
industry;
The betting and gaming sector
is a highly competitive environment
for recruitment and retention of
key personnel.
Regulatory/legislative risks
Regulatory, legislative and fiscal
regimes for betting and gaming
in Ladbrokes’ key markets around
the world can change, sometimes
at short notice. Such changes
could benefit or have an adverse
effect on the results of Ladbrokes
plc and additional costs might
be incurred in order to comply

with any new laws and regulations.
Ladbrokes monitors legislative
and regulatory developments
in all of its key markets closely,
allowing us to quickly assess
and adapt to changes in the
environment and minimise risks
to the business. The UK has
recently undergone a significant
change in its regulatory framework
for betting and gaming. Ladbrokes
continues to work closely with
the Gambling Commission and
the relevant trade organisations
in order to influence change
as it occurs.
Bookmaking risks
The potential risk of losses that

Technology risks
Technology is key to the success
of all of Ladbrokes’ businesses
and positively differentiates it from
its competitors. A failure in the
infrastructure and operation of
core systems could have an
adverse impact on our operations
and financial results. The integrity
and availability of systems is vital
to deliver a high quality service
to customers in all of Ladbrokes’
markets.
Security in all Ladbrokes’
environments is paramount in
the design and operation of all
technology based services.
Advanced security systems are
deployed to protect all personal,
financial and transactional data.
Sophisticated hardware and
security mechanisms are used,
ensuring all sensitive and
confidential data is fully encrypted.
To ensure fail-safe integrity of all
data, Ladbrokes has implemented
a series of storage systems that
replicate all data processed by our
online services. Ladbrokes regularly
updates technology, infrastructure
and communication systems,
as well as its application systems.
We utilise rigorous testing regimes,
to ensure the continued high
quality of our products and services
is maintained. Our infrastructure
suppliers, network and
telecommunication suppliers
and application service suppliers
are long-term partners in providing
an infrastructure which guarantees
the delivery of sophisticated,
high performance transaction
processing systems.
Management of risks
Key risks are reviewed by the
executive committee and the Board
of Ladbrokes plc on a regular basis
and where appropriate, actions are
taken to mitigate the key risks that
are identified.
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A
SENSE
OF FAIR
PLAY
BUSINESS REVIEW: CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
LADBROKES IS A PROFITABLE, LEADING EDGE AND
INNOVATIVE COMPANY. WE PRIDE OURSELVES ON
OFFERING SOPHISTICATED BETTING AND GAMING
PRODUCTS TO A MODERN MARKET. WE VALUE
OUR REPUTATION FOR FAIRNESS AND INTEGRITY,
BEHAVING RESPONSIBLY THROUGHOUT ALL
OUR OPERATIONS. WE ALSO RECOGNISE THE
IMPORTANCE OF GOOD EMPLOYEE RELATIONSHIPS
AND HIGH LEVELS OF CUSTOMER SATISFACTION.
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Valuing fairness and integrity
Since its formation in the late
1800s, Ladbrokes has played
a significant part in establishing
a legitimate and well organised
betting and gaming industry in
the UK. More recently we have
expanded internationally via a retail
presence and through the Internet.
Wherever we operate, Ladbrokes
upholds best practice industry
standards, which provide added
assurance for our customers, and
benefits the local economy (through
employment and the payment of
taxes). We also make substantial
contributions to support the UK
racing industry through the levy
and our contributions to The British
Greyhound Racing Fund. The latter
two fund improvements in horse
and greyhound racing, support
for retired animals, assistance
to jockeys and advancements
in veterinary science and
veterinary education.
Ladbrokes is committed to
being among the leaders of our
sector in responsible business
practice. During 2007 our high
standards of Corporate
Responsibility (CR) were again
recognised by the Dow Jones
Sustainability Indexes (DJSI) and
FTSE4Good Indices. The DJSI
use a ‘best in class’ approach
to identify best practice across a
range of CR areas and Ladbrokes
was the only UK-based betting
and gaming company to be
included in their index series for
2007/8 and one of only three
companies globally.
CR strategy and governance
CR and governance issues are
given full consideration by the
executive committee and the
Group Board when defining the
Ladbrokes business strategy.
CR risks are regularly reviewed
by the business and are considered
by the Board, as appropriate, as
a part of the corporate risk review
process. CR matters are reported
to the Group Board on a regular
basis (as a minimum quarterly)
thus forming part of the Board
calendar, along with tailored
director briefings. The Board
reviews the key CR issues and
agrees the annual corporate
responsibility strategy.
24 Annual Report and Accounts 2007

The remuneration committee also
takes account of CR issues when
determining executive remuneration
and benefits. CR governance and
management processes are subject
to internal audit and the reporting
process is externally verified by
our CR Advisors, Acona Ltd.
As a business, we aim to be:
1st choice for customers
and a provider of 1st class
customer service;
A quality employer;
Innovative and cutting edge;
Trusted and a sector leader
in responsible business practice;
Internationally recognised.

UNDERSTANDING OUR
KEY CR ISSUES AND
MINIMISING RISKS
TO THE BUSINESS
The following CR issues
have been identified as key
to supporting our business
growth and form the pillars
of our CR strategy:
Maintaining high ethical and
socially responsible standards
throughout our operations;
Promoting responsible
gambling behaviours across
our business and the industry
as a whole;
Keeping our customers
satisfied with, well informed
about and interested in, the
products and services we offer;
Attracting a diverse workforce
and sustaining high levels of
competence, motivation and
loyalty to the business;
Minimising the risks from
our third-party relationships –
business partnerships, joint
ventures or within our
supply chain;
Minimising the financial and
reputational impact of noncompliance with CR legislation;
Minimising health, safety and
security risks to our business,
our employees and the general
public from our operations;
Understanding global
environmental agendas and
minimising the impact of
increasing environmental costs
on our operations;
Being a good corporate
citizen and a respected
neighbour in our communities.

High ethical and socially
responsible standards
Our aim is that the Ladbrokes
brand is recognised and trusted
wherever we do business and
becomes synonymous with
fairness and integrity. For many
years we have supported the
Association of British Bookmakers
(ABB) and the Remote Gambling
Association (RGA) in establishing
industry-wide social responsibility
standards and promoting
self-regulation. We welcome
the new legislative regime in
the UK and we are meeting
the demands of the Gambling
Commission and fully support
the Commission’s three key
licensing objectives:
To keep crime out of gambling;
To ensure gambling is conducted
fairly and openly;
To protect children and
vulnerable people from being
harmed or exploited by gambling.
All relevant personnel have
been trained to meet the required
standards. To monitor compliance
we have a comprehensive
programme in place, headed
by our Compliance Director and
overseen by our compliance
committee. This programme
is subject to internal audit.
Promoting responsible
gambling behaviours
Ladbrokes continues to work with
its peers and national governments
to improve responsible gambling
behaviour across the industry.
We have our own systems in
place to ensure that:
Our customers are well informed,
e.g. about our products; about
problem gambling issues; and for
our on-line customers about their
own gambling history. In support
of this, we don’t use ‘teasers’ to
entice customers onto our sites
or misrepresent the risks to our
customers by the use of free
demo games with more favourable
odds to the main play;
We provide inherent protection
to try to limit the possible financial
impacts on our customers from
excessive gambling, e.g. daily and
weekly limits on spend, and
appropriate customer due diligence;
We protect the young and the
vulnerable through, for example,

clear marketing standards
(we recently helped to develop
an industry-led voluntary code
on responsible advertising),
strict age limits, on-line age
verification checks, self exclusion
arrangements. For most people,
gambling is an enjoyable and
harmless leisure pursuit.
However, for a very few others
gambling can become a
behavioural problem. Ladbrokes
has a responsibility to help tackle
problem gambling, understand its
causes and promote its treatment.
We make our employees aware
of the symptoms of problem
gambling and train them in
how to respond.
Ladbrokes was a founding
member of the Responsibility
in Gambling Trust (RIGT), the
Independent Betting Adjudication
Service (IBAS) and, through RIGT,
supports GamCare and the Gordon
Moody Association (formerly
Gordon House). We developed
our front-line training programmes
with the help of GamCare and
over the past three years we
have trained 100 per cent of
our employees in responsible
gambling practice.
Growing and keeping
our customers
We provide our customers with
an enjoyable, efficient, secure,
fair and socially responsible service
and all our employees are trained
to support this commitment.
We are keen to drive brand loyalty
and all that the brand stands for,
including trust and integrity.
We seek customer views and
encourage feedback on our
employees and our services.
We continually assess our
performance through third party
audits (e.g. mystery shopper
surveys) and monitoring
customer complaints.
During 2007 we achieved an
average 85 per cent customer
satisfaction record, following over
3,600 mystery shopper visits.
All of our retail managers in the
UK have achieved the Institute
of Customer Service award and
through this are focussing on
tangible improvements to the
way we treat our customers.
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Diverse and motivated
workforce
As our business becomes more
sophisticated and technology
driven, we need to ensure that we
sustain a high level of competence
across the business and increase
our capacity to respond to
changing market needs. We are
an Investor in People and as
such Ladbrokes provides clear
opportunities for development
and progression. We recognise
that our employees represent a
centre of excellence for the industry
– one which we wish to maintain.
A key part of our human resources
strategy is to be a modern,
attractive and fair employer and
to value and recognise employee
loyalty. We work hard to
understand the needs and
expectations of our employees,
most specifically through our UK
Staff Council. All of which helps to
maintain high levels of employee
satisfaction and minimise turnover.

impact from the rising costs of
utilities. We have ongoing
programmes in place to address
these issues, including minimising
our consumption of energy and use
of resources.
Supporting our communities
We strive to be a good corporate
citizen and a valued member of
the communities in which we
operate. We recognise the links
our employees have to their own
communities and through Ladbrokes
in the Community Charitable Trust
(LICCT) we support their activities
by giving something back.
LICCT has raised over
£3.5 million for good causes
since it was established in 2003.
The funds have been raised by
employees all around the country.
During 2007 LICCT donated over
£938,000 to charitable and community causes across the UK.
To mark the start of the year,
£25,000 was given to each of
four major charities: Guide Dogs
for the Blind, Dreams Come True,
The Samaritans and the Army
Benevolent Fund.

Suppliers and
business partners
We have a responsibility to assess
the social, ethical and environmental
risks associated with our business
partnerships, joint ventures and
product sourcing. This year we have
developed a new framework for
responsible procurement and
updated our responsible sourcing
policy. Over the coming year we
will review our due diligence criteria
for investment decisions regarding
the locations and parties that we
do business with.
Health, safety and security
We aim for best practice health
and safety standards throughout
all our operations and we support
a proactive culture of risk
management. Our health and
safety record in 2007 was good.
We had no fatalities or major
injuries across our business and
following 163 Health and Safety
inspector visits in the UK alone,
there were no enforcement notices
or notified non-compliances.
Furthermore we had no
prosecutions or convictions
for health and safety offences.
One of the important risks to
the health of our employees and
our customers comes from

Engaging with investors
Our ongoing programme of investor
engagement helps us understand
financial sector expectations.
Some our major shareholders have
stated policies on CR and Socially
Responsible Investment (SRI)
e.g. Morley, Jupiter Asset
Management, Barclays Global
Investors and Fidelity, and we take
account of these when developing
our CR strategy. We take particular
care to remain in FTSE4Good
and the Dow Jones Sustainability
World and STOXX indices, which
enhances both the diversity
of our shareholding and our
corporate reputation.

breaches of security on our
premises, such as robbery and
theft. We have invested heavily in
CCTV across all of our retail estate,
both to help reduce the number
of incidents and to help protect
employees and customers.
In addition, we carefully monitor

and seek to minimise the financial
impacts of health and safety related
claims from across our business.
Environmental issues
We have reviewed the issues
associated with climate change and
have been assessing the potential

Full CR report
For further details of our CR policies
and performance, please refer
to our 2007 CR Report which
is available on the Company’s
website, www.ladbrokesplc.com.
Further information on our
approach to responsible business
(i.e. risk management and corporate
governance) is also included in
the Directors’ Report on page 36
of this Annual Report.
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ACROSS
THE BOARD
< BRIAN G WALLACE ACA
GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR
Brian Wallace rejoined the Board on 5 March
2007. Mr Wallace was, until the sale of Hilton
International in February 2006, the Deputy
Chief Executive (from 2000) and Group Finance
Director (from 1995) of the Company, then
named Hilton Group plc. Prior to joining the
Hilton Group Board in April 1995, he held senior
financial positions in Geest and Schlumberger.
He was a non-executive director of Hays plc
until November 2007 and is currently a nonexecutive director of Scottish & Newcastle plc.
Age 53.

< HENRY E STAUNTON FCA
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Henry Staunton was appointed a non-executive
director on 1 September 2006. Mr Staunton
was previously the Finance Director at ITV plc
and Granada Group plc. He is currently a nonexecutive director at Legal & General plc and
Standard Bank plc. Prior to this, Mr Staunton
was also a non-executive director at Emap plc,
BSkyB plc, Independent Television News Limited
and Ashtead Group plc, of which he was
Chairman between 2001 and 2004. Age 59.

> C PIPPA WICKS
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Pippa Wicks was appointed a non-executive director on
1 June 2004. An Oxford and London Business School
graduate, she joined AlixPartners Ltd, London, the specialist
performance improvement and turnaround firm as a Managing
Director in 2003. She previously held senior positions within
Pearson plc and was Group Finance Director of Courtaulds
Textiles plc between 1993 and 1999. Pippa began her career
with Bain & Company and was a non-executive director
of Arcadia Group plc between 2001 and 2002. Age 45.
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> JOHN P O’REILLY
MANAGING DIRECTOR
REMOTE BETTING AND GAMING
John O’Reilly joined the Board in February 2006.
He has led the Ladbrokes eGaming Division since
its establishment in 2000. He has responsibility for
Ladbrokes.com and Ladbrokes Telephone Betting
operations. Since joining Ladbrokes, he has
held senior responsibility within the Company for
marketing, public relations, public affairs, property,
business development and the Telephone Betting
business. He is a non-executive director of Telecity
Group plc and a director of the Remote Gambling
Association. Age 47.
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< SIR IAN ROBINSON FREng
CHAIRMAN

< CHRISTOPHER BELL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Sir Ian was appointed Chairman of the
Board on 1 October 2001. He joined
the Board as a non-executive director
and Deputy Chairman of the Board
on 22 February 2001. He was Chief
Executive of Scottish Power plc from
1995 to 2001. He is a fellow of the
Royal Academy of Engineering and
a member of The Takeover Panel.
He is also a non-executive director of
Scottish & Newcastle plc, Compass
Group plc and Siemens Holdings plc.
Age 65.

Christopher Bell became Chief Executive
of Ladbrokes plc in February 2006. He was
previously Chief Executive of Ladbrokes
Worldwide and was appointed to the Board
on 1 June 2000. He joined Ladbrokes in 1991
and became Managing Director in 1995.
Prior to joining Ladbrokes he held a number
of senior positions with Allied Domecq. He is
also Vice Chairman of the Association of British
Bookmakers, Chairman of the Bookmakers
Committee, a Board member of the Horserace
Betting Levy Board, a Board member of the
British Institute of Sport and Leisure and
a non-executive and senior independent
director of Game Group plc. Age 50.

> ALAN S ROSS
MANAGING DIRECTOR EUROPEAN RETAIL
Alan Ross joined the Board in February 2006. He was appointed Managing
Director Ladbrokes Retail in April 2000. He currently has responsibility
for European expansion and managing the Group’s relationships with
Government, the industry and the Gambling Commission. During his long
career at Ladbrokes, he has held a number of senior management positions,
including Managing Director of Coral Group and Managing Director of
Ladbrokes Casinos prior to the acquisition of Stakis. He was appointed
Managing Director International Betting and Gaming in April 1999.
He is Chairman of 49’s Limited and a director of Satellite Information
Services. He is a member of the Business in Sport and Leisure
Board, the British Greyhound Racing Fund Board, the Association
of British Bookmakers Council and the Bookmakers Committee
and is also on the GamCare Advisory Group. Age 64.

< JOHN F JARVIS CVO, CBE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
John Jarvis was appointed a non-executive director on
1 July 2006. Currently Chairman of Jarvis Hotels Ltd,
Mr Jarvis is also non-executive Chairman of Sandown
Park Racecourse and a member of The Jockey Club.
He was previously a non-executive director at United
Racecourses and a non-executive Chairman of Sporting
Index. From 1979 to 1990, Mr Jarvis was an executive
director of Ladbroke Group plc, and Chairman of
Hilton International from 1987 to 1990. Age 65.

< NICHOLAS M H JONES FCA
SENIOR INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Nicholas Jones was appointed a non-executive
director on 22 July 2002. He is a qualified
chartered accountant and business school
graduate. He is a distinguished corporate
financier and is Vice Chairman of Lazard in
London, a position he has held since 1999.
His other interests include horseracing and
in 2007 he was appointed as a non-executive
director of Newbury Racecourse PLC and
from 1991-2000 he was Chairman of the
National Stud. Age 61.

< CHRISTOPHER J RODRIGUES CBE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Christopher Rodrigues was appointed a non-executive director
on 1 September 2003. In July 2007, Mr Rodrigues was appointed
Executive Chairman of International Personal Finance plc following
the de-merger from Provident Financial plc. In January 2007, he was
appointed the new Chair of the national tourism body, VisitBritain.
He was until November 2006 President and Chief Executive
of Visa International. Prior to that he was previously Group Chief
Executive of Bradford & Bingley plc, Group Chief Executive of
Thomas Cook and held several senior management positions
with American Express. Mr Rodrigues is also a Steward of
Henley Royal Regatta. Age 58.
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue and profit before tax
Year ended
31 December 2007
Net revenue
Profit
£m
£m

Continuing operations:
European Retail
eGaming
Telephone Betting
Other(1)
Corporate costs

Restated year ended
31 December 2006
Net revenue
Profit
£m
£m

804.5
143.5
279.8
7.2
–

209.5
55.0
183.6
(7.0)
(21.1)

767.5
134.1
45.8
–
–

216.8
44.3
17.3
(1.6)
(14.6)

Net finance costs
Interest income on the hotels sale proceeds

1,235.0
–
–

420.0
(68.0)
–

947.4
–
–

262.2
(44.6)
24.0

Revenue and profit before tax

1,235.0

352.0

947.4

241.6

Discontinued operations:
Vernons
Hotels

16.8
–

4.8
–

18.6
264.4

4.9
10.8

Revenue and profit before tax

16.8

4.8

283.0

15.7

1,251.8

356.8

1,230.4

257.3

Group revenue and profit before tax
Casino and international development operations. Vernons was disposed in 2007.

(1)

Profit is before non-trading items and profit on disposal of the Vernons business and hotels business.

TRADING SUMMARY CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue
Revenue for continuing operations
increased by £287.6 million
(30.4 per cent) to £1,235.0 million,
mainly as a result of High Rollers’
activity in Telephone Betting, the
performance of the Irish shops
in the European Retail estate,
and growth in eGaming.
Profit before finance costs,
tax and non-trading items
Profit before finance costs, tax
and non-trading items increased
60.2 per cent to £420.0 million
(2006: £262.2 million) reflecting
increased profits in both Telephone
Betting and eGaming offset by
a decline in European Retail.
Corporate costs increased due to
the television advertising campaign
in the second half of 2007.
Finance costs
The net finance costs of £68.0
million were £47.4 million greater
than last year (2006: £20.6 million).
2006 benefited from interest
income of £24.0 million earned
on the proceeds of the Hilton
International disposal. Excluding
this income net finance costs
increased by £23.4 million
reflecting a full period of the
increased leverage implemented
following the Hilton International
disposal.
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Profit before tax –
Continuing operations
The increase in trading profits
offset by the higher finance
costs in the year has resulted in
a 45.7 per cent increase in profit
for continuing operations before
taxation and non-trading
items to £352.0 million
(2006: £241.6 million).
Non-trading items before tax
A non-trading loss of £1.1 million
before interest and tax includes
a £1.5 million profit recognised
upon disposal of shares in SIS
reducing our shareholding from
25.3 per cent to 23.4 per cent.
This is offset by a £2.6 million
loss on closure of 30 shops in
2007 in the UK Retail estate.
Other non-trading losses of
£6.7 million (2006: £1.0 million
loss) relate to unrealised losses
on derivatives.
Taxation
The Group taxation charge for
continuing operations before
non-trading items of £54.8 million
represents an effective tax rate
of 15.6 per cent (2006: 17.5 per
cent). The effective tax rate of
15.6 per cent is lower than 2006
due in part to a reduction in the
rate of mainstream corporation
tax rates.

Discontinued operations
The £4.8 million trading profit in
discontinued operations relates
to the profit before tax of the
Vernons business up until
3 December 2007 when it was
sold. A £46.0 million non-trading
profit was recognised on disposal.
Earnings per share (EPS) –
Continuing operations
EPS (before non-trading items)
was 47.4 pence (2006: 21.7 pence).
Comparison with the prior year is
affected by the share consolidation
and convertible bond conversion
that took place in 2006. EPS
(including the impact of nontrading items) was 46.5 pence
(2006: 20.9 pence). Fully diluted
EPS was 46.1 pence (2006:
20.4 pence) after adjustment
for outstanding share options.
Earnings per share
(EPS) – Group
EPS (before non-trading items)
increased to 48.0 pence (2006:
22.8 pence). EPS (including the
impact of non-trading items) fell
to 54.4 pence (2006: 67.2 pence),
reflecting the profit on disposal
of Hilton International in 2006.
Fully diluted EPS was 54.0 pence
(2006: 64.7 pence) after
adjustment for outstanding
share options.

Dividend and capital
structure
The Board has proposed a final
dividend of 9.05 pence per share
(2006: 8.60 pence). The dividend
will be payable on 2 June 2008
to shareholders on the register
on 7 March 2008.
In August 2007, the Board
announced the start of a share
buyback programme. This
commenced on 10 August 2007
and up until 31 December 2007
the Group had purchased a total
of 19.9 million shares at a total
cost of £70.4 million. It is intended
that, over time, Ladbrokes will
repurchase shares in order to
move towards its stated target
net debt to EBITDA range of 3.5
to 3.75 times (excluding Telephone
High Rollers). The purchase
of shares will be dependent on
market conditions and will also
take into account the cash
generated in the business and
other investment opportunities
that may arise over time.
Restatement of divisional
operating profits, non-trading
finance costs and income,
continuing operations and
balance sheet reclassification
Following a review, the allocation
of shared costs has been adjusted
in 2007 to reflect more accurately
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each division’s activity. These
adjustments have no impact
on reported Group profit,
cash flows or net assets.
In addition the Vernons
business has been classified
as discontinued operations.
For comparative purposes,
the segmental operating profit
statement for the year ended
31 December 2006 has been
restated to reflect these changes
to reported profit and is shown
in the table opposite.
Revenue for 2006 has also
been restated to reclassify the
share of results from associates
from revenue to a separate line.
Non-trading finance costs and
finance income has been restated
to disclose the net impact of
gains and losses arising from
fair value hedges within finance
costs. The balance sheet for
31 December 2006 has been
restated for a reclassification
of non-current liability provisions
and other financial liabilities
to current liability provisions
and other financial liabilities.
Revenue recognition –
reconciliation to gross win
The Group reports the gains and
losses on all betting and gaming
fair activities as revenue in
accordance with IAS 39, which
is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received
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Profit before tax and finance costs and before non-trading items
Year ended
31 December
2006
£m

Allocation
of shared
costs
£m

Restated
before
Vernons
disposal
£m

Restated
Year ended
Vernons 31 December
disposal
2006
£m
£m

European Retail
eGaming
Telephone Betting
Other(1)
Corporate costs

212.7
47.0
17.7
5.9
(15.2)

4.1
(2.7)
(0.4)
(1.6)
0.6

216.8
44.3
17.3
4.3
(14.6)

–
–
–
(5.9)
–

216.8
44.3
17.3
(1.6)
(14.6)

Total

268.1

–

268.1

(5.9)

262.2

Casino and International development operations. Vernons treated as discontinued in 2006.

(1)

A reconciliation of gross win to revenue for continuing operations
is shown below.
Year ended
Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007
2006
£m
£m

Gross win
Free bets, promotions, bonuses
VAT

1,286.4
(14.4)
(37.0)

990.3
(12.3)
(30.6)

Revenue

1,235.0

947.4

or receivable from customers less
fair value adjustment for free bets,
promotions and bonuses. Gross
win includes free bets, promotions
and bonuses, as well as VAT
payable on machine income.
Cash flow, capital
expenditure and borrowings
Cash generated by operations
was £421.1 million. After net

finance costs and income
taxes paid of £133.0 million
and £155.1 million on capital
expenditure, intangible additions
and acquisitions, cash inflow
was £133.0 million.
£40.8 million cash was received
from the sale of the Vernons
business. Proceeds of £7.6 million
were received on the exercise
of share options and the issue

of shares and £84.6 million
was paid out in dividends and
£70.4 million was spent on the
share buyback programme.
At 31 December 2007, gross
borrowings of £975.7 million less
cash, deposits and short-term
investments of £26.2 million
and derivatives of £32.5 million
have resulted in a net debt
of £917.0 million.
Adoption of IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures
The Group has adopted IFRS 7
for the year ending 31 December
2007 as required by the
International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB). IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures has
suspended IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation, adding certain
new disclosures about financial
instruments to those currently
required by IAS 32, with the
remaining parts of IAS 32 dealing
only with financial instruments
presentation matters.
The new disclosures include
additional information regarding
the Group’s financial guarantee
contracts in respect of lease
liabilities of subsidiaries within
the disposed hotels division.
These are described in note 27.

Annual Report and Accounts 2007 31

Ladbrokes R&A 07 Front:Ladbrokes R&A 07 Front

19/3/08

11:52

Page 32

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

KPIs

THE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs) USED BY THE BOARD IN
MONITORING PERFORMANCE ARE
AS FOLLOWS:
Gross win growth
Operating expense(1), (2) growth
Profit before interest and
tax(2) growth
Net interest expense(2)
Net debt to EBITDA(2) ratio
Net debt to EBITDA(2) ratio
adjusted for High Rollers
Effective tax rate(2)

The Board also utilises a range
of measures designed to determine
performance at a channel and
product level, the more important
of which are highlighted in the table
below and which are shown for the
years ended 31 December 2007
and 31 December 2006.

Key performance indicators

2007

2006(3)

Total
Gross win growth
Operating expense(1), (2) growth
Profit before interest and tax(2) growth
Net interest expense(2)
Net debt to EBITDA(2) ratio
Net debt to EBITDA(2) ratio adjusted for High Rollers
Effective tax rate(2)

29.9%
17.4%
60.2%
£68.0m
1.9
3.1
15.6%

10.2%
11.2%
7.8%
£20.6m
3.1
3.2
17.5%

Gross win growth by division
European Retail
eGaming
Telephone Betting

5.3%
8.4%
507.6%

6.0%
17.3%
119.5%

Operating expense growth(1), (2) by division
European Retail
eGaming
Telephone Betting

10.3%
(2.8)%
178.3%

10.9%
16.1%
17.8%

Profit before interest and tax(2) growth by division
European Retail
eGaming
Telephone Betting

(3.4)%
24.2%
961.3%

(2.5)%
13.6%
3,560.0%

UK Retail KPIs
Total gross win growth
Over the counter gross win growth
Machines gross win growth
Over the counter margin
Like for like total costs
Average number of machines
Average weekly gross win per machine
Shop numbers (at 31 December)

3.3%
(3.8)%
21.0%
17.1%
3%
8,147
£585
2,133

4.7%
5.4%
3.1%
16.9%
4%
8,189
£481
2,141

eGaming KPIs
Net revenue conversion
Unique active players (000s)
Real money sign ups (000s)
Cost per acquisition
Adjusted cost per acquisition

38.3%
601
307
£120
£86

33.0%
549
303
£91
£56

7,165
61p
7.1%
115.0
193

7,832
59p
7.2%
124.4
209

Telephone Betting KPIs
Number of calls (000s)
Agent costs per call
Gross win margin (excluding High Rollers)
Unique active players (000s)
Average monthly active player days (000s)
Operating expenses is a total of cost of sales after depreciation and amounts written off non-current assets and before gross profits tax plus administrative expenses.
Before non-trading items and from continuing operations.
Restated for discontinued operations and reallocation of shared costs.

(1)
(2)
(3)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board continues to be committed to high standards
of corporate governance. The Board strives to provide
the right leadership, strategic oversight and control
environment to produce and sustain delivery of value
to all of the Company’s shareholders. The Board
applies integrity, principles of good corporate
governance and accountability throughout its activities
and each director brings independence of character
and judgement to the role. All of the members of the
Board are individually and collectively aware of their
responsibilities to the Company’s stakeholders.
The following describes the Board’s approach to
corporate governance and how the Combined Code
on Corporate Governance has been applied.
Compliance statement
The Company has complied throughout 2007 with
the provisions set out in section 1 of the Combined
Code on Corporate Governance that was published
in June 2006.
Board
The Board currently comprises the non-executive
Chairman, four executive directors and five independent
non-executive directors. The Chairman has a primary
responsibility for the running of the Board and for
ensuring effective communication with shareholders.
The Chief Executive is responsible for the operations
and for the development of strategic plans and
initiatives for consideration by the Board. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive has been clearly established, set out
in writing and agreed by the Board. Mr N M H Jones
acts as Senior Independent Director (replacing Mr L P
Lupo on his resignation as a director on 18 May 2007),
the principal roles and responsibilities of which are
described elsewhere.
The other significant commitments of the Chairman
during 2007 are detailed in his biography on page 29.
The Board schedules eight meetings each year, but
arranges to meet at other times, as appropriate. Of the
nine board meetings held in 2007, Mr C Rodrigues
and Ms C P Wicks were both unable to attend the
one unscheduled meeting due to other business
commitments. In addition, the Chairman met during
the year with the non-executive directors without the
executive directors present.
The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved for its decision and approval. These include
the approval of the strategic and annual profit
plans, key public information releases (e.g. financial
statements), dividends, major acquisitions and
disposals, material contracts, treasury and other
group policies. The section “Internal control” on
pages 34 and 35 contains further information on
how the Board operates.
The Company seeks to ensure that the Board is
supplied with appropriate and timely information to
enable it to discharge its duties. The Board requests
additional information or variations to regular reporting
as it requires. A procedure exists for directors to seek
independent professional advice in the furtherance
of their duties, if necessary. All directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.

All directors receive an induction on joining the Board.
A combination of tailored Board and committee
agenda items and other Board activities, including
briefing sessions, assist the directors in continually
updating their skills and the knowledge and familiarity
with the Company required to fulfill their role both on
the Board and on Board committees. In addition,
external seminars, workshops and presentations are
made available to directors. The Company provides
the necessary resources for developing and updating
directors’ knowledge and capabilities.
The Chairman conducts an appraisal with each
director. The Senior Independent Director, having
consulted with the other directors, conducts an
appraisal interview with the Chairman. Each director
completes a questionnaire on the effectiveness
and processes of the Board and its committees.
The results are considered by the Board and the
individual committees.
Whilst all directors are expected to bring an
independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,
performance, resources (including key appointments)
and standards of conduct, the independent nonexecutive directors were selected and appointed
for this purpose.
The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the
Board through the Chairman on all governance matters.
Appointment and replacement of directors
A person may be appointed as a director of the
Company by the shareholders in general meeting by
ordinary resolution (requiring a simple majority of the
persons voting on the relevant resolution) or by the
directors; no person, other than a director retiring
(by rotation or otherwise), shall be appointed or
re-appointed a director at any general meeting unless
he or she is recommended by the directors or not less
than seven nor more than 35 clear days before the date
appointed for the meeting, notice is given to the
Company of the intention to propose that person for
appointment or re-appointment in the form and manner
set out in the Company’s articles of association.
Each director who is appointed by the directors (and
who has not been elected as a director of the
Company by the members at a general meeting held
in the interval since his or her appointment as a director
of the Company) is subject to election as a director
of the Company by the members at the first annual
general meeting following his or her appointment.
Each director is subject to re-election by the members
at the third annual general meeting following his or her
election or last re-election by the members in general
meeting (or at such earlier annual general meeting as
the directors may decide). The independent nonexecutive directors understand that the Board will
not automatically recommend their re-election by
shareholders. The Chairman and the independent nonexecutive directors are appointed for a specified term
of approximately three years, subject to re-election.
The Companies Act allows shareholders in general
meeting by ordinary resolution (requiring a simple
majority of the persons voting on the relevant
resolution) to remove any director before the expiration

of his or her period of office, but without prejudice to
any claim for damages which the director may have
for breach of any contract of service between him
or her and the Company.
A person also ceases to be a director if he or she
resigns in writing, ceases to be a director by virtue
of any provision of the Companies Act, becomes
prohibited by law from being a director, becomes
bankrupt or is the subject of a relevant insolvency
procedure, or is requested to resign by notice signed
by all the other directors, or if the Board so decides
following at least six months’ absence without leave
or he or she becomes subject to relevant procedures
under the mental health laws.
Powers of the Company’s directors
Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act,
the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company and to any directions given by shareholders
by special resolution, the Company’s articles of
association specify that the business of the Company
is to be managed by the directors, who may exercise
all the powers of the Company, whether relating to
the management of the business or not.
Board committees
The Board has four standing committees, all of which
have written terms of reference clearly setting out their
authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
audit, nomination and remuneration committees,
which are reviewed annually, can be viewed on the
Company’s website (www.ladbrokesplc.com).
Audit committee
The members of the committee are Mr N M H Jones
(appointed as a member and Chairman on 16 May
2003), Ms C P Wicks (appointed 1 June 2004) and
Mr H E Staunton (appointed 1 September 2006).
All members of the committee are independent nonexecutive directors. Appointments to the committee
are made by the Board at the recommendation of
the nomination committee, which consults with
the Chairman of the audit committee.
The Board has satisfied itself that the members
of the committee have recent and relevant
financial experience.
The committee is provided with sufficient resources to
undertake its duties. It has access to the services of the
Company Secretary (who acts as secretary to the
committee) and all other employees. The committee
is able to take independent legal or professional advice
when it believes it necessary to do so.
The committee meets as required, but not less
than three times a year. Four meetings of the audit
committee were held in 2007 and all the members
of the committee were in attendance. Although other
directors, including the Group Finance Director, attend
audit committee meetings, the committee also meets
for private discussions with the external auditor, who
attends all of its meetings, and can do so with the
internal auditor.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The main role and responsibilities of the committee
are to:
monitor the integrity of the financial statements
of the Company;
review the Company’s internal financial control and
risk management systems;
monitor and review the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function; and
oversee the Company’s relationship with the external
auditor including the recommendation to the Board
of its appointment and remuneration.
Should the committee’s monitoring and review
activities reveal any material cause for concern or
scope for improvement, it will make recommendations
to the Board on action needed to address the issue
or make improvements.
The main activities of the committee in 2007 were
as follows:
with the assistance of reports received from
management and the external auditor, the critical
review of the significant financial reporting issues in
connection with the preparation of the Company’s
financial and related formal statements;
assessing the scope and effectiveness of the
systems established to identify, assess, manage
and monitor financial and non-financial risks;
monitoring the integrity of the Company’s internal
financial controls.
The committee does so by reference to:
(a) summaries of business risks and
mitigating controls;
(b) regular reports and presentations from the
head of key risk functions, internal audit
and external audit;
(c) the results of the system of annual selfcertification of compliance with key controls
and procedures;
monitoring and reviewing the plans, work and
effectiveness of the internal audit function, including
any actions taken following any significant failures in
internal controls;
reviewing, with the external auditor, its terms of
engagement, the findings of its work, and at the end
of the audit process reviewing its effectiveness; and
reviewing the independence and objectivity of the
external auditor.
The external auditor reports to the committee
on the actions taken to comply with professional
and regulatory requirements and with best practice
designed to ensure its independence. The committee
has agreed a policy on the engagement of the external
auditor to supply non-audit services, the application
of which it monitors. The policy, which can be viewed
at the Company’s website (www.ladbrokesplc.com),
specifies services that may not be provided and
contains a level of cost at which committee approval
is required enabling the committee to satisfy itself that
auditor objectivity and independence are safeguarded.
Finance committee
This committee meets as required to deal with all
routine business that excludes matters that are
specifically reserved to the Board or to another
committee and specific matters delegated to it by
the Board requiring attention between scheduled
Board meetings. Any two directors can conduct
the business of this committee.
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Nomination committee
The members of the committee are the Chairman of
the Board and two or more independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The current members
of the committee are Sir Ian Robinson (Chairman)
(appointed as a member and Chairman on 1 October
2001), Mr N M H Jones (appointed 16 May 2003) and
Mr C J Rodrigues (appointed 18 May 2007). Mr L P
Lupo resigned from the committee on 18 May 2007.
Appointments to the committee are made by the Board.
The committee is provided with sufficient resources
to undertake its duties. It has access to the services of
the Company Secretary (who acts as secretary to the
committee) and all other employees. The committee is
able to take independent legal and professional advice
when it believes it necessary to do so.
The committee meets as required but not less than
twice a year. Two meetings of the committee were held
in 2007 and all the members of the committee were
in attendance.
The main role and responsibilities of the committee
are to:
review the structure, size and composition of the
Board (which includes an objective and
comprehensive evaluation of the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience of the Board) and make
recommendations to the Board with regard to
any changes;
consider succession planning for the directors and
other senior executives and make recommendations
to the Board;
identify and nominate for the approval of the Board
candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when
they arise;
review the leadership of the Company to ensure the
continued ability of the Company to compete
effectively in the marketplace;
recommend candidates for the role of Senior
Independent Director and for membership of the
audit and remuneration committees, in consultation
with the Chairmen of those committees; and
make recommendations to the Board concerning
the re-appointment of non-executive directors at the
end of their specified term of office and the re-election
by shareholders of any director under the retirement
by rotation provisions.
The committee performed the above activities
as necessary in 2007.
During 2007 one executive director, Mr B G Wallace,
was appointed (on 5 March 2007). Mr Wallace
replaced Ms R P Thorne as finance director. Due to
Mr Wallace’s recent service with the Company (see
his biography on page 28) he was well known by the
members of the committee and accordingly external
advice or external advertising had not been used
in making his appointment.
Remuneration committee
Details of the remuneration committee, including
membership, are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 38 to 48, which
should be read in conjunction with this section
of this report.

Internal control
The Board has ultimate responsibility for the system
of internal control operating throughout the Group
and for reviewing its effectiveness. No system of
internal control can provide absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Group’s system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and to provide
the Board with reasonable assurance that potential
problems will normally be prevented or will be detected
in a timely manner for appropriate action.
The Company has had procedures in place throughout
the year and up to 28 February 2008, the date of
approval of this Annual Report, which accord with the
Internal Control Guidance for Directors on the
Combined Code published in September 1999.
The Board has delegated the detailed design of the
system of internal control to the executive directors.
The control framework and key procedures during
2007 were as follows:
the Group operates through two divisions European
Retail and Remote Betting and Gaming.
Responsibilities for managing business risks arising
were defined by the Board;
the executive directors met regularly together
and with other senior executives (the executive
committee) to consider Group financial performance,
business development and Group management
issues. Divisional management comprised
executives with appropriate functional
responsibilities. Divisional management met regularly
to manage their respective businesses;
the Board established corporate strategy and
Group business objectives. Divisional management
integrated such objectives into business strategies
for presentation to the Board with supporting
financial objectives;
there was an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced
by the Group. Major business risks and their financial
implications were appraised by the responsible
executives and endorsed by the divisional
management. This was an integral part of the
strategic planning process. The appropriateness
of controls was considered by executives, having
regard to cost/benefit, materiality and the likelihood
of risks crystallising. Key risks and actions to mitigate
those risks were considered at each regular Board
meeting and were formally reviewed and approved
by the Board twice yearly;
divisional budgets, containing financial and operating
targets, capital expenditure proposals and performance
indicators, were reviewed by the executive directors
and supported divisional business strategies. The
Group profit plan was approved by the Board;
reports on Group and divisional performances
were regularly provided to directors and discussed
at Board meetings. Performance against both
budgets and objectives together with management
of business risks, were reviewed with divisional
management, as were forecasts and material
sensitivities. The Board regularly received reports
from key executives and functional heads covering
areas such as operations, forecasts, business
development, strategic planning, human resources,
legal and corporate matters, compliance, health
and safety and corporate responsibility;
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there was a group-wide policy governing appraisal
and approval of investment expenditure and asset
disposals. Major projects were reported on at each
regular Board meeting. Post investment audits were
undertaken on a systematic basis and were formally
reviewed by the Board twice yearly;
key policies and control procedures (including
treasury, compliance and information system
controls) are documented in manuals having
group-wide application. Operating companies
also used procedure manuals that integrated
with Group controls;
a system of annual self-certification of compliance
with key controls and procedures was operated
throughout the Group;
the Group had an internal audit function, outsourced
to Deloitte & Touche LLP, which reported to
management on the Group’s operations; and
to underpin the effectiveness of controls, it was
the Group’s policy to recruit and develop
management and staff of high calibre, integrity
and with appropriate disciplines. High standards
of business ethics and compliance with laws,
regulations and internal policies were demanded
from staff at all levels.
The role of the audit committee in reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of internal control is
explained in the section ‘Audit committee’ on pages
33 and 34.
The Board also conducts an assessment of
the effectiveness of the internal control system.
The assessment takes account of all significant
aspects of internal control including: risk assessment;
the control environment and control activities;
information and communication; and monitoring.
Relations with shareholders
There is a regular programme of meetings with major
institutional shareholders to consider the Group’s
performance and prospects. In addition, presentations
are made twice yearly after the announcement of
results, the details of which, together with the Group’s
financial reports and announcements, can be
accessed via the Group’s internet site. The Chairman
met in 2007 with several institutional investors and
their representative bodies in addition to results
presentations and the Annual General Meeting. Other
directors are available to meet the Company’s major
shareholders if requested.
The Senior Independent Director is available to
shareholders if they have concerns, which contact
through the usual channels of Chairman, Chief
Executive and Finance Director has failed to solve
or for which such contact is inappropriate.
The Board receives a monthly market report from the
Company’s brokers who also present to the Board
annually. A twice-yearly presentation is made to the
Board reporting on the programme of meetings with
major institutional shareholders and a report on
investor relations is given at each board meeting.
Principles of ownership, corporate governance and
voting guidelines issued by the Company’s major
institutional shareholders, their representative bodies
and advisory organisations are circulated to, and
considered by, the Board.
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The Company corresponds regularly on a range
of subjects with its individual shareholders who have
an opportunity to question the Board at the Annual
General Meeting. A presentation was given to the
members of the UK Shareholders Association during
the year. For further information on our relations
with shareholders please refer to our Investor
Relations/Shareholder Review on pages 117 to 119.
Rights attaching to the shares and restrictions
on voting and transfer
The Company’s share capital is £253.0 million divided
into 892,941,175 ordinary shares of 281⁄3p each.
Subject to any suspension or abrogation of rights
pursuant to relevant law or the Company’s articles of
association, the ordinary shares confer on their holders
(other than the Company in respect of its treasury shares):
(a) the right to receive out of profits available for
distribution such dividends as may be agreed to be
paid (in the case of a final dividend in an amount not
exceeding the amount recommended by the Board
as approved by shareholders in general meeting
or in the case of an interim dividend in an amount
determined by the Board) – all dividends unclaimed
for a period of 12 years after having become due
for payment are forfeited automatically and cease
to remain owing by the Company;
(b) the right, on a return of assets on a liquidation,
reduction of capital or otherwise, to share in the
surplus assets of the Company remaining after
payment of its liabilities pari passu with the other
holders of ordinary shares; and
(c) the right to receive notice of and to attend and
speak and vote in person or by proxy at any general
meeting of the Company – on a show of hands
every member present or represented and voting
has one vote and on a poll every member present
or represented and voting has one vote for every
share of which that member is the holder; the
appointment of a proxy must be received not less
than 48 hours before the time of the holding of the
relevant meeting or adjourned meeting or in the
case of a poll taken otherwise than at or on the
same day as the relevant meeting or adjourned
meeting be received after the poll has been
demanded and not less than 24 hours before
the time appointed for the taking of the poll.

A member may choose whether his or her shares are
evidenced by share certificates (certificated shares)
or held in electronic (uncertificated) form in CREST
(the UK electronic settlement system). Any member
may transfer all or any of his or her shares subject in
the case of certificated shares to the rules set out in
the Company’s articles of association or in the case
of uncertificated shares the regulations governing the
operation of CREST (which allow the directors to refuse
to register a transfer as therein set out); the transferor
remains the holder of the shares until the name of the
transferee is entered in the register of members. The
directors may refuse to register a transfer of certificated
shares in favour of more than four persons jointly or
where there is no adequate evidence of ownership or
the transfer is not duly stamped (if so required). The
directors may also refuse to register a share transfer
if it is in respect of a certificated share which is not fully
paid up or on which the Company has a lien provided
that, where the share transfer is in respect of any share
admitted to the Official List maintained by the UK
Listing Authority, any such discretion may not be
exercised so as to prevent dealings taking place on
an open and proper basis, or if in the opinion of the
directors (and with the concurrence of the UK Listing
Authority) exceptional circumstances so warrant
provided that the exercise of such power will not
disturb the market in those shares. Whilst there are
no squeeze-out and sell out rules relating to the shares
in the Company’s articles of association, shareholders
are subject to the compulsory acquisition provisions in
sections 974 to 991 of the Companies Act 2006 and
can be required by the Company to transfer their
shares following certain action by a gambling industry
regulator (as more specifically set out in the Company’s
articles of association).
Amendment of the Company’s articles
of association
The Company’s articles of association may be
amended by the members of the Company by special
resolution (requiring a majority of at least 75 per cent
of the persons voting on the relevant resolution).

These rights can be suspended. If the member, or any
other person appearing to be interested in shares held
by that member, has failed to comply with a notice
pursuant to section 793 of the Companies Act 2006
(notice by company requiring information about
interests in its shares) the Company can suspend
(until one week after the default ceases) the right to
attend and speak and vote at a general meeting and
if the shares represent at least 0.25 per cent of their
class the Company can withhold any dividend or other
money payable in respect of the shares and refuse
to accept certain transfers of the relevant shares. In
addition following certain action by a gambling industry
regulator (as more specifically set out in the Company’s
articles of association) the Company may suspend all
or some of the rights attaching to all or some of the
shares held by any relevant shareholder to attend
and to speak at meetings and to vote, to receive any
dividend or other money payable in respect of the
shares, and to the issue of further shares or other
securities in respect of the shares.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report
for the year ended 31 December 2007.
Business review
A review of the Group’s activities and future
developments, which fulfils the requirements of the
business review, including the financial performance
during the year, key performance indicators and a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group is included in the business reviews,
the financial review and the key performance indicators
on pages 10 to 27 and pages 30 to 32 which form part
of this report. The description of the Group’s corporate
governance arrangements on pages 33 to 35 also
forms part of this report. A description of the Group’s
financial risk management objectives and policies and
its exposure to price, credit liquidity and cash flow risk
is contained in note 26 to the consolidated accounts
on page 79. Other matters material to the appreciation
of the Group’s position are contained in the Chairman’s
statement on pages 6 and 7 and the Chief Executive’s
statement on pages 8 and 9.
Results
The results for the year are shown in the consolidated
income statement on page 50.
Dividends
The directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of 9.05 pence on each of the ordinary shares
entitled thereto, making a total of 13.90 pence per share
for the year. Subject to shareholders’ approval at the
Annual General Meeting to be held on 16 May 2008,
the final dividend is expected to be paid on 2 June 2008
to shareholders registered on 7 March 2008.

Share capital
On 9 August 2007 the Board announced the
implementation of a share buyback programme
pursuant to an authority granted by shareholders
at the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on
18 May 2007. It was intended that over time, the
Company would purchase shares in order to move
towards its target range of 3.5 to 3.75 times net debt
to historic EBITDA (excluding Telephone High Rollers)
ratio. The purchase of shares would be dependent
on market conditions and would also take into
account the cash generated in the business and
other investment opportunities that might arise over
time. During the period from 10 August 2007 to 27
February 2008, the Company made market purchases
of 30,184,095 of its own shares of 281⁄3p for a total
consideration, including transaction costs, of £100.6
million and the shares are held as treasury shares.
At 27 February 2008, the Company had been notified
of the following holdings of voting rights attaching
to the Company’s shares in accordance with the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules: Citigroup Global
Markets UK Equity Limited – 6.66 per cent, Eminence,
LLC – 3.90 per cent, Legal and General Investment
Management Limited – 4.08 per cent, MFS Investment
Management – 5.04 per cent and Morgan Stanley
Investment Management Limited – 5.79 per cent.
Further details in respect of the share capital and
purchases by the Company of its own shares are
shown on pages 85 and 86, note 29 which forms
part of this report.

Biographical details of all the directors are on pages
28 and 29.

Significant agreements that take effect,
alter or terminate upon a change of control
following a takeover bid
The agreements between Ladbrokes Group Finance
plc, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and
12 separate banks for the provision by the banks
of revolving credit facilities of up to £725 million on
a committed basis provide that the banks may
give notice of cancellation if a change of control
occurs. On cancellation the amounts drawn would
be immediately repayable. In the context of a
takeover bid, the acquirer would normally
arrange substitute facilities.

Details of directors’ service contracts, their share
interests and other details of their remuneration
by the Company are contained in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 38 to 48.

Corporate responsibility
A report on Corporate responsibility (CR) is on
the Company’s website (www.ladbrokesplc.com)
and highlights are given on pages 22 to 27.

Auditor and disclosure of information
to the auditor
Each of the directors in office as of the date of approval
of this report confirms that so far as he/she is aware,
there is no relevant audit information (being information
needed by the auditor in connection with preparing its
report) of which the auditor is unaware and that he/she
has taken the steps that he/she ought to have taken
as a director in order to make himself/herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the auditor is aware of that information.

The processes described in the section “Internal
control” on pages 34 and 35 applied to CR, as did
the practices described on page 33 for assisting the
directors to update their knowledge. In addition to
business presentations regularly made to the Board
at which CR was considered as appropriate, the Board
conducts an annual CR review and Board members
regularly receive CR updates. CR performance is
included in divisional accountability systems and
remuneration arrangements. The remuneration
committee in determining executive remuneration
takes into account CR matters as described in
the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 38.

Annual General Meeting
This year’s Annual General Meeting will be held at the
Queen Elizabeth II Conference Centre on 16 May 2008
at 11.00am.
Directors
The directors during the year were those listed
on pages 28 and 29 together with Ms R P Thorne
who resigned on 12 March 2007 and Mr L P Lupo
who resigned on 18 May 2007.
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The risks and opportunities relating to CR in 2007
primarily revolved around the reputation of the Group
and the quality of its brands. Of particular importance
was the promotion of responsible gambling and the
protection of children and the vulnerable. CR also
impacted (i) the performance of the Group’s employees
on whom the Group relies for the provision of high
quality services to customers and (ii) the health
and safety of these employees and the customers
they serve.
Performance indicators continued to be developed
in accordance with group-wide CR. No breaches
of CR policies and procedures material to the Group
were identified by the Board in 2007.
The identification and management of CR issues,
the CR reporting framework and accuracy of any
associated data has been verified by the Company’s
CR adviser, Acona Group AS.
Employee policies
The Board values two-way communication between
senior management and employees on all matters
affecting the welfare of the business. As well as regular
management visits to operating units, conferences
and meetings, communication is by video, intranet
and audio programmes.
Throughout the Group via staff councils, employees
are encouraged to be involved in the running of the
business and opinion surveys are undertaken. The
Company’s Annual Report is made available to staff
and, together with regular staff magazines, provides
employees with a greater awareness of the Group’s
performance as well as the financial and economic
factors that affect it.
In addition, those employees who are eligible are
also encouraged to become involved in the Group’s
performance through participation in share schemes.
During 2007, the Company offered free shares for a
value of up to £250 to employees as they completed
one year’s service with the Group.
Throughout the Group, the principles of equal
opportunities are recognised in the formulation
and development of employment policies.
It is the Company’s policy to give full and fair
consideration to applications from people with
disabilities, having regard to their particular aptitudes
and abilities. If an employee becomes disabled, the
Company’s objective is the continued provision
of suitable employment, either in the same or an
alternative position, with appropriate training being
given if necessary. Employees with disabilities share
in the opportunities for training, career development
and promotion.
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Directors’ indemnities and insurance
The Company continues to maintain Directors and
Officers liability insurance. In accordance with the
Company’s articles of association, the Company
entered into a deed of indemnity to the extent
permitted by law with each of the directors on
22 January 2008.
Charitable donations
During 2007, in addition to donations made
to overseas charities, Group companies donated
£720,000 to UK charitable organisations.
Supplier payment policy
The Company agrees payment terms for its business
transactions when goods and services are ordered.
It ensures that suppliers are aware of the terms
of payment and the relevant terms are included
in contracts where appropriate.
Subject to satisfactory performance by the supplier,
arrangements are adhered to when making payments.
At the year-end, the Company had no trade creditors.
Going concern
The directors consider that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that it is therefore appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its
financial statements.
By order of the Board
M J Noble
Secretary
28 February 2008
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Introduction
The Board entrusts the remuneration committee with the responsibility for the
remuneration policy in respect of the executive directors and senior executives.

The committee and Board consider that it is in the interests of shareholders
to secure some of its most talented and marketable individuals by providing fully
competitive remuneration.

In respect of other employees the executive directors have been delegated
responsibility to operate within the remuneration strategy and policies framework
established by the Board.

The committee has discretion to consider corporate performance on environmental,
social and governance (ESG) issues when setting the remuneration of executive
directors. The committee has ensured that ESG risks are not being raised by
the incentive structure for senior management inadvertently motivating
irresponsible behaviour.

Remuneration committee composition
During the year the remuneration committee comprised of independent
non-executive directors and the non-executive Chairman of the Board, namely:
Mr C J Rodrigues (appointed Chairman of the committee 18 May 2007)
Mr L P Lupo – resigned 18 May 2007
Mr H E Staunton – appointed 18 May 2007
Mr J F Jarvis
Sir Ian Robinson
Appointments to the committee are made by the Board at the recommendation
of the nomination committee, which consults with the Chairman of the
remuneration committee.
The committee also normally invites the Chief Executive and the HR Director
to attend committee meetings concerning proposals relating to the remuneration
of executive directors, other than when their personal remuneration is discussed.
The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the committee.
The committee met six times in 2007. There was full attendance in the year. The
committee retained independent remuneration consultants (Deloitte & Touche LLP)
and has taken advice during the year from them in relation to executive remuneration
matters. Deloitte & Touche LLP also provides the Company with outsourced internal
audit and miscellaneous tax services. SJ Berwin LLP, one of the Company’s corporate
lawyers, has also provided material assistance. In forming the remuneration policy,
the best practice provisions as set out in The 2006 Combined Code have been
followed and the Guidelines issued by the Association of British Insurers (ABI)
and the National Association of Pensions Funds (NAPF) have been noted.
Remuneration policy
Following a full review of the executive directors’ remuneration structure in 2006
and its subsequent approval at the 2007 Annual General Meeting, there has been
an opportunity in 2007 to embed the key elements of the review, which were to:
ensure Ladbrokes’ remuneration strategy is appropriate for a betting and gaming
business;
provide a remuneration framework that enables the Company to retain and
motivate key individuals in order to drive the business forward; and
ensure the remuneration arrangements remain strongly aligned with shareholder
value creation.
Those elements were underpinned by the key principles of the remuneration strategy
for executive directors, which should;
support the business strategy;
be aligned with the creation of shareholder value;
be clear and simple;
reward good performance;
accord with best practice; and
encourage and require employee share ownership.
As an established and successful operator in the gaming arena, Ladbrokes has
always been a source of talent for the industry. Over the last year, market pressures
have intensified significantly due to a shortage of executive talent in the sector. At the
same time, many competitors have been addressing succession issues and seeking
to recruit experienced business leaders from a limited talent pool.
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Fixed versus variable remuneration
All elements of the remuneration package have been, and will continue to be, regularly
reviewed to ensure that the total provision remains appropriate and competitive.
The variation between fixed and variable remuneration remains unchanged in 2007
for both target and maximum performance.
The total package for executives is driven by performance. At target level 40 per cent
is fixed while the remaining 60 per cent is variable.This shifts at maximum performance
to around 20 per cent fixed remuneration and 80 per cent variable.
The Company offers benefits including pension, company cars and fuel, private
healthcare and life assurance. Incentives and benefits are non-pensionable.
Details of the key elements of the remuneration strategy are set out below:
Base salary
Company policy is to set base salaries at competitive levels and this continues
to be the aim.
The committee annually reviews the base salaries of the senior executive
group, including executive directors, taking into account business and personal
performance. Data is also provided by independent remuneration consultants
with regard to market practice of companies of a similar size and complexity.
In this context, all our executives with one exception received a salary adjustment
capped at three per cent in January 2008 as part of our cost management
programme. The exception was John O’Reilly who holds the position of Managing
Director, Remote Betting and Gaming and received a 21 per cent increase. This
increase reflected the need to retain an individual who is key to driving the business
forward and has highly marketable skills in an intensely competitive sector.
Annual bonus
Executive directors participate in the senior executive annual bonus plan and
deferred share plan. These are focussed upon the annual profit plan as agreed
by the Board and the achievement of key personal objectives.
Arrangements for 2007 and subsequent years
The maximum bonus opportunity under the annual and deferred bonus plans
remains unchanged at 150 per cent for executive directors and 170 per cent
for the Chief Executive.
Of the total bonus opportunity, approximately 75 per cent is based upon financial
performance and the balance is based upon personal performance objectives.
These objectives are agreed and approved by the remuneration committee
at the beginning of each financial year.
The minimum threshold (below which no payments are made) remains
at 95 per cent of profit plan and the maximum threshold continues to be
105 per cent of profit plan.
One third of any annual bonus earned will be delivered in shares allocated
conditionally upon continued employment (subject to certain exceptions) until
the third anniversary of the award. Shares awarded under the plans will be
purchased in the market.
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From 2008 onwards, the threshold level of performance below which no payout would
be made will be 95 per cent of the core business plan (i.e. excluding High Rollers).
Provided the threshold performance target is achieved for the core business then
25 per cent of gains or losses from high rolling business will be counted towards
the achievement of targets and the determination of the overall bonus award.
These amendments to the bonus have been made in order to address the volatility
caused by high rollers gains and losses during any performance period.
Longer term incentives
Following the simplification of the long-term incentive framework in 2007, the
strategy in 2008 remains unchanged with the Performance Share Plan being
the sole long-term incentive arrangement being used for executive directors.

The schemes continue to remain in place for eligible employees below executive
director level and remain unchanged from 2007. The options continue to be subject
to an EPS performance condition under which EPS growth in a three-year period
must exceed the increase in RPI by the following tiered targets:
EPS growth

Below Board level the Company continues to utilise option plans within
a flexible incentive and retention framework.
Performance Share Plan (PSP) – Arrangements for 2007 and 2008
Following shareholder approval at the 2007 Annual General Meeting, awards
are made under the PSP and are limited to a number of participants (currently nine
individuals) including the executive directors and a number of key senior executives,
as determined by the committee from time to time. Annual awards will normally
be made up to a maximum of 175 per cent of base salary for executive directors.
In exceptional circumstances (e.g. recruitment or retention) an award of up
to 250 per cent of base salary may be made at the committee’s discretion.
At the end of the performance period, participants will normally be entitled
to receive the value of the reinvested dividends that would be accrued on the
number of shares that ultimately vest.
Vesting of awards is subject to achievement of performance targets over
a three-year performance period. Awards lapse on a participant ceasing to be
employed, unless the committee determines otherwise. 50 per cent of the award
will be based on TSR performance of the Company relative to a select comparator
group of industry peers. 50 per cent will be subject to achievement of an absolute
EPS growth target. The use of a balance of both TSR and EPS performance
conditions is consistent with market practice.
For the TSR proportion of the 2008 PSP award the same comparator group
used for the 2007 PSP awards, is proposed as follows:
888 Holdings; Bet and Win; Boyd Gaming; Enterprise Inns; Harrahs Entertainment;
Lottomatica; Mitchells and Butlers; OPAP; Paddy Power; Partygaming; Punch
Taverns; Rank Group; Sportingbet; Whitbread and William Hill.
The comparator group will continue to be reviewed to ensure that it remains relevant
to Ladbrokes’ business.
Performance criteria for 2007 PSP award
Performance level

Share option plans
Following the review of the remuneration arrangements for executive directors
in 2006 and the subsequent approval at the Annual General Meeting in 2007,
executive directors no longer normally participate in the following share plans:
a UK scheme approved by Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs (HMRC)
(‘the 1978 scheme’); and
an international share option scheme (‘international scheme’).

RPI + 9%
RPI + 12%
RPI + 15%

Proportion of annual grant vesting

2/3
5/6
Full vesting

For awards made from 2008 onwards EPS growth will not include gains or losses
from high rollers business.
Retirement benefits
Following the A-Day pensions review, the pre-A-Day Revenue limits regime has been
maintained as the framework for the Ladbrokes Pension Plan (LPP) (formerly the
Hilton Group Pension Plan), including an LPP-specific Earnings Cap.
Executive directors and senior executives have a choice between:
(i) subject to the discretion of the Company membership of the Executive Section
of the LPP plus a cash supplement of up to 30 per cent of base salary above
the Earnings Cap; or
(ii) a cash supplement of up to 30 per cent of base salary in lieu of membership
of the LPP.
Further details of the retirement benefits of individual executive directors are set out
on page 46.
Executive directors’ shareholding guidelines
Personal shareholding guidelines require executive directors to build up personal
shareholdings equivalent in value to at least one year’s base salary. It is intended
that the specified ownership level will be achieved through the retention of shares
earned under the Company’s incentive plans.
With the exception of Mr B G Wallace, who joined the Group on 5 March 2007, each
of the executive directors had at the date of the report personal shareholdings in
excess of one year’s base salary including deferred shares awarded under the 2007
Annual Bonus Plan. See page 47.

TSR % vesting levels

Below median
Median
Upper quartile

0
25
100

Vesting will be on a straight-line basis between the median and upper
quartile positioning.
The TSR performance criteria reflecting best practice guidelines and market norms
was made more challenging so that at median performance only 25 per cent of the
maximum entitlement would vest whereas previously 40 per cent vested at
the minimum vesting level.
Performance level

Below 6% per annum
6% per annum
10% per annum

EPS growth % vesting levels

0
25
100

For awards made from 2008 onwards EPS growth will not include gains or losses
from high rollers business.
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Service contracts
In line with the Company’s policy, all executive directors are employed
on conventional one-year rolling contracts as follows:
Date of
contract

Company
notice period

Director
notice period

20 December 2006
1 January 2007
1 January 2007
5 March 2007

1 year
1 year
1 year
1 year

6 months
6 months
6 months
6 months

Name

C Bell
J P O’Reilly
A S Ross
B G Wallace

New appointments to the Board will also normally be made on a one-year rolling
contract.
The Company normally expects executive directors, in case of a breach of contract,
to mitigate their loss. In any specific case that may arise, the committee will carefully
consider any compensatory payments having regard to performance, age, service,
health and other circumstances that are relevant.
Non-executive directors
The committee determines the fees of the Chairman of the Board and the Board as
a whole determines the remuneration of each of the other non-executive directors.
Non-executive directors receive fees that are set relative to median market practice
and are regularly reviewed.
Non-executive directors are not eligible for annual bonus, share incentives, pension
or other benefits.
Non-executive directors are retained on the terms set out in their letter of
appointment; they do not have service contracts with either the Company or
any of its subsidiaries. The appointment of a non-executive director is terminable
without notice.
The standard letter of appointment for non-executive directors is available for
inspection upon request.
Performance graph
As the Company is a constituent company of the FTSE250, the FTSE250
index provides an appropriate indication of market movements against which
to benchmark the Company’s performance. The chart below summarises
the Company’s TSR performance against the FTSE250 index over the five year
period ended 31 December 2007.
HISTORICAL TSR PERFORMANCE AGAINST FTSE250 GROWTH IN THE VALUE
OF A HYPOTHETICAL £100 HOLDING OVER FIVE YEARS

Value of hypothetical £100 holding

300
Ladbrokes
FTSE250

250
200
150
100
50
0
31.12.02

31.12.03

31.12.04
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31.12.05

31.12.06

31.12.07

All-employee incentive arrangements
In addition to the incentive arrangements previously outlined, two share plans
are operated in which all UK employees, subject to minimum service requirements,
are eligible to participate. The share plans are operated in order to strengthen and
widen employee share ownership. These are summarised below.
Savings related share option scheme
The Company offers a savings related share option scheme, which is approved
by HMRC (‘the 1983 scheme’), and is linked to a Save-As-You-Earn contract under
which participants save a regular monthly sum by deduction from earnings up to
£250 per month for either three or five years. Subject to common service criteria,
the 1983 scheme is open to all UK employees (including executive directors).
Options are normally exercisable during a period of six months following the expiry
of three and five years (as previously selected by the participant) from the dates of
grant and there are no performance conditions. Options prices are calculated by
reference to the average mid-market quotation of shares as shown by the Stock
Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, discounted by up to 20 per cent per share.
Share incentive plan
The Company offers a share incentive plan, approved by HMRC. The plan is open
to all UK employees (including executive directors) who have completed at least
12 months service. To encourage employee participation, the Company provides
a match of one bonus share for every two salary shares purchased by employees.
The bonus shares are held conditionally upon satisfaction of a one-year service
requirement. The maximum monthly contribution by employees has been set
at £75 per month.
The Company also offers Free Shares up to a value of £250 to all employees
as they complete one year’s service with the Company.
On a voluntary basis, directors do not participate in the Freeshare plan.
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Audited information
The following table shows the emoluments of the executive directors and non-executive directors in the year ended 31 December 2007 excluding gains from the exercise
of share options and contributions to money purchase schemes.

Name

Executive Directors
C Bell
J P O’Reilly
A S Ross
B G Wallace (appointed 5 March 2007) (resigned 23 February 2006)
R P Thorne (loss of office 12 March 2007)(iv)

Basic salary
and fees(i)
£000

Annual
bonus(ii)
£000

Benefits
in kind
£000

Compensation
Pension Performance
for loss
(iii)
supplement
share plan
of office
£000
£000
£000

2007
Total
£000

2006
Total
£000

567
412
268
397
126

950
383
301
672
62

31
22
24
10
9

136
90
–
119
36

404
202
187
–
–

–
–
–
–
642

2,088
1,109
780
1,198
875

1,584
904
709
1,256(v)
513

1,770

2,368

96

381

793

642

6,050

4,966

Non-Executive Directors(vi)
Sir Ian Robinson
J F Jarvis
C Rodrigues
H E Staunton
C P Wicks
N M H Jones
L P Lupo (resigned 18 May 2007)

208
48
54
48
48
58
21

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

208
48
54
48
48
58
21

208
23
42
15
42
51
61

Total

485

–

–

–

–

–

485

442

Total

(i)Annual

basic salaries on 1 January 2007 were Mr C Bell £566,500; Mr J P O’Reilly £412,000 and Mr A S Ross £267,800. The annual basic salary at appointment
on 5 March 2007 for Mr B G Wallace was £480,000, a level similar to his previous salary with the Group. The Board considered this to be an appropriate salary level
in order to recruit a highly talented and experienced individual with an in-depth knowledge of Ladbrokes’ business.
With effect from 1 January 2008, the annual basic salaries for Mr C Bell, Mr A S Ross and Mr B G Wallace were increased by 3 per cent to £583,500, £275,850 and £494,400
respectively in line with broader salary policy. Mr J P O’Reilly’s base salary was increased by 21 per cent to £500,000. This increase reflects his marketability in an intensely
competitive sector and his outstanding achievement in relation to high rollers business.
The following executive directors serve elsewhere as non-executive directors and retained fees in 2007 as follows: Mr C Bell £63,210; Mr J P O’Reilly £9,589; Mr A S Ross
£25,000 and Mr B G Wallace £86,046.

(ii)The

annual bonus plan is focused upon the annual profit plans as agreed by the Board and the achievement of key personal objectives. For 2007, the following total bonuses
were achieved:

Individual

C Bell
J P O’Reilly
A S Ross
B G Wallace

Financial
objectives
%

Personal
objectives
%

Total
%

73.53
36.67
55.00
73.33

25.03
25.34
20.00
20.00

98.56
62.01
75.00
93.33

In addition to the amounts shown above in note (ii) and pursuant to the provisions of the annual bonus plan (see page 38) 87,625, 35,332, 27,780 and 61,965 shares
will be delivered in 2011 to Messrs C Bell, J P O’Reilly, A S Ross and B G Wallace respectively.
(iii)In respect of the awards made on 24 February 2005 under the PSP, the Company achieved ninth position against the selected comparator group and accordingly
40 per cent of that portion of the award will vest. The operating profits target for the Betting and Gaming Division was met in full. Accordingly, 70 per cent of the awards
have been earned as at 31 December 2007 for Messrs C Bell, J P O’Reilly and A S Ross. The number of shares that will vest on 29 February 2008 are:
Mr C Bell 124,906; Mr J P O’Reilly 62,453 and Mr A S Ross 57,726. At the Company’s market share price of 323.25 pence at 31 December 2007, these had a value
of £403,761, £201,880 and £186,600 respectively and these amounts are shown in the table above.
(iv)Ms R P Thorne stepped down from the Board of the Company on 12 March 2007 and received the following: one year’s basic salary (£360,500) paid in two installments
to allow for possible mitigation, payments in lieu of benefits in kind (£35,829) and pension salary supplement (£108,151). She also received a cash payment of £61,125
in respect of bonus earned for 2006 and a payment of £73,816 was made in respect of her 2006 PSP award pro-rated for both time and performance.
(v)Mr B G Wallace’s remuneration until his resignation on 23 February 2006 consisted of basic pay, annual bonus, benefits in kind, a pension supplement and awards which
vested under the performance share plans, as detailed in the Annual Report and Accounts 2006.
(vi)The non-executive directors’ only remuneration from the Company is a fee: Sir Ian Robinson (Chairman): £208,425 per annum: each other non-executive director increased
to £43,000 per annum (2007: £38,000 per annum) with effect from, 1 July 2007. The additional fee paid to the Chairman of the audit and remuneration committees
is £10,000 per annum and an additional fee of £7,000 per annum is available for membership of one or both of the audit and remuneration committees (other than in
respect of the Chairman of the Board’s membership of the remuneration committee). There was no increase in the remuneration of the Chairman or other non-executive
directors as at 1 January 2008.
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Share option schemes
The number of options granted to the executive directors in 2007 and outstanding options as at 31 December 2007 (or earlier date of cessation) are set out below:

Number of
options at
31 Dec 06

Options
granted
during
the year

Options
exercised
during
the year

Number of
options at
31 Dec 07
(or earlier
date of
cessation)

C Bell
(i) 1978 Share Option Scheme

10,080

–

–

10,080

Total

10,080

–

–

260,170
90,726
103,225
122,696
67,727
264,664
155,826
85,190
70,000

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

1,220,224

(iii) 1983 Savings related
Share Option Scheme

Exercise
price
(pence)

Market
price at
date of
exercise
(pence)

Gain made
on exercise
£000

Date
from which
exercisable

Expiry
date

08.04.05

297.60

–

–

08.04.08

08.04.15

10,080

–

–

–

–

–

–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

260,170
90,726
103,225
122,696
67,727
264,664
155,826
85,190
70,000

25.04.06
08.04.05
03.09.04
25.03.04
16.09.03
04.04.03
11.09.02
17.04.02
24.04.98

422.80
297.60
260.19
218.90
184.45
141.60
177.65
247.30
337.45

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

25.04.09
08.04.08
03.09.07
25.03.07
16.09.06
04.04.06
11.09.05
17.04.05
24.04.01

25.04.16
08.04.15
03.09.14
25.03.14
16.09.13
04.04.13
11.09.12
17.04.12
24.04.08

–

–

1,220,224

–

–

–

–

–

–

8,712
–

–
4,684

8,712
–

–
4,684

18.06.02
25.06.07

189.96
349.56

402.00
–

18.47
–

01.08.07
01.08.12

31.01.08
31.01.13

Total

8,712

4,684

8,712

4,684

–

–

–

18.47

–

–

J P O’Reilly
(i) 1978 Share Option Scheme

7,095

–

–

7,095

25.04.06

422.80

–

–

25.04.09

25.04.16

Total

7,095

–

–

7,095

–

–

–

–

–

–

(ii) International Share Option Scheme

52,369
134,816
40,000
40,000
40,000
25,000

–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–

52,369
134,816
40,000
40,000
40,000
25,000

01.09.06
25.04.06
08.04.05
03.09.04
25.03.04
16.09.03

381.90
422.80
297.60
260.19
218.90
184.45

–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–

01.09.09
25.04.09
08.04.08
03.09.07
25.03.07
16.09.06

01.09.16
25.04.16
08.04.15
03.09.14
25.03.14
16.09.13

Total

332,185

–

–

332,185

–

–

–

–

–

–

(iii)1983 Savings related
Share Option Scheme

3,706
3,105
–

–
–
1,873

3,706
–
–

–
3,105
1,873

26.06.01
28.06.06
25.06.07

182.12
311.08
349.56

438.50
–
–

9.50
–
–

01.08.06
01.08.11
01.08.12

31.01.07
31.01.12
31.01.13

Total

6,811

1,873

3,706

4,978

–

–

–

9.50

–

–

Plan

(ii) International Share Option Scheme

Total
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Share option schemes continued

Number of
options at
31 Dec 06

Options
granted
during
the year

Options
exercised
during
the year

Number of
options at
31 Dec 07
(or earlier
date of
cessation)

3,041
6,270

–
–

–
–

3,041
6,270

9,311

–

–

(ii) International Share Option Scheme

122,989
74,000
50,887
62,500
25,000
75,000
50,000
50,000
1,927
69,016
38,730

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Total

620,049

(iii) 1983 Savings related
Share Option Scheme
Total

Exercise
price
(pence)

Market
price at
date of
exercise
(pence)

Gain made
on exercise
£000

Date
from which
exercisable

Expiry
date

01.04.99
24.04.98

290.70
337.45

–
–

–
–

01.04.02
24.04.01

01.04.09
24.04.08

9,311

–

–

–

–

–

–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

122,989
74,000
50,887
62,500
25,000
75,000
50,000
50,000
1,927
69,016
38,730

25.04.06
08.04.05
03.09.04
25.03.04
16.09.03
04.04.03
11.09.02
17.04.02
03.05.00
01.04.99
24.04.98

422.80
297.60
260.19
218.90
184.45
141.60
177.65
247.30
268.90
290.70
337.45

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

25.04.09
08.04.08
03.09.07
25.03.07
16.09.06
04.04.06
11.09.05
17.04.05
03.05.03
01.04.02
24.04.01

25.04.16
08.04.15
03.09.14
25.03.14
16.09.13
04.04.13
11.09.12
17.04.12
03.05.10
01.04.09
24.04.08

–

–

620,049

–

–

–

–

–

–

10,613

–

–

10,613

17.06.03

150.04

–

–

01.08.08

31.01.09

10,613

–

–

10,613

–

–

–

–

–

–

R P Thorne
(i) 1978 Share Option Scheme

7,095

–

–

7,095

25.04.06

422.80

–

–

13.03.07

12.03.08

Total

7,095

–

–

7,095

–

–

–

–

–

–

(ii) International Share Option Scheme

158,467

–

–

158,467

25.04.06

422.80

–

–

13.03.07

12.03.08

Total

158,467

–

–

158,467

–

–

–

–

–

–

Plan

A S Ross
(i) 1978 Share Option Scheme

Total

Date of
grant

Notes:
1. Mr B G Wallace was appointed to the Board on 5 March 2007. Ms R P Thorne resigned from the Board on 12 March 2007. Upon her departure, Ms R P Thorne was treated
as a good leaver for the purposes of her existing share options. As a result the options will be exercisable at any time up to 12 March 2008 subject to the rules of the schemes.
2. The performance conditions attached to the vesting of the share options are outlined on page 39. All options granted prior to April 2006 have either met the applicable
performance conditions or have lapsed in accordance with the plan rules.
For options granted in 2004 and previous years, if the performance conditions are not met over the first three years, shareholders have approved limited retesting,
measured from the original base and for a maximum of a further two years, subject to more demanding performance conditions. If these performance conditions are
not met over the first five years, the grant lapses.
The Company decided to withdraw retesting provisions from all options granted in 2005 and onwards to bring performance conditions in line with best practice.
3. The mid-market price of the Company’s shares on 31 December 2007 was 323.25 pence (29 December 2006: 418.25 pence). The highest price of the shares during
the financial year was 459.75 pence (2006: 431.25 pence). The lowest price of the Company’s shares during the financial year was 294.50 pence (2006: 363.00 pence).
4. The highest and lowest price of the Company’s shares since the date of the option grants during the year (on 30 April 2007 and 21 August 2007) were 459.75 pence
and 294.50 pence and 444.00 pence and 294.50 pence respectively.
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Other share schemes
Awards made to executive directors in 2007 and outstanding at 31 December 2007 (or earlier date of cessation) under the performance share plan, deferred bonus plan,
matching share plan, and the share incentive plan are as follows:

Plan

C Bell

(a)

Total
(b)

Total
(c)

Total
(d)
Total
J P O’Reilly

(a)

Total
(b)

Total
(c)

Total
(d)
Total

44 Annual Report and Accounts 2007

Outstanding
awards at
31 Dec 06
(or later
date of
appointment)

Awards
vested
during the
year (or
period to
cessation)

Awards
Awards
lapsing
made
during the
during the
year (or
year (or
period to period since
cessation) appointment)

Outstanding
awards at
31 Dec 07
(or earlier
date of
cessation)

–
194,117
178,438
208,152

–
–
–
181,404

–
–
–
26,748

245,372
–
–
–

245,372
194,117
178,438
–

580,707

181,404

26,748

245,372

617,927

–
9,646
24,503

–
–
24,503

–
–
–

34,712
–
–

34,149

24,503

–

10,926
11,035

–
–

21,961

Date
of award

21.05.07(v)
24.02.06(v)
24.02.05(v)
27.02.04(v)

Share price
on date Performance
of award
period end

416.25
370.00
314.00
221.25

31.12.09
31.12.08
31.12.07
31.12.06

–

–

–

34,712
9,646
–

26.03.07
24.02.06
24.02.05

403.50
370.00
314.00

26.03.09
24.02.08
24.02.07

34,712

44,358

–

–

–

–
–

–
–

10,926
11,035

26.04.06
08.04.05

431.25
299.00

01.04.09
01.04.08

–

–

–

21,961

–

–

–

401

–

–

111

512

–

–

401

–

–

111

512

–

–

–
105,882
89,219
110,458

–
–
–
96,264

–
–
–
14,194

178,452
–
–
–

178,452
105,882
89,219
–

416.25
370.00
314.00
221.25

31.12.09
31.12.08
31.12.07
31.12.06

305,559

96,264

14,194

178,452

373,553

–

–

–

–
7,389
13,128

–
–
13,128

–
–
–

21,285
–
–

21,285
7,389
–

26.03.07
24.02.06
24.02.05

403.50
370.00
314.00

26.03.09
24.02.08
24.02.07

20,517

13,128

–

21,285

28,674

–

–

–

8,369
5,912

–
–

–
–

–
–

8,369
5,912

26.04.06
08.04.05

431.25
299.00

01.04.09
01.04.08

14,281

–

–

–

14,281

–

–

–

401

–

–

111

512

–

–

401

–

–

111

512

–

–

see note(iv)
–
21.05.07(v)
24.02.06(v)
24.02.05(v)
27.02.04(v)

see note(iv)
–
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Plan

Outstanding
awards at
31 Dec 06
(or later
date of
appointment)

Awards
vested
during the
year (or
period to
cessation)

–
91,764
82,466
104,321

–
–
–
90,917

–
–
–
13,404

115,994
–
–
–

115,994
91,764
82,466
–

278,551

90,917

13,404

115,994

290,224

–
12,398

–
12,398

–
–

13,835
–

12,398

12,398

–

5,583

–

5,583

Other share schemes continued

A S Ross

(a)

Total
(b)

Total
(c)
Total
R P Thorne

(a)

Total
B G Wallace
Total

(a)

Awards
Awards
lapsing
made
during the
during the
year (or
year (or
period to period since
cessation) appointment)

Outstanding
awards at
31 Dec 07
(or earlier
date of
cessation)

Date
of award

21.05.07(v)
24.02.06(v)
24.02.05(v)
27.02.04(v)

Share price
on date Performance
of award
period end

416.25
370.00
314.00
221.25

31.12.09
31.12.08
31.12.07
31.12.06

–

–

–

13,835
–

26.03.07
24.02.05

403.50
314.00

26.03.09
24.02.07

13,835

13,835

–

–

–

–

–

5,583

08.04.05

299.00

01.04.08

–

–

–

5,583

–

–

–

123,529

–

123,529

–

–

370.00

31.12.08

123,529

–

123,529

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

207,905

207,905

416.25

31.12.09

–

–

–

207,905

207,905

–

–

24.02.06(v)
–
21.05.07(v)
–

(a)Performance

share plan.
bonus plan.
(c)Matching shares plan (in respect of bonus years 2004-2005 only).
(d)The amounts shown are in respect of the bonus shares awarded on a monthly basis under the share incentive plan.
(b)Deferred

Notes:
B G Wallace was appointed to the Board on 5 March 2007. Ms R P Thorne resigned from the Board on 12 March 2007.
(ii)Conditional awards made at 27 February 2004 partially vested on 25 April 2007 as performance conditions had been met as follows: Mr C Bell 181,404 shares,
Mr J P O’Reilly 96,264 shares, Mr A S Ross 90,917 shares. The remainder of the awards lapsed on 25 April 2007. The mid-market quotation for a share on 25 April 2007
was 415.75 pence.
(iii)Awards were made under the deferred bonus plan on 24 February 2005 based on an award price of 268.23 pence. Awards vested on 25 April 2007.
(iv)Bonus shares were awarded under the share incentive plan on a monthly basis on award dates between 5 January and 6 December 2007. Share prices on the award
dates ranged from 307.50 pence to 450.00 pence.
(v)The performance criteria for the 2007 award is outlined on page 39.
(i)Mr

Performance share plan in 2006 and prior years – awards were made to a maximum of 120 per cent of base salary. 50 per cent of the award was subject to
a TSR performance condition, based on the Company’s performance against a peer group of companies. The remaining 50 per cent was subject to an operating
profit growth target.
The TSR element of the award vests in full if TSR performance is ranked first or second against the relevant selected comparator group and 40 per cent for ninth position.
If at least ninth position is not achieved, this part of the award lapses. Vesting would be on a straight-line basis between ninth and second positioning.
As outlined above, vesting for the remaining 50 per cent of the award has been subject to achievement of an operating profit growth target. The operating profit growth
targets over the three-year performance periods that started on 1 January 2005 and 2006 respectively are:

Performance measures

2006 awards
Operating 2005 awards
Operating
profits(i)
growth
profits(i)
from £249m
£m

Maximum Performance (i.e. 100% vesting)
Base Performance (i.e. 40% vesting)

RPI +27%
RPI +15%

(i)Profit

350
320

before tax, finance costs and non-trading items.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Retirement provision
Messrs C Bell and J P O’Reilly are members of the Executive Section of the LPP, details of which are set out in note 33 on page 89 of the Annual Report 2007. In respect
of base salary above the Earnings Cap, Mr C Bell and Mr J P O’Reilly receive a 30 per cent cash supplement.
Ms R P Thorne was not a member of the LPP. She received a cash supplement of 30 per cent of base salary in lieu of membership of the LPP from 1 January 2007
to 30 April 2007 when her employment with the Company ceased.
Mr A S Ross is no longer accruing pension benefits or receiving any pension-related cash supplement as he has passed his nominal pension retirement date. He is a member
of the Executive Section of the LPP and his LPP benefits will be increased between his 60th birthday and the date he starts to receive benefits to reflect the delay in payment,
using late retirement factors which apply to all members of the LPP. He received a tax-free retirement lump sum of £392,000 in 2006.
Mr B G Wallace is not a member of the LPP and receives a cash supplement of 30 per cent of base salary in lieu of membership of the LPP since he re-joined the Group
on 5 March 2007. The pension benefits accrued during his previous employment with the Group were transferred to non-Group pension arrangements in 2006 and so are not
included in these disclosures.
The transfer value figures below have been provided by the independent actuary appointed by the Trustees of the LPP, in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN 11.
The accrued pension benefit is an annual figure. The transfer value represents the amount that would be paid to another pension scheme if this accrued pension benefit
were to be transferred away from the LPP.
Listing rules and Section 7A disclosures
Set out below are details of the pension benefits, payable on retirement age 60, or immediately in the case of Mr A S Ross, to which each of the directors shown is entitled at
31 December 2007. Mr A S Ross received a tax-free retirement lump sum of £392,000 in 2006; the figures shown below relate to his residual pension after adjustment for this
lump sum. The other figures shown below, including the accrued pensions – are the total pension entitlements in respect of all Pensionable Service with the Company
including any service with the Company prior to becoming a director.
For executive directors other than Mr A S Ross, the transfer value increase over the year includes the effect of each director’s increase in Pensionable Salary, completing
a further year of service and being a year closer to their nominal pension retirement date. For all executive directors, the change in transfer value over the year also reflects
changes in market conditions and a change in the LPP’s standard transfer value terms. A transfer value represents a liability of the LPP but not a sum paid or due to the individual.
Listing rules

Name

C Bell
J P O’Reilly
A S Ross(i)

Increase, excluding
inflation, in accrued
pension over 2007
£000

Transfer value
of increase,
less director’s
contributions
over 2007
£000

Accrued pension at
31 Dec 2007
£000

Accrued pension at
31 Dec 2006
£000

3
3
3

26
25
59

47
37
119

42
32
111

Schedule 7A

Name

Change in accrued
pension over 2007
£000

Accrued pension at
31 Dec 2007
£000

Transfer value at
31 Dec 2007
£000

Transfer value at
31 Dec 2006
£000

Increase in transfer
value over 2007
£000

Increase in transfer
value, less director’s
contributions over 2007
£000

5
5
8

47
37
119

604
435
2,100

461
321
1,851

143
114
249

133
104
249

C Bell
J P O’Reilly
A S Ross(i)
(i)The

accrued pension of Mr A S Ross shown above includes the late retirement factor which would have been applied to his pension had he retired at the relevant date.
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Directors’ interests in shares
The interests of the directors in the Company’s shares, excluding interests under share options and the performance share plan, at the dates stated were as shown in the
table below:

Name

Sir Ian Robinson
C Bell
J P O’Reilly
A S Ross
J F Jarvis
N M H Jones
C Rodrigues
H E Staunton
B G Wallace
C P Wicks

Ordinary shares at
31 Dec 2007(i)

34,463
316,126
153,276
123,958
10,000
17,647
1,764
50,000
38,302
923

Ordinary shares at
31 Dec 2006
(or later date
of appointment)

9,882
175,619(ii)
76,632(ii)
61,714(ii)
10,000
17,647
1,764
50,000
38,302
923

(i)All

the share interests above were beneficial.
ordinary shares (2006: 1,636 ordinary shares) are held under the share incentive plan by Messrs C Bell and J P O’Reilly. In addition 79,276 shares, 51,381 shares
and 22,712 shares are held by Messrs C Bell, J P O’Reilly and A S Ross respectively under the deferred bonus plan and matching shares plan of which 12,957 shares,
8,426 shares and 3,294 shares are held respectively as qualifying shares under the matching shares plan.The following changes have occurred to the directors’ share
interests since the year-end: (a) 75 shares were purchased by/awarded under the share incentive plan to each of Messrs C Bell and J P O’Reilly (38 on 7 January 2008
and 37 on 5 February 2008).

(ii)2,034

No other changes to directors’ share interests have taken place between 31 December 2007 and 28 February 2008.
Except for service contracts on page 40, none of the directors were materially interested during the year in any contract of significance in relation to the Company’s business
entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries or, other than is shown in this report, has any interest in the shares or debentures of the Company or its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Emoluments
The emoluments of the directors in 2007 including pension supplements and benefits-in-kind were as follows:
2007
£000

2006
£000

Executive Directors
Annual emoluments
Basic salaries
Annual bonus
Benefits-in-kind
Pension supplements
Loss of office payments(i)

1,770
2,368
96
381
642

1,517
449
122
320
–

Annual emoluments total

5,257

2,408

Longer term emoluments
Performance share plan awards(ii)
Gains on exercise of share options

793
28

2,558
1,142

Longer term emoluments total

821

3,700

Executive Directors total

6,078

6,108

Non-Executive Directors
Fees

485

442

6,563

6,550

All Directors total
(i)Details
(ii)The

of Ms R P Thorne’s loss of office payments can be found on page 41 (see also note (iv)).
awards made on 24 February 2005 were earned as at 31 December 2007 (see page 41 (see also note (iii)) for details).

By order of the Board
C J Rodrigues
28 February 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

2007

For the year ended 31 December

Note

Continuing operations
Amounts staked(2)

Before
non-trading
items(1)
£m

Total
£m

Restated 2006
Before
non-trading
items(1)
£m

Total
£m

14,908.5

14,908.5

12,345.9

12,345.9

1,235.0
(684.5)
(83.9)
3.8

1,235.0
(685.7)
(82.4)
3.8

947.4
(569.7)
(77.3)
4.0

947.4
(569.7)
(79.8)
4.0

EBITDA

470.4

470.7

304.4

301.9

Depreciation and amounts written off non-current assets

(50.4)

(51.8)

(42.2)

(42.2)

9

420.0
(69.5)
1.5

418.9
(108.5)
33.8

262.2
(61.3)
40.7

259.7
(70.7)
49.1

11

352.0
(54.8)

344.2
(52.8)

241.6
(42.4)

238.1
(46.2)

297.2

291.4

199.2

191.9

3.4

49.4

10.4

425.3

Profit for the year

300.6

340.8

209.6

617.2

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent

300.6

340.8

209.6

617.2

Revenue
Cost of sales before depreciation and amortisation
Administrative expenses
Share of results from joint venture and associates

Profit before tax and finance costs
Finance costs
Finance income
Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

5

8
9

Profit for the year – continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations

Earnings per share from continuing operations
– basic
– diluted
Earnings per share on profit for the year
– basic
– diluted
Proposed dividends(3)
(1)Non-trading

14

13
13
13
13
12

47.4p
47.0p

46.5p
46.1p

21.7p
21.2p

20.9p
20.4p

48.0p
47.6p
9.05p

54.4p
54.0p
9.05p

22.8p
22.2p
8.60p

67.2p
64.7p
8.60p

items are profits/losses on disposal of non-current assets, unrealised gains and losses on derivatives, litigation and transaction costs and profit on disposal
of discontinued operations. Details on the non-trading items are given in notes 7, 11 and 14 to the financial statements.
(2)Amounts staked does not represent the Group’s statutory revenue and comprises the total amount staked by customers on betting and gaming activities.
(3)A final year dividend of 9.05 pence (2006: 8.60 pence) per share, amounting to a total dividend of £54.4 million (2006: £54.1 million) was declared by the directors on
28 February 2008. These financial statements do not reflect the dividend payable. The 2006 final dividend of 8.60 pence (£54.1 million) and the 2007 interim dividend
of 4.85 pence (£30.5 million) were paid in 2007.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Interest in joint venture
Interest in associates and other investments
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Derivatives
Retirement benefit asset

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Assets classified as held for sale
Derivatives
Cash and short-term deposits

Note

15
17
18
19
27
11
27
33

20
27
21

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Derivatives
Trade and other payables
Corporation tax liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Provisions

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Derivatives
Other financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provisions

25
27
22
23
24

25
27
27
11
24

Total liabilities
Net liabilities
Equity
Issued share capital
Share premium account
Treasury and own shares
Foreign currency translation reserve
Other reserves
Retained earnings
Equity shareholders’ deficit

29
30
30
30
30
30

2007
£m

Restated
2006
£m

525.9
263.8
0.4
10.0
7.4
28.1
4.5
33.6

427.5
243.1
–
11.0
8.5
13.1
12.7
22.6

873.7

738.5

138.5
–
29.0
37.8

75.0
2.2
0.8
36.4

205.3

114.4

1,079.0

852.9

(187.3)
–
(199.1)
(142.4)
(30.1)
(2.6)

(36.7)
(9.9)
(173.4)
(161.6)
(1.0)
(2.9)

(561.5)

(385.5)

(800.0)
(1.0)
(14.5)
(142.3)
(10.5)

(952.2)
(15.3)
(114.6)
(12.2)

(968.3)

(1,094.3)

(1,529.8)

(1,479.8)

(450.8)

(626.9)

178.9
2,134.2
(80.0)
9.4
(30.0)
(2,663.3)

177.9
2,126.8
(5.4)
2.2
–
(2,928.4)

(450.8)

(626.9)

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2008
C Bell
B G Wallace
Directors
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE

For the year ended 31 December
Currency translation differences
Recycled foreign exchange
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension scheme
Net (losses)/gains on cash flow hedges
Tax on items directly taken to equity

Note

14
33
11

Total income and expenses recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year
Total recognised income and expense for the year

30

2007
£m

2006
£m

7.2
–
5.1
(0.5)
(1.3)

1.3
(3.8)
9.6
1.1
(2.9)

10.5
340.8

5.3
617.2

351.3

622.5

351.3

622.5

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December
Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Dividends received from associates
Payments for intangible assets
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of subsidiaries
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of discontinued operations
Costs of disposal of discontinued operations
Cash disposed of with discontinued operations
Cash obtained through acquisition of subsidiaries
Purchase of interests in joint venture
Purchase of interests in associates and other investments
Proceeds from disposal of interest in associates

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares
Proceeds from borrowings
Proceeds from repayment of loans by associate
Purchase of ESOP shares
Purchase of treasury shares
Repayment of borrowings
Payments of new loans to associate
Dividends paid

Note

2007
£m

2006
£m

32

285.5

156.5

2.6
2.3
(31.8)
(62.4)
(60.9)
3.2
40.8
(0.7)
(1.4)
3.7
(0.6)
(0.1)
2.2

54.7
0.8
(9.0)
(91.9)
(26.0)
1.0
3,241.4
(74.7)
(54.2)
–
–
(0.5)
1.0

(103.1)

3,042.6

7.6
–
–
(2.5)
(70.4)
(40.4)
–
(84.6)

70.3
179.6
7.8
(5.0)
–
(185.3)
(1.8)
(4,208.4)

(190.3)

(4,142.8)

(7.9)
0.4
33.4

(943.7)
1.3
975.8

19

37
14
14
14
37

19

30

31
30

30

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Net foreign exchange difference
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

21

25.9

33.4

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash at bank and in hand and current asset investments
Bank overdraft

21

37.5
(11.6)

36.1
(2.7)

25.9

33.4

21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Corporate information
The consolidated financial statements of Ladbrokes plc for the year ended
31 December 2007 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution
of the directors on 28 February 2008. Ladbrokes plc is a limited company
incorporated in the United Kingdom whose shares are publicly traded. The address
of its registered office and principal place of business is disclosed in the corporate
information section to the Annual Report on page 120.
The principal activities of Ladbrokes plc and its subsidiaries (together, the ‘Group’)
are described on page 59, note 6.
2 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
for use in the European Union.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling. All values are
in millions (£m) rounded to one decimal place except where otherwise indicated.
To assist in understanding the underlying performance, the Group has defined
the following items of income and expense as non-trading in nature:
profits/losses on disposal of non-current assets;
profits/losses on disposal of businesses and investments;
unrealised gains/losses on derivative financial instruments arising from hedging
interest rate and currency exposures; and
litigation and transaction costs.
The non-trading items have been included within the appropriate classification in
the consolidated income statement.
The Group has restated its comparative year balance sheet and income statement to
reflect Vernons as a discontinued operation; to exclude from total revenue the share
of results from joint ventures and associates; to disclose the net impact of gains and
losses on fair value hedges within finance costs; for the reclassification of antepost
liabilities and property provisions as current liabilities; and the reallocation of shared
costs between reporting segments. Refer to note 39 for further details.
3 Changes in accounting policies
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures has superseded the disclosure requirements
of IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and Disclosure, with the remaining
parts of IAS 32 dealing only with financial instruments presentation matters.
Under the disclosure requirements of IFRS 7, financial instruments have been
grouped into classes of similar instruments and the required disclosures made
by class. The two main categories of disclosures required by IFRS 7 are:
information about the significance of financial instruments; and
information about the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments
and how the Group manages these risks.
The new disclosures on market risk include a sensitivity analysis of each type of
market risk to which the Group is exposed.
The Group has adopted IFRS 7 for the year ended 31 December 2007 and for
comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2006 as required by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
The Group has adopted IAS 1 Amendment – Presentation of Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007. This has had no effect on the financial
position of the Group but does, however, give rise to additional disclosures.
The Group has applied the guidance under IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment for the year ended 31 December 2007, which concludes that where an
entity has recognised an impairment loss in an interim period in respect of goodwill or
an investment in either an equity instrument or a financial asset carried at cost, that
impairment should not be reversed in subsequent interim financial statements nor in
annual financial statements. This has had no impact on the financial statements for
the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2007.
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The Group has early adopted the guidance under IFRIC 14 IAS 19 The Limit on
a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction, for
the year ended 31 December 2007. IFRIC 14 provides general guidance on how
to assess the limit on the amount of the surplus that can be recognised as an asset
under IAS 19 Employee Benefits. It also explains how the pensions asset or liability
may be affected when there is a statutory or contractual minimum funding
requirement. The Interpretation standardises practices and ensures that entities
recognise an asset in relation to a surplus on a consistent basis. This has had no
impact on the financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2007.
4 Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the
parent Company (Ladbrokes plc) and its subsidiaries as at 31 December each year.
The underlying financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting year as the parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
All intercompany transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated
on consolidation.
Subsidiaries are consolidated, using the purchase method of accounting, from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred from the Group.
On acquisition, the assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are
measured at the fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair values of the separately identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as
goodwill. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the Group.
Use of assumptions, estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial information requires the use of assumptions, estimates
and judgements about future conditions. Use of available information and application
of judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future
may differ from those reported. In this regard, management believes that the accounting
policies where judgement is necessarily applied are those that relate to the measurement
and impairment of indefinite life intangible assets, the measurement of pension and
other post employment benefit obligations, the determination of the initial fair value
of betting and gaming transactions and the recoverable amount of trade receivables
and the valuation of financial guarantee contracts.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Further information about key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are set out below.
Indefinite life intangible assets
The Group determines whether indefinite life intangible assets are impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the ‘value in use’ of the
cash generating units to which intangible assets are allocated. Estimating a value
in use amount requires management to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further details are
given in notes 15 and 16.
Pension and other post employment benefit obligations
The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post employment benefits is
determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making
assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long-term nature
of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. Further details
are given in note 33.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Betting and gaming transactions
Betting and gaming transactions are initially measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable from customers. This is normally the nominal
amount of the consideration, but on certain occasions the fair value is estimated
using valuation techniques, taking into account the credit profile of customers
in determining the collectibility of the consideration. In addition where there are
indicators that any trade receivable is impaired at a balance sheet date, management
makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. Further details are given
in note 20.
Financial guarantee contracts
The valuation of financial guarantee contracts and related indemnities requires use
of assumptions of the risks of default of the guaranteed entities and credit profiles
of the counterparties. Further details are given in note 27.
Investments in joint ventures
A joint venture is an entity in which the Group holds an interest on a long-term basis
and which is jointly controlled by the Group and one or more other venturers under
a contractual agreement.
The Group’s share of results of joint ventures is included in the Group’s income
statement using the equity method of accounting. Investments in joint ventures
are carried in the Group balance sheet at cost plus post acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of net assets of the entity less any impairment in value. The
carrying value of investments in joint ventures includes acquired goodwill.
If the Group’s share of losses in the joint venture equals or exceeds its investment
in the joint venture, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations to do so or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.
Investments in associates
Associates are those businesses in which the Group has a long-term interest and
is able to exercise significant influence over the financial and operational policies
but does not have control or joint control over those policies.
The Group’s share of results of associates is included in the Group’s income
statement using the equity method of accounting. Investments in associates are
carried in the Group balance sheet at cost plus post acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of net assets of the entity less any impairment in value. The carrying
values of investment in associates includes acquired goodwill.
Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisition is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
separately identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary
or associate at the date of acquisition. In accordance with IFRS 3 Business
Combinations, goodwill is not amortised but reviewed annually for impairment and
as such, is stated at cost less any provision for impairment of value. Any impairment
is recognised immediately in the income statement and is not subsequently reversed.
On acquisition, any goodwill acquired is allocated to cash generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. Where goodwill forms part of a cash generating unit
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost and those acquired as
part of a business combination are capitalised separately from goodwill if the fair
value can be measured reliably on initial recognition. The costs relating to internally
generated intangible assets, principally software costs, are capitalised if the criteria
for recognition as assets are met. Other expenditure is charged against profit in the
year in which the expenditure is incurred. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The useful lives of these intangible assets are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Where amortisation is charged on assets with finite lives, this
expense is taken to the income statement through the ‘depreciation and amounts
written off non-current assets’ line item. Useful lives are reviewed on an annual basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash generating unit level.

A summary of the policies applied to the Group’s intangible assets is as follows:
Licences

Software

Customer
relationships

indefinite

finite

indefinite

not depreciated
or revalued

3-5 years
straight line

not depreciated
or revalued

Internally generated
or acquired

acquired

acquired and
internally
generated

acquired

Impairment testing/
recoverable amount
testing

annually and
where an
indicator of
impairment exists

useful lives
reviewed at
each financial
year end

annually and
where an
indicator of
impairment exists

Useful lives
Method used

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal, with any gain or loss arising
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) included in the income statement in the year of disposal.
Property, plant and equipment
Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value. Buildings, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life
of the asset as follows:
buildings – 50 years or estimated useful life of the building, or lease, whichever
is less, to estimated residual value;
fixtures, fittings and equipment – four to 10 years as considered appropriate
to write down cost to estimated residual value.
The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable.
If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets or cash generating units are written down to their
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of plant and equipment is the greater
of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash
inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement in the
‘depreciation and amounts written off non-current assets’ line item.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal, with any gain
or loss arising (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) included in the income statement in the year of disposal.
Leases
Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the
lease at the fair value of the leased item or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly against income.
Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful
life of the asset and the lease term.
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership
of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments, other
than contingent rentals, are recognised as an expense in the income statement
on a straight line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals, within prior year discontinued operations, were determined
by turnover or profit performance of individual hotels and charged as incurred.
Where a minimum guarantee existed, a charge was made to the income statement,
based on planned performance, to the extent that the individual hotel was expected
to exceed minimum guarantee levels, or at the minimum guarantee level if there
was a projected shortfall in performance.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Recoverable amount of non-current assets
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. Where an indicator of impairment exists, the Group makes
a formal estimate of recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
or cash generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash at bank and in hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of less than three months, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts.
Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes party to the contracts
that give rise to them.
The Group classifies financial assets at inception as either financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or as loans and receivables. On initial recognition, loans and
receivables are measured at fair value. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss comprise derivative financial instruments and guarantees provided to the
Group. Financial assets through profit or loss are measured initially at fair value with
transaction costs taken directly to the income statement. Subsequently, the fair
values are remeasured, and gains and losses from changes therein are recognised
in the income statement.
Trade receivables are generally accounted for at amortised cost. The Group reviews
indicators of impairment on an ongoing basis and where indicators exist, the Group
makes an estimate of the assets’ recoverable amounts.
Financial guarantees provided to the Group are classified as financial assets and are
measured at fair value by estimating the probability of the guarantees being called
upon and the related cash inflows to the Group.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities comprise interest bearing loans and borrowings, derivative
financial instruments, antepost bets and guarantees given to third parties.
On initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at fair value plus transactions
costs where they are not categorised as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include derivative
financial instruments and guarantees.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured initially at fair value,
with transaction costs taken directly to the income statement. Subsequently, the fair
values are remeasured, and gains and losses from changes therein are recognised
in the income statement.
Financial guarantee contracts
Ladbrokes has provided financial guarantees to third parties in respect of lease
obligations of certain of the Group’s former subsidiaries within the disposed hotels
division. Financial guarantee contracts are classified as financial liabilities and are
measured at fair value by estimating the probability of the guarantees being called
upon and the related cash outflows from the Group.
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the
assets has expired, or when the Group has transferred its contractual right to receive
the cash flows from the financial assets, and either:

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred; or
substantially all the risks and rewards have neither been retained nor transferred
but control is not retained.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled
or expires.
Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as cross currency swaps,
foreign exchange swaps and interest rate swaps, to hedge its risks associated with
interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations. Derivative financial instruments are
recognised initially at cost and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. The gains
or losses on remeasurement are taken to the income statement except where the
derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge or a net investment hedge. Fair values
of over-the-counter derivatives are obtained using valuation techniques, including
discounted cash flow models and option pricing models.
Derivative financial instruments are classified as assets when their fair value is
positive or as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Derivative assets and
liabilities arising from different transactions are only offset if the transactions are
with the same counterparty, a legal right of offset exists and the parties intend
to settle the cash flows on a net basis.
The derivative financial instruments taken out as hedges were designated and
documented as hedges on the date that the relevant derivative contract was
committed to, as one of the following:
a hedge of the fair value of an asset and liability (fair value hedge);
a hedge of the income/cost of a highly probable forecasted transaction or
commitment (cash flow hedge);
a hedge of a net investment in a foreign entity (net investment hedge).
In relation to fair value hedges that meet the conditions for hedge accounting, any
gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instrument at fair value is recognised
immediately in the income statement. Any gain or loss on the hedged item attributable
to the hedged risk is adjusted against the carrying amount of the hedged item and
recognised in the income statement.
In relation to cash flow hedges that meet the conditions for hedge accounting,
the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be
an effective hedge is recognised directly in equity and the ineffective portion is
recognised in the income statement.
For all other cash flow hedges, the gains or losses that are recognised in equity
are transferred to the income statement in the same year in which the hedged
cash flow affects the income statement.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that point
in time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity
is kept in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is transferred to the income statement for the year.
In relation to net investment hedges, the post tax gains or losses on the translation
at the spot exchange rate of the hedged instrument are recognised in equity. The
portion of the post tax gains or losses on the hedging instrument that is determined
to be an effective hedge is recognised directly in equity and the ineffective portion
is recognised in the income statement. The interest element of the fair value of the
hedging item is recognised in the income statement.
For derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting, any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are taken directly to the income
statement for the year.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition at fair value,
loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration
received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing.
After initial recognition, fixed rate interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs and any
discount or premium on settlement.
Where these loans form part of documented fair value hedges their carrying
value will be adjusted for the change in fair value arising on the remeasurement
of the hedged instruments.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date and are discounted to present
value where the effect is material using a pre tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost.
Convertible bond
The interest expense on the liability component of the convertible bond was
calculated by applying the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible
debt to the liability component of the instrument. The difference between this amount
and the interest paid was added to the carrying amount of the convertible loan note.
Foreign currency translation
The presentation and functional currency of Ladbrokes plc and the functional
currencies of its UK subsidiaries is sterling (£).
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in sterling at the foreign
currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the foreign currency rate
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
All foreign currency translations are taken to the consolidated income statement
with the exception of differences on foreign currency borrowings that provide a
post tax hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity. These are taken directly
to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Tax charges and credits attributable
to exchange differences on those borrowings are also dealt with in equity.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was determined.
The main functional currency of the overseas subsidiaries is the Euro. At the reporting
date, the assets and liabilities of these overseas subsidiaries are translated into
sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and their income
statements are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The post tax exchange differences arising on the retranslation, since the date of
transition to IFRSs, are taken directly to a separate component of equity. On disposal
of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating
to that particular foreign entity is recognised in the income statement.
Income tax
Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences:
except where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor the tax profit; and
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences
and carry forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax assets and unused tax
losses can be utilised:

except where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor the tax profit; and
in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the deductible temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset
to be utilised.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax balances are not discounted.
Income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity
and not in the income statement.
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales
tax except:
where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and
receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included.
The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority
is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
Pensions and other post employment benefits
The defined benefit pension fund holds assets separately from the Group.
The pension cost relating to this fund is assessed in accordance with the advice
of independent qualified actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in the statement of recognised income and
expense in the period in which they arise.
Any past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits have
already vested and otherwise, is amortised on a straight line basis over the average
period until the benefits vest. The retirement benefit asset recognised in the balance
sheet represents the fair value of scheme assets less the value of the defined benefit
obligations as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost.
The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the income
statement in the period to which the contributions relate.
For defined benefit schemes, management makes annual estimates and
assumptions in respect of discount rates, future changes in salaries, employee
turnover, inflation rates and life expectancy. In making these estimates and
assumptions, management considers advice provided by external advisers,
such as actuaries. Where actual experience differs to these estimates, actuarial
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. Refer to note 33 for details
of the values of assets and obligations and key assumptions used.
Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received
net of direct issue costs.
Treasury shares
Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are deducted from
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.
ESOP trusts
Where the Group holds its own equity shares through an ESOP trust these shares
are shown as a reduction in equity. Any consideration paid or received for the
purchase or sale of these shares is shown in the reconciliation of movements in
shareholders’ funds and no gain or loss is recognised within the income statement
or the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense on the purchase,
sale or cancellation of the shares.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Share buybacks in the close period
During the close period, the period between the year end and the preliminary annual
results announcement, the Company is prevented from purchasing its own shares
by the UK Listing Authority’s Listing Rules, except under certain allowed contingent
purchase agreements with third parties. In accordance with IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation, a financial liability is recognised when the Company enters
into such an agreement, representing the purchase price of the shares the Company
may be required to purchase.
Dividends
Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors and unpaid at the year end
are not recognised in the financial statements until they have been approved
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.
Revenue
Continuing operations
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
from customers for goods and services provided in the normal course of business,
net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes.
For licensed betting offices, on course betting, Telephone Betting, eGaming
Sportsbook businesses and online casino operations (including games and other
number bets), revenue represents gains and losses, being the amount staked
less total payouts plus commission received, from betting activity in the period.
Open betting positions are carried at fair market value and gains and losses arising
on these positions are recognised in revenue.
Revenue from the online Poker business reflects the net income (rake) earned from
Poker games completed by the period end.
In the case of the greyhound stadia, revenue represents income arising from the
operation of the greyhound stadia in the period, including sales of refreshments.
Discontinued operations
Vernons revenue represented gains and losses, being the amount staked less
total payouts, from betting activity in the period.
Hotels revenue in respect of accommodation and related services was recognised
at the point at which the services were rendered.
Management fees were recognised in accordance with the terms of the business.
Joining fees and subscriptions in respect of health and fitness membership were
recognised over the membership period.
Franchise fees received for the provision of initial and subsequent services were
recognised as revenue as the services were rendered. Franchise fees charged
for the use of continuing rights granted by the agreement or for other services
provided during the period of the agreement, were recognised as revenue
as the services were provided or the rights were used.
Finance costs and income
Finance costs and income arising on interest bearing financial instruments carried
at amortised cost are recognised in the income statement using the effective interest
rate method. Finance costs includes amortisation of fees that are an integral part
of the effective finance cost of a financial instrument, including issue costs, and
amortisation of any other differences between the amount initially recognised
and the redemption price.
Net gains and losses in respect of mark-to-market adjustments on financial
instruments carried at fair value, fair value adjustments to the carrying value
of hedged items that form part of fair value hedges and foreign exchange
adjustments are included in non-trading items in the income statement.
Net gains and losses on financial guarantees are included in discontinued
non-trading items.
Share-based payment transactions
Certain employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of equity settled share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (equity settled transactions).
The cost of equity settled transactions is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date on which they are granted. The fair value is determined using a binomial
model, further details of which are given on page 93, note 34. In valuing equity
settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of Ladbrokes plc (market conditions).
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The cost of equity settled transactions is recognised together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (vesting date). The cumulative expense recognised for equity settled
transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the number of awards that, in the opinion of the
directors of the Group at that date, based on the best available estimate of the
number of equity instruments, will ultimately vest.
No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards
where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance conditions are satisfied.
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution
in the computation of earnings per share as shown on page 69, note 13.
The Group has an employee share incentive plan and an employee share trust
for the granting of non-transferable options to executives and senior employees.
Shares in the Group held by the employee share trust are treated as treasury shares
and presented in the balance sheet as a deduction from equity. Refer to note 31.
The Group has taken advantage of the transitional provisions of IFRS 2 Sharebased Payment in respect of equity settled awards and has applied IFRS 2 only
to equity settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not vested
on 1 January 2006.
Future accounting developments
IFRS 8 Operating Segments replaces IAS 14 Segment Reporting and in so doing,
requires an entity to report financial and descriptive information about its reportable
segments, having identified operating segments based on internal reports regularly
reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources
to a segment and assess its performance. Descriptive information about the way
that the operating segments were determined and the products and services
provided by the segments should be given; any change across reporting periods
to the basis of measurement of segment amounts should be stated and an
explanation of how segment profit or loss and segment assets and liabilities
are measured for each reportable segment should be provided.
The Group is required to and will adopt IFRS 8 for the year ending 31 December
2009 and is currently assessing the impact this will have.
IFRIC 11 IFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions provides guidance
on applying IFRS 2 in three circumstances:
share-based payment involving an entity’s own equity instruments in which the
entity chooses or is required to buy its own equity instruments (treasury shares)
to settle the share-based payment obligation;
where a parent grants rights to its equity instruments to employees of its
subsidiary; and
where a subsidiary grants rights to equity instruments of its parent to its employees.
IFRIC 11 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007.
The Group will adopt IFRIC 11 for the year ended 31 December 2008 and
is currently assessing the impact it will have.
IFRS 3R Business Combinations and IAS 27R Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements were issued in January 2008. The Group is required to, and will, adopt
standards for the year ended 31 December 2010. IFRS 3R introduces a number of
changes in the accounting of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period
that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results. IAS 27R requires that change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary is accounted for as an equity transaction.
Therefore, such changes will have no impact on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain
or a loss. Furthermore, the amended standard changes the accounting for losses
incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. The changes
introduced by IFRS 3R and IAS 27R must be applied prospectively and will affect
future acquisitions and transactions with minority interests.
There are no other IFRSs or IFRICs in issue but not yet effective that will have a
significant impact for the Group.
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5 Revenue
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

Continuing operations
European Retail
eGaming
Telephone Betting
Other

2007
£m

Restated
2006
£m

804.5
143.5
279.8
7.2

767.5
134.1
45.8
–

1,235.0

947.4

16.8
–

18.6
264.4

1,251.8

1,230.4

Discontinued operations
Vernons
Hotels

6 Segment information
The Group’s continuing operating businesses are organised and managed separately as three principal segments according to the nature of the services provided
as outlined below.
The European Retail segment comprises all activities connected with the UK and other European shop estate.
The eGaming segment comprises betting and gaming activities from online operations.
The Telephone Betting segment comprises activities relating to bets taken on the telephone.
The Other segment comprises Casino and International development operations.
The discontinued operations for 2007 comprises the Vernons pools business and in 2006 comprised Vernons and the ownership, operation and management of hotels
and health clubs.
For geographic segments, revenue is attributed to three principal geographic areas of the world: United Kingdom, Europe and Rest of the world, based on the location
of the customer by destination.
There are no intersegment sales and transfers. Segmental assets and liabilities comprise operating assets and liabilities excluding financing and tax items.
Business segments
The following tables present revenue and profit information and certain asset and liability information regarding the Group’s business segments for the years ended
31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006.
The allocation of shared costs has been adjusted to reflect more accurately each division’s current activity. The segmental information for the year to 31 December 2006
has been restated to reflect this change to reported segmental results. These adjustments have no impact on reported Group profit, cash flows or net assets. Refer to
note 39 for details of the allocation of shared costs.
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6 Segment information continued
Continuing operations

Discontinued
operations

European
Retail
£m

eGaming
£m

Telephone
Betting
£m

Other
£m

Total
£m

Vernons
£m

Total
£m

Segment revenue

804.5

143.5

279.8

7.2

1,235.0

16.8

1,251.8

Segment result
Share of results from joint venture and associate

204.4
4.0

55.0
–

183.6
–

(6.8)
(0.2)

436.2
3.8

52.0
–

488.2
3.8

208.4

55.0

183.6

(7.0)

Corporate costs

440.0
(21.1)

52.0
–

492.0
(21.1)

Profit before tax and finance costs
Net finance costs

418.9
(74.7)

52.0
(1.2)

470.9
(75.9)

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

344.2
(52.8)

50.8
(1.4)

395.0
(54.2)

Profit for the year

291.4

49.4

340.8

919.3
0.4
9.3

–
–
–

919.3
0.4
9.3

2007

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets
Interest in joint venture
Interest in associate
Unallocated assets
– Cash and short-term deposits
– Deferred tax asset
– Retirement benefit asset
– Other

763.3
–
9.3

64.4
–
–

71.2
–
–

20.4
0.4
–

37.8
28.1
33.6
50.5

37.8
28.1
33.6
50.5

Total assets

772.6

64.4

71.2

20.8

1,079.0

–

1,079.0

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
– Interest bearing loans and borrowings
– Corporation tax liabilities
– Deferred tax liabilities
– Other

(87.3)

(9.2)

(28.0)

(1.7)

(126.2)

–

(126.2)

Total liabilities

(87.3)

(9.2)

(28.0)

(1.7)

(1,529.8)

–

(1,529.8)

Other segmental information
Capital expenditure
– Tangible non-current assets
– Intangible non-current assets
Depreciation and amortisation

58.6
43.9
44.7

2.0
43.5
4.6

0.5
0.3
0.8

6.7
11.7
0.3

67.8
99.4
50.4

0.1
–
0.1

67.9
99.4
50.5
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(987.3)
(142.4)
(142.3)
(131.6)

(987.3)
(142.4)
(142.3)
(131.6)
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6 Segment information continued
Continuing operations
European
Retail
£m

Segment revenue
Segment result
Share of results from associates

Discontinued operations

eGaming
£m

Telephone
Betting
£m

Other
£m

Total
£m

Hotels
£m

Vernons
£m

Total
£m

Total
£m

767.5

134.1

45.8

–

947.4

264.4

18.6

283.0

1,230.4

212.8
4.0

44.3
–

17.3
–

(1.6)
–

272.8
4.0

424.1
(0.7)

5.9
–

430.0
(0.7)

702.8
3.3

216.8

44.3

17.3

(1.6)

Corporate costs

276.8
(17.1)

423.4
–

5.9
–

429.3
–

706.1
(17.1)

Profit before tax and finance costs
Net finance costs

259.7
(21.6)

423.4
3.4

5.9
(1.0)

429.3
2.4

689.0
(19.2)

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

238.1
(46.2)

426.8
(4.9)

4.9
(1.5)

431.7
(6.4)

669.8
(52.6)

Profit for the year

191.9

421.9

3.4

425.3

617.2

720.1
10.4

–
–

1.5
–

1.5
–

721.6
10.4

Restated
2006

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets
Interest in associates
Unallocated assets
– Cash and short-term deposits
– Deferred tax asset
– Retirement benefit asset
– Other
Total assets

688.4
10.4

18.1
–

13.6
–

–
–

36.4
13.1
22.6
48.8

36.4
13.1
22.6
48.8

698.8

18.1

13.6

–

851.4

–

1.5

1.5

852.9

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
– Interest bearing loans and borrowings
– Corporation tax liabilities
– Deferred tax liabilities
– Other

(66.1)

(11.7)

(4.6)

–

(82.4)

–

(8.2)

(8.2)

(90.6)

Total liabilities

(66.1)

(11.7)

(4.6)

–

(1,471.6)

–

(8.2)

(8.2)

(1,479.8)

Other segmental information
Capital expenditure
– Tangible non-current assets
– Intangible non-current assets
Depreciation and amortisation

81.7
43.7
37.2

3.0
2.1
4.2

0.1
0.3
0.8

–
–
–

84.8
46.1
42.2

7.1
–
–

0.1
0.1
0.2

7.2
0.1
0.2

92.0
46.2
42.4

(988.9)
(161.6)
(114.6)
(124.1)

(988.9)
(161.6)
(114.6)
(124.1)
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6 Segment information continued
Geographical segments
The following tables present revenue and certain asset information regarding the Group’s geographical segments for the total of continuing and discontinued operations
for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006.
United
Kingdom
£m

Europe
£m

Rest of
the world
£m

Total
£m

Revenue*

854.0

139.0

258.8

1,251.8

Other segment information
Segment assets

900.6

178.3

0.1

1,079.0

Total assets

900.6

178.3

0.1

1,079.0

55.8
19.8

12.1
79.6

–
–

67.9
99.4

United
Kingdom
£m

Europe
£m

Rest of
the world
£m

Total
£m

Revenue**

918.2

247.4

64.8

1,230.4

Other segment information
Segment assets

778.1

74.7

0.1

852.9

Total assets

778.1

74.7

0.1

852.9

79.0
20.6

12.3
25.6

0.7
–

92.0
46.2

2007

Capital expenditure
– Tangible non-current assets
– Intangible non-current assets
*Revenue for Rest of the world relates solely to eGaming and Telephone Betting including high rollers.

2006

Capital expenditure
– Tangible non-current assets
– Intangible non-current assets
**Revenue for Rest of the world relates solely to eGaming, Telephone Betting including high rollers and discontinued operations.
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7 Non-trading items (continuing operations)
2007
£m

2006
£m

Profit on disposal of shares in associate
Loss on closure of UK Retail shops
Net unrealised gains on derivatives and (losses)/gains on retranslation of foreign currency borrowings (note 9)
Litigation and transaction costs

1.5
(2.6)
(6.7)
–

–
–
(1.0)
(2.5)

Total non-trading items
Non-trading tax credit/(charge)

(7.8)
2.0

(3.5)
(3.8)

Non-trading items after taxation

(5.8)

(7.3)

Non-trading items relating to discontinued operations are shown in note 14.
8 Profit before tax and finance costs
Profit before tax and finance costs has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):
Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Total

Restated
2006
£m

2007
£m

Restated
2006
£m

Restated
2006
£m

177.0
45.4
5.0
262.7
(2.5)

137.2
38.0
4.2
232.2
0.4

2.4
0.1
–
5.5
–

2.6
0.1
0.1
96.1
–

179.4
45.5
5.0
268.2
(2.5)

139.8
38.1
4.3
328.3
0.4

0.5

0.6

–

–

0.5

0.6

2007
£m

Betting duty, gross profits tax, horse and dog levy
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Staff costs (note 10)
Foreign exchange
Audit fees
– auditor

2007
£m

Fees for non-audit services to Ernst & Young LLP amount to £0.8 million (2006: £1.4 million). Services provided in the year were taxation advice, £0.4 million
(2006: £1.0 million), auditing of accounts of Group companies, £0.3 million (2006: £0.3 million) and other services pursuant to legislation, £0.1 million (2006: £0.1 million).
Analysis of expense by function is:
Continuing operations

Cost of sales after depreciation and amounts written off non-current assets
Administrative expenses

2007
£m

Restated
2006
£m

737.5
82.4

611.9
79.8
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9 Finance costs and income
Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Total

Restated
2006
£m

Restated
2006
£m

Restated
2006
£m

2007
£m

2007
£m

2007
£m

Bank loans and overdrafts
Bonds and private placements at amortised cost
Fee expenses

(10.3)
(57.0)
(2.2)

(5.4)
(54.4)
(1.5)

(1.2)
–
–

(1.4)
–
–

(11.5)
(57.0)
(2.2)

(6.8)
(54.4)
(1.5)

Finance costs before non-trading items
– Net gains on fair value hedges
– Losses on derivatives not in a hedging relationship
– Losses on retranslation of foreign currency borrowings held at amortised cost

(69.5)
–
(0.8)
(38.2)

(61.3)
3.5
(12.9)
–

(1.2)
–
–
–

(1.4)
3.8
–
–

(70.7)
–
(0.8)
(38.2)

(62.7)
7.3
(12.9)
–

(108.5)

(70.7)

(1.2)

(2.4)

(109.7)

(68.3)

Bank interest receivable

1.5

40.7

–

–

1.5

40.7

Finance income before non-trading items

1.5

40.7

–

–

1.5

40.7

– Gains on derivatives not in a hedging relationship
– Gains on retranslation of foreign currency borrowings held at amortised cost

32.3
–

2.3
6.1

–
–

–
–

32.3
–

2.3
6.1

Total finance income

33.8

49.1

–

–

33.8

49.1

Net finance costs before non-trading items
Non-trading net gains and losses

(68.0)
(6.7)

(20.6)
(1.0)

(1.2)
–

(1.4)
3.8

(69.2)
(6.7)

(22.0)
2.8

Net finance costs after non-trading items

(74.7)

(21.6)

(1.2)

2.4

(75.9)

(19.2)

Total finance costs

Figures for 2006 have been restated to disclose the net impact of gains and losses arising from fair value hedges within finance costs.
Losses on derivatives which are part of fair value hedges were £10.0 million (2006: £33.2 million continuing, £0.6 million discontinued). Gains on the hedged items,
attributable to the hedged risks, were £10.0 million (2006: £36.7 million continuing, £4.4 million discontinued).
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10 Staff costs
The average weekly number of employees (including executive directors) was:
Continuing operations

European Retail
eGaming
Telephone Betting
Other(1)
Central services

(1)Casino

2007
Number

Restated
2006
Number

14,498
376
536
150
47

13,160
276
499
–
43

15,607

13,978

and international development operations.
Discontinued operations
2007
Number

Vernons
Hotels

(1)This

Restated
2006
Number

89
–

85
5,109(1)

89

5,194

was the annualised average weekly number of employees.
Continuing operations

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs
Expense of share-based payments

Discontinued operations

Total

2007
£m

2006
£m

2007
£m

2006
£m

2007
£m

2006
£m

234.9
21.3
0.1
6.4

210.3
18.0
1.6
2.3

5.1
0.3
0.1
–

79.2
10.5
2.9
3.5

240.0
21.6
0.2
6.4

289.5
28.5
4.5
5.8

262.7

232.2

5.5

96.1

268.2

328.3

In addition to salary, employees may qualify for various benefit schemes operated by the Group. Eligibility for benefits is normally determined primarily according to an
employee’s length of service and level of responsibility. The amounts of some benefits are proportionate to individual salary. Benefits may include paid leave for holidays,
maternity and illness, as well as insured benefits. The latter can cover private healthcare for the employee and their immediate family, long-term disability, personal accident
and death in service cover. Company cars, including fuel benefits, are provided predominantly to meet job requirements but also to certain executives.
The principal benefit schemes are:
(i) Pensions
Ladbrokes Pension Plan
Members contribute on average five per cent of pensionable salary per annum. Benefit accrues to provide a target pension of two thirds (for joiners after June 2002: half)
of final pensionable salary for an employee attaining age 65 with at least 40 years’ membership. A spouse’s pension is payable following death.
Ladbrokes Pension Plan – Executive Section
Members contribute on average six per cent of pensionable salary per annum. Benefit accrues to provide a target pension from all sources of two thirds of final pensionable
salary for an executive attaining age 60 with at least 20 years’ membership (for joiners after June 2002, employees attaining age 65 with at least 26.7 years’ service).
A spouse’s and children’s pensions are payable following death.
Senior executives subject to the Earnings Cap
Following the A-Day pensions review, the pre A-Day Revenue limits regime has been maintained as the framework for the Ladbrokes Pension Plan, including a Plan
specific Earnings Cap. Executive directors and senior executives have a choice between:
(i) membership of the Executive Section of the Ladbrokes Pension Plan plus a cash supplement of up to 30 per cent of base salary above the Earnings Cap; or
(ii) a cash supplement of up to 30 per cent of base salary in lieu of membership of the Ladbrokes Pension Plan.
(ii) Share-based payments
Details of employee share schemes operated by the Group are shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 40 that forms part of the Annual Report 2007.
Details of options granted in 2007 and outstanding at 31 December 2007 are shown on page 86, note 29.
Details of directors’ remuneration and the policies adopted in determining it can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 38 to 41.
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11 Income tax
Major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006 are:
2007
£m

2006
£m

83.6
0.5
(14.4)

53.0
2.3
(18.0)

11.1
(19.8)
(6.8)

15.3
–
–

Income tax expense

54.2

52.6

Reported as:
– continuing operations in consolidated income statement (before non-trading items)
– continuing operations in consolidated income statement (tax on non-trading items) (note 7)
– discontinued operations (note 14)

54.8
(2.0)
1.4

42.4
3.8
6.4

54.2

52.6

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Deferred income tax

(1.3)

(2.9)

Income tax reported in equity

(1.3)

(2.9)

Consolidated income statement
Current income tax
– current income tax charge
UK corporation tax
Overseas tax
– adjustments in respect of previous years
Deferred income tax
– relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
– as a result of recognising losses
– as a result of change in tax rate

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before income tax at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at the Group’s effective
income tax rate for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006 is as follows:
2007
£m

2006
£m

Accounting profit before income tax
– continuing operations
– discontinued operations

344.2
50.8

238.1
431.7

At UK statutory income tax rate of 30% (2006: 30%)
Lower effective tax rates on overseas earnings
Utilisation of tax losses
Non-deductible expenses
Non-taxable profits on discontinued and non-trading items
Adjustments in respect of prior periods
Effect of change in tax rate
Other

118.5
(11.1)
(20.8)
2.8
(13.5)
(14.5)
(6.8)
(0.4)

200.9
(6.4)
(6.7)
2.7
(119.3)
(18.0)
–
(0.6)

Income tax expense

54.2

52.6

Reported as:
– continuing operations
– discontinued operations

52.8
1.4

46.2
6.4
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11 Income tax continued
Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax at 31 December relates to the following:
Consolidated
balance sheet

Consolidated
income statement

2007
£m

2006
£m

2007
£m

2006
£m

43.6
89.3
9.4
–

14.8
91.7
6.8
1.3

5.3
(5.9)
1.2
(1.3)

11.6
–
2.8
(2.6)

Gross deferred income tax liabilities

142.3

114.6

Deferred income tax assets
Retirement benefit asset
Losses
Other temporary differences

(8.1)
(19.8)
(0.2)

(13.1)
–
–

5.0
(19.8)
–

3.5
–
–

Gross deferred income tax assets

(28.1)

(13.1)

(15.5)

15.3

Deferred income tax liabilities
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes
Betting licences
Retirement benefit obligation
Other temporary differences

Deferred income tax (credit)/charge

Net deferred income tax liability

114.2

101.5

The Group has tax losses at 31 December 2007 of £19.8 million (2006: £54.8 million) that are available indefinitely for offset against future taxable profits of
the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as there is insufficient certainty that there
will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of temporary differences may be deducted. There are no significant taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associated undertakings and joint ventures.
12 Dividends paid and proposed
Proposed dividends
Pence per share
Interim
Final

2007
pence

2006
pence

4.85
9.05

4.60
8.60

13.90

13.20

A final year end dividend of 9.05 pence per share (2006: 8.60 pence), amounting to a total dividend of £54.4 million (2006: £54.1 million), was declared by the directors
on 28 February 2008. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. The 2006 final dividend of 8.60 pence (£54.1 million) and the 2007 interim dividend
of 4.85 pence (£30.5 million) were paid in 2007.
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13 Earnings per share
The calculation of adjusted earnings per share before non-trading items is included as it provides a better understanding of the underlying performance of the Group.
Non-trading items are defined in note 2 and disclosed in notes 7, 11 and 14.
Continuing operations
Earnings
£m

Diluted
earnings
£m

Profit attributable to shareholders
Non-trading items net of tax

291.4
5.8

291.4
5.8

46.5p
0.9p

46.1p
0.9p

Adjusted profit attributable to shareholders

297.2

297.2

47.4p

47.0p

2007

Restated
2006

Earnings
£m

Diluted
earnings*
£m

Basic EPS
pence per
share

Basic EPS
pence per
share

Diluted EPS
pence per
share

Diluted EPS
pence per
share

Profit attributable to shareholders
Non-trading items net of tax

191.9
7.3

195.0
7.3

20.9p
0.8p

20.4p
0.8p

Adjusted profit attributable to shareholders

199.2

202.3

21.7p

21.2p

Earnings
£m

Diluted
earnings
£m

Discontinued operations

2007
Profit attributable to shareholders
Non-trading items net of tax
Adjusted profit attributable to shareholders

Restated
2006
Profit attributable to shareholders
Non-trading items net of tax
Adjusted profit attributable to shareholders

Basic EPS
pence per
share

Diluted EPS
pence per
share

49.4
(46.0)

49.4
(46.0)

7.9p
(7.3)p

7.9p
(7.3)p

3.4

3.4

0.6p

0.6p

Earnings
£m

Diluted
earnings*
£m

Basic EPS
pence per
share

Diluted EPS
pence per
share

425.3
(414.9)

425.3
(414.9)

46.3p
(45.2)p

44.3p
(43.3)p

10.4

10.4

1.1p

1.0p

Earnings
£m

Diluted
earnings
£m

Total Group

2007

Basic EPS
pence per
share

Diluted EPS
pence per
share

Profit attributable to shareholders
Non-trading items net of tax

340.8
(40.2)

340.8
(40.2)

54.4p
(6.4)p

54.0p
(6.4)p

Adjusted profit attributable to shareholders

300.6

300.6

48.0p

47.6p

Earnings
£m

Diluted
earnings*
£m

Profit attributable to shareholders
Non-trading items net of tax

617.2
(407.6)

620.3
(407.6)

67.2p
(44.4)p

64.7p
(42.5)p

Adjusted profit attributable to shareholders

209.6

212.7

22.8p

22.2p

2006

Basic EPS
pence per
share

Diluted EPS
pence per
share

*Diluted earnings include an adjustment to the attributable profit to reflect a reduction in the interest charge net of tax of £3.1 million in 2006 that would have resulted from
the conversion of the convertible bond to equity.
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13 Earnings per share continued
The number of shares used in the calculation is shown below:
2007
millions

2006
millions

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earnings per share
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Share options
Issue of contingently issuable shares
Convertible bond conversion to ordinary share capital

626.5

919.1

3.6
1.4
–

7.9
1.2
30.0

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of dilutive earnings per share

631.5

958.2

At 31 December 2007, there were 611.5 million 281⁄3 pence ordinary shares in issue excluding treasury shares (631.4 million including treasury shares).
At 31 December 2006, there were 627.8 million 281⁄3 pence ordinary shares in issue excluding treasury shares (627.8 million including treasury shares).
At 31 December 2007, 5.2 million (2006: 2.3 million) shares were deemed anti-dilutive for the purpose of calculating adjusted earnings per share.
14 Discontinued operations
On 3 December 2007, the Group completed the sale of the Vernons pools business to Sportech plc. On 23 February 2006, the Group completed the sale of the hotels
division to Hilton Hotels Corporation. The effect of the disposals is as follows:
2007
£m

2006
£m

Sale proceeds – cash consideration
Sale proceeds – deferred consideration(1)

40.8
6.2

3,241.4
–

Sale proceeds – total consideration
Total net liabilities/(assets) sold
Costs of disposal
Recycled foreign exchange

47.0
3.6
(4.6)
–

3,241.4
(2,765.9)
(95.1)
3.8

Profit on disposal

46.0

384.2

(1)The

deferred contribution is payable in two instalments, £3.2 million in 2008, and £3.0 million in 2009.

Profit for discontinued operations comprises the following:
2007
Vernons
£m

2006
Vernons
£m

Hotels
£m

Total
£m

16.8
(10.8)

18.6
(12.7)

264.4
(253.2)

283.0
(265.9)

Profit from discontinued operations
Net finance costs

6.0
(1.2)

5.9
(1.0)

11.2
(0.4)

17.1
(1.4)

Profit from discontinued operations after finance costs before non-trading items
Profit on disposal of Vernons to Sportech plc
Profit on disposal of hotels division to Hilton Hotels Corporation
Profit on sale of non-current assets(1)

4.8
46.0
–
–

4.9
–
–
–

10.8
–
384.2
28.0

15.7
–
384.2
28.0

Profit before tax and non-trading finance costs
Non-trading finance income

50.8
–

4.9
–

423.0
3.8

427.9
3.8

Profit before tax from discontinued operations
Taxation:
– related to pre tax profit
– related to non-trading items

50.8

4.9

426.8

431.7

(1.4)
–

(1.5)
–

(3.8)
(1.1)

(5.3)
(1.1)

Profit for the year from discontinued operations

49.4

3.4

421.9

425.3

3.4

3.4

7.0

10.4

Revenue
Expenses

Profit for the year from discontinued operations before non-trading items
(1)The

profit on sale of non-current assets in 2006 related to the sale of a 40 per cent interest in a Limited Partnership. The profit includes recognition of a deferred
gain on disposal following the sale of 10 hotels to the Limited Liability Partnership in 2002.
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14 Discontinued operations continued
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Vernons pools business held for sale as at disposal and of the hotels division held for sale as at disposal were:
3 December
2007
Vernons
£m

23 February
2006
Hotels
£m

–
0.4
–
–
–
–

1,375.0
1,923.4
72.8
5.0
27.6
0.4

0.4

3,404.2

–
0.4
1.4

15.1
282.9
67.8

1.8

365.8

Total assets held for sale

2.2

3,770.0

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Obligations under finance leases
Trade and other payables
Corporation tax liabilities

–
–
(5.5)
(0.3)

(43.6)
(2.6)
(427.9)
(37.9)

(5.8)

(512.0)

–
–
–
–
–
–

(12.3)
(30.8)
(20.6)
(329.3)
(92.5)
(3.6)

–

(489.1)

Total liabilities held for sale

(5.8)

(1,001.1)

Net (liabilities)/assets held for resale

(3.6)

2,768.9

–

(3.0)

(3.6)

2,765.9

Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Interests in associates and other investments
Other financial assets
Deferred tax asset
Retirement benefit asset

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Obligations under finance leases
Other financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation
Provisions

Minority equity interest
Group’s share of disposed net (liabilities)/assets
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14 Discontinued operations continued
Cash flows relating to discontinued operations were:
2007
£m

2006
£m

Net cash flows from operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Proceeds from disposal of discontinued operations
Disposal costs of discontinued operations
Cash disposed with discontinued operations

3.4
(0.1)
–
40.8
(0.7)
(1.4)

8.1
(5.5)
7.8
3,241.4
(74.7)
(54.2)

Cash flows relating to discontinued operations

42.0

3,122.9

2007
£m

2006
£m

Currency translation differences
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension scheme
Tax on items taken directly to equity

–
–
–

1.0
(3.8)
1.1

Total income and expenses recognised directly in equity

–

(1.7)

Customer
Software relationships
£m
£m

Total
£m

Income and expenses recognised directly in equity relating to the assets of the disposal group were:

15 Intangible assets
Goodwill
£m

Licences
£m

Cost
As at 1 January 2006
Exchange rate movements
Additions
Additions from business combinations
Disposals

35.4
–
–
9.3
–

362.1
(0.2)
3.2
27.6
(0.1)

30.0
–
6.1
–
(0.1)

–
–
–
–
–

427.5
(0.2)
9.3
36.9
(0.2)

As at 1 January 2007
Exchange rate movements
Additions
Additions from business combinations
Disposals

44.7
0.1
–
14.2
–

392.6
4.4
23.4
12.4
(0.6)

36.0
0.1
8.4
0.5
(0.8)

–
–
–
40.5
–

473.3
4.6
31.8
67.6
(1.4)

As at 31 December 2007

59.0

432.2

44.2

40.5

575.9

Amortisation
As at 1 January 2006
Amortisation

–
–

21.7
–

19.8
4.3

–
–

41.5
4.3

As at 1 January 2007
Amortisation
Disposals

–
–
–

21.7
–
–

24.1
5.0
(0.8)

–
–
–

45.8
5.0
(0.8)

As at 31 December 2007

–

21.7

28.3

–

50.0

Net book value

–

As at 31 December 2006

44.7

370.9

11.9

–

427.5

As at 31 December 2007

59.0

410.5

15.9

40.5

525.9
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15 Intangible assets continued
Intangible assets included in continuing operations
Licences comprises the cost of acquired betting shop licences. These are not amortised as they are considered to have an indefinite life for a combination of reasons:
– Ladbrokes is a leading operator in a well established market;
– there is a proven, sustained demand for bookmaking services; and
– existing law acts to restrict entry.
Ladbrokes has a very strong track record of renewing its betting permits and licences at minimal cost.
Software relates to the cost of software acquisition and the capitalised costs in respect of internally generated software.
Goodwill relates to the consideration exceeding the fair value of net assets of the acquisitions of Paddington Casino Limited and other acquired statutory entities as well
as the deferred tax liability arising on statutory licence acquisitions.
Customer relationships relate to contracted relationships acquired as part of a business combination.
16 Impairment testing of indefinite life intangibles
The Group tests annually for impairments, or more frequently if there are indications that indefinite life intangibles might be impaired, by comparing the carrying amounts
of these assets with their recoverable amounts (being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use).
Goodwill is tested for impairment by allocating its carrying amount to groups of cash generating units (CGUs) expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination;
if the recoverable amount of a group of CGUs exceeds its carrying amount, the group and any goodwill allocated to that group would be regarded as not impaired. Goodwill
of £48.3 million (2006: £44.7 million) relating to the European Retail continuing operations is allocated to the cash generating units that comprise the European Retail segment.
Licences have been allocated to the individual European Retail CGUs that are expected to benefit from the assets. The carrying value of licences at 31 December 2007 was
£410.5 million (2006: £370.9 million).
Goodwill of £10.7 million (2006: £nil) arising on the acquisition of Paddington Casino is allocated to a cash generating unit, disclosed in the “Other” segment.
Customer relationships of £40.5 million (2006: £nil) arising on the acquisition of Sponsio is allocated to a cash generating unit, disclosed in the “eGaming” segment.
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 10.3 per cent (2006: 10.4 per cent)
and cash flows beyond 2012 (2006: 2011) (budget is approved up until and including 2012 (2006: 2011)) are extrapolated using a 2.5 per cent growth rate (2006: 2.5 per cent).
This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.
The recoverable amount of the European Retail estate is significantly in excess of its carrying amount and there has been no impairment of goodwill or licences in 2007.
When applying sensitivities to these projections, impairments of individual CGUs may be necessary in the future if their recoverable amounts do not exceed their carrying amounts,
although this is not expected to be material. There would need to be a significant change in the cash flow projections or the discount rate before a material impairment charge
would be required.
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17 Property, plant and equipment
Land and
buildings
£m

Fixtures,
fittings, and
equipment
£m

Total
£m

Cost
As at 1 January 2006
Exchange rate movements
Additions
Additions from business combinations
Disposals

131.7
(0.1)
19.6
–
(3.7)

386.6
(0.5)
65.1
0.2
(8.1)

518.3
(0.6)
84.7
0.2
(11.8)

As at 1 January 2007
Exchange rate movements
Additions
Additions from business combinations
Transferred from assets held for sale(1)
Disposals

147.5
0.7
9.4
2.4
2.2
(4.8)

443.3
2.6
54.2
1.9
–
(9.6)

590.8
3.3
63.6
4.3
2.2
(14.4)

As at 31 December 2007

157.4

492.4

649.8

Depreciation
As at 1 January 2006
Exchange rate movements
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

72.5
(0.1)
6.9
(3.0)

246.8
(0.2)
31.2
(6.4)

319.3
(0.3)
38.1
(9.4)

As at 1 January 2007
Exchange rate movements
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

76.3
0.4
8.4
(2.1)

271.4
0.9
37.1
(6.4)

347.7
1.3
45.5
(8.5)

As at 31 December 2007

83.0

303.0

386.0

As at 31 December 2006

71.2

171.9

243.1

As at 31 December 2007

74.4

189.4

263.8

Net book value

At 31 December 2007, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounting to £1.2 million
(2006: £1.6 million).
(1)This

relates to a piece of undeveloped land. At 31 December 2007 it did not meet the criteria in IFRS 5: Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations,
in relation to assets held for sale, as it was not being actively marketed.
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18 Joint ventures
On 2 January 2007, the Group established a 50:50 joint venture company, Cirsa Ladbrokes Madrid Betting Company SL, with Cirsa Slot Corporation SL, to develop
a sports betting business in Spain, for a cost of £0.6 million.
Joint venture
share of
net assets
£m

Total
£m

–

–

Additions
Share of loss after tax

0.6
(0.2)

0.6
(0.2)

As at 31 December 2007

0.4

0.4

2007
£m

2006
£m

Cost
As at 1 January 2006 and 31 December 2006

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s net share of joint venture’s assets is set out below:

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

0.1
0.5
(0.2)

–
–
–

Net share of joint venture’s assets

0.4

–

2007
£m

2006
£m

–

–

(0.2)

–

Group’s share of joint venture’s revenue for the year
Group’s share of joint venture’s loss for the year
Further details of the Group’s joint venture are listed on page 95, note 36.
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19 Associates and other investments
Share of
associates’
net assets
£m

Loans to
associates
£m

Other
investments
£m

Total
£m

(21.4)
0.5
3.3
27.0
(0.8)

7.8
1.8
–
(7.8)
–

0.8
0.4
–
(0.6)
–

(12.8)
2.7
3.3
18.6
(0.8)

As at 1 January 2007
Additions
Share of profit after tax
Dividend received
Disposals

8.6
–
4.0
(2.3)
(1.0)

1.8
–
–
–
(1.8)

0.6
0.1
–
–
–

11.0
0.1
4.0
(2.3)
(2.8)

As at 31 December 2007

9.3

–

0.7

10.0

Cost
As at 1 January 2006
Additions
Share of profit after tax
Disposals/repayments of loans
Dividend received

Associates
On 3 January 2007, the Group acquired the remaining 65 per cent of the share capital of Paddington Casino Limited for £10.7 million, changing the status of its investment
in the company from an associate to a fully owned subsidiary.
On 31 March 2007, the Group reduced its shareholding in its associate, Satellite Information Services (Holdings) Limited (SIS) from 25.3 per cent to 23.4 per cent.
The table below outlines the profit on disposal of the reduced shareholding in SIS:
2007
£m

Proceeds
Share of associate’s net assets

2.2
(0.7)

Profit on sale of non-current assets

1.5

On 20 August 2007, the Group received a dividend from SIS of £2.3 million.
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set out below:

Total share of associates’ assets
Total share of associates’ liabilities
Net share of associates’ assets

Group’s share of associates’ revenue for the year
Group’s share of associates’ profit for the year
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

2007
£m

2006
£m

18.2
(8.9)

17.0
(8.4)

9.3

8.6

2007
£m

2006
£m

37.9

37.6

4.0
–

4.0
(0.7)

4.0

3.3

Further details of the Group’s associate are listed on page 95, note 36.
The financial year end of Satellite Information Services (Holdings) Limited is 31 March. The Group has included the results for Satellite Information Services (Holdings) Limited
for the 12 months ended 31 December 2007.
Other investments
Other investments consists of investments in ordinary shares which therefore have no fixed maturity rate or coupon rate.
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20 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Other receivables
Prepayments and accrued income

2007
£m

2006
£m

72.6
27.9
38.0

12.0
25.1
37.9

138.5

75.0

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-90 day terms. Trade receivables are reviewed for impairment on an ongoing basis, taking account
of the ageing of outstanding amounts and the credit profile of customers. Impaired receivables, including all trade receivables that are a year old, are provided for in an
allowance account. Impaired receivables are derecognised when they are assessed as unrecoverable.
As at 31 December 2007, trade receivables with an initial fair value of £26.1 million (2006: £4.0 million) were impaired and provided for. Movements in the provision for
impairment of receivables were as follows:
2007
£m

2006
£m

As at 1 January
Charge for the year
Unused amounts reversed

4.0
22.2
(0.1)

2.1
2.2
(0.3)

As at 31 December

26.1

4.0

As at 31 December, the analysis of trade receivables that were past due but not impaired is as follows:
Past due but not impaired

2007
2006

Total
£m

Neither past
due nor
impaired
£m

< 30
days
£m

30-60
days
£m

60-90
days
£m

90+
days
£m

72.6
12.0

52.9
2.7

17.2
0.3

0.2
0.8

0.3
0.2

2.0
8.0

2007
£m

2006
£m

37.5
0.3

36.1
0.3

37.8

36.4

21 Cash and short-term deposits
Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprises:

Continuing operations
Cash at bank and in hand
Deposits with maturity greater than three months
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21 Cash and short-term deposits continued
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less
and overdrafts:

Continuing operations
Cash at bank and in hand
Bank overdrafts (included in current liabilities)

2007
£m

2006
£m

37.5
(11.6)

36.1
(2.7)

25.9

33.4

2007
£m

2006
£m

3.9
62.7
15.6
116.9

8.3
49.0
11.4
104.7

199.1

173.4

22 Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Other payables
Other taxation and social security
Accruals and deferred income

23 Other financial liabilities – current
During the close period, the period between the year end and the preliminary annual results announcement, the Group is prevented from purchasing its own shares
by the UK Listing Authority’s Listing Rules, except under certain allowed purchase agreements with third parties.
The Group entered into such an agreement with its brokers and this commitment of £30.0 million (2006: £nil) is recognised in other financial liabilities. Antepost liabilities
total £0.1 million (2006: £1.0 million).
24 Provisions
Vacant property provision
Current
£m

Non-current
£m

Total
£m

As at 1 January 2007 – restated (note 39)
Arising during the year
Utilised

2.9
1.1
(1.4)

12.2
–
(1.7)

15.1
1.1
(3.1)

As at 31 December 2007

2.6

10.5

13.1

The periods of vacant property commitments range from one to 15 years (2006: one to 16 years).
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25 Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Current
Unsecured
Bank loans
7.25% bonds
Overdrafts
Loan notes

Non-current
Unsecured
Bank loans
Loan notes
7.25% bonds due 2008
6.5% bonds due 2009
7.125% bonds due 2012

Total interest bearing loans and borrowings

2007
£m

2006
£m

–
174.9
11.6
0.8

10.4
–
2.7
23.6

187.3

36.7

166.4
14.3
–
370.8
248.5

169.2
12.0
176.2
343.4
251.4

800.0

952.2

987.3

988.9

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:
GBP
£m

Euro
£m

Other
£m

Total
£m

Bank loans
Loan notes
Overdrafts
7.25% bonds due 2008
6.5% bonds due 2009
7.125% bonds due 2012

136.8
0.8
11.6
174.9
–
248.5

29.6
–
–
–
370.8
–

–
14.3
–
–
–
–

166.4
15.1
11.6
174.9
370.8
248.5

Total

572.6

400.4

14.3

987.3

2006

GBP
£m

Euro
£m

Other
£m

Total
£m

Bank loans
Loan notes
Overdrafts
7.25% bonds due 2008
6.5% bonds due 2009
7.125% bonds due 2012

172.8
1.3
2.7
176.1
–
251.4

6.9
–
–
–
343.4
–

–
34.3
–
–
–
–

179.7
35.6
2.7
176.1
343.4
251.4

Total

604.3

350.3

34.3

988.9

2007
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25 Interest bearing loans and borrowings continued
The total contractual undiscounted cash flows in relation to the interest bearing loans and borrowings will occur as follows:

On demand or within one year
Within one to two years
Within two to five years
After five years

2007
£m

2006
£m

250.2
416.4
498.1
–

96.8
228.6
616.3
267.4

1,164.7

1,209.1

The Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities of £558.6 million as at 31 December 2007 (2006: £555.8 million). The expiry profile of these is as follows:

In more than two years but no more than five years

2007
£m

2006
£m

558.6

555.8

26 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s treasury function provides a centralised service for the provision of finance and the management and control of liquidity, foreign exchange and interest rates.
The function operates as a cost centre and manages the Group’s treasury exposures to reduce risk in accordance with policies approved by the Board.
The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise: bank loans, overdrafts, loan notes, bonds, financial guarantee contracts, cash and short-term
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial instruments such as trade
debtors, trade creditors and accruals which arise directly from its operations.
The Group also enters into derivative transactions, such as forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and interest rate swaps. The purpose of these transactions
is to assist in the management of the Group’s financial risk and to generate the desired effective currency and interest rate profile.
It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.
The Group has a £2 billion Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN) programme that is used to increase the flexibility of funding with regards to source, cost, size and maturity.
At 31 December 2007, three public Eurobond issues had been made under this programme: a £175 million 7.25 per cent bond, maturing July 2008; a €500 million 6.5 per cent
bond, maturing July 2009 and a £250 million 7.125 per cent bond, maturing July 2012. Several loan notes have been issued under the programme in a variety of currencies.
At 31 December 2007, the Group had one remaining loan note with a carrying value of £14.3 million (2006: two loan notes with a carrying value of £34.3 million). Funds raised
via the EMTN programme have been used to repay bank debt.
The main financial risks for the Group are: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group also monitors the market price risk arising from all financial instruments.
Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on interest bearing loans and borrowings and on cash and cash equivalents.
The Group’s policy for the year ended 31 December 2007 was to maintain a minimum of 25 per cent of net debt at fixed interest rates (2006: 100 per cent at floating rates) and
is therefore sensitive to movements in variable short-term interest rates. At 31 December 2007, after taking account of interest rate and cross currency swaps, £268.5 million
(2006: £nil) of the Group’s gross borrowings were at fixed rates.
Foreign currency risk
The Group carries out operations through a number of foreign enterprises. The day to day transactions of overseas subsidiaries are carried out in local currencies. The Group’s
exposure to currency risk at a transactional level is monitored and reviewed regularly.
The Group seeks to mitigate the effect of its structural currency exposure that may arise from the translation of foreign currency assets by implementing economic hedges
in foreign currencies. These hedges are not part of documented net investment hedges. In view of the expansion into Europe currently being undertaken by the Group it is
anticipated that the level of foreign currency exposure will increase and that formal net investment hedges will be undertaken in the near future.
The Group has foreign currency borrowings, including a €500 million bond, some of which have been swapped into sterling. The total carrying value of these borrowings
at 31 December 2007 was £414.7 million (2006: £384.6 million) of which £385.1 million (2006: £377.7 million) was swapped into sterling.
Credit risk
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis.
Any changes to credit terms are assessed and authorised by senior management on an individual basis.
The Group’s Telephone Betting division incurs a level of high rollers betting activity. High rollers are individuals who place sizeable stakes. The Group manages this activity and
the associated risk exposure by utilising senior management expertise and setting maximum levels in respect of stakes placed. Of the £72.6 million (2006: £12.0 million) trade
receivables balance, £71.2 million (2006: £10.8 million) relates to the Group’s Telephone Betting division. The increase in 2007 in trade receivables and provision for impairment
are in respect of high rollers betting activity.
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and a guarantee
financial asset, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counter party, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. Credit
risk in respect of cash and cash equivalents and derivative financial instruments is managed by restricting those transactions to banks that have a defined minimum credit
rating and by setting an exposure ceiling per bank.
The Group also has exposure to credit risk arising from the financial guarantee contracts provided by the Group. This risk is partly mitigated by the indemnity received from
Hilton Hotels Corporation for any loss incurred in connection with these guarantees.
Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility, through the use of borrowings with a range of maturities. The Group’s policy on
liquidity is to ensure that there are sufficient medium and long-term committed borrowing facilities to meet the medium-term funding requirements. At 31 December 2007,
there were undrawn committed borrowing facilities of £558.6 million (2006: £555.8 million). Total committed facilities had an average maturity of 2.9 years (2006: 3.9 years).
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27 Financial instruments
The table below analyses the financial assets and liabilities into their relevant categories.

Loans and
receivables
£m

Loans at
amortised
cost
£m

Assets/
liabilities
at fair value
through
profit or loss
£m

Derivatives
in a
hedging
relationship
£m

Total
£m

4.4
–

–
–

3.0
3.2

–
1.3

7.4
4.5

Current
Trade and other receivables
Derivatives
Cash and short-term deposits

138.5
–
37.8

–
–
–

–
28.9
–

–
0.1
–

138.5
29.0
37.8

Total

180.7

–

35.1

1.4

217.2

Liabilities
Current
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities

–
–
–

(187.3)
(199.1)
–

–
–
(30.1)

–
–
–

(187.3)
(199.1)
(30.1)

Non-current
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Derivatives
Other financial liabilities

–
–
–

(800.0)
–
(4.5)

–
–
(10.0)

–
(1.0)
–

(800.0)
(1.0)
(14.5)

Total

–

(1,190.9)

(40.1)

(1.0)

(1,232.0)

180.7

(1,190.9)

(5.0)

0.4

(1,014.8)

31 December 2007
Assets
Non–current
Other financial assets
Derivatives

Net financial assets/(liabilities)

Derivatives used for hedging and assets and liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value.
Other than betting and gaming transactions, the Group does not hold any financial instruments for trading purposes.
The fair value of cash at bank and in hand approximates to book value due to its short-term maturity. The amortised costs of bank loans approximates to book value,
as these are re-priced at intervals of six months or less.
During the close period, the period between the year end and the preliminary annual results announcement, the Group is prevented from purchasing its own shares
by the UK Listing Authority’s Listing Rules. The Group entered into a contingent agreement in 2007 with its brokers to purchase shares during the close period. It is this
commitment of £30.0 million (2006: £nil), being the maximum value of the share buyback during the close period authorised by shareholders which is recognised under
other financial liabilities in the balance sheet.
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27 Financial instruments continued

Loans and
receivables
£m

Loans at
amortised
cost
£m

Assets/
liabilities
at fair value
through
profit or loss
£m

Derivatives
in a
hedging
relationship
£m

Total
£m

1.5
–

–
–

7.0
2.8

–
9.9

8.5
12.7

75.0
–
36.4

–
–
–

–
0.8
–

–
–
–

75.0
0.8
36.4

112.9

–

10.6

9.9

133.4

Liabilities
Current
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Derivatives
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities

–
–
–
–

(36.7)
–
(173.4)
–

–
(9.4)
–
(1.0)

–
(0.5)
–
–

(36.7)
(9.9)
(173.4)
(1.0)

Non-current
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Other financial liabilities

–
–

(952.2)
(1.3)

–
(14.0)

–
–

(952.2)
(15.3)

Total

–

(1,163.6)

(24.4)

(0.5)

(1,188.5)

112.9

(1,163.6)

(13.8)

9.4

(1,055.1)

31 December 2006
Assets
Non-current
Other financial assets
Derivatives
Current
Trade and other receivables
Derivatives
Cash and cash deposits
Total

Net assets/(liabilities)

Derivatives used for hedging and assets and liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value.
Other than betting and gaming transactions, the Group does not hold any financial instruments for trading purposes.
The fair value of cash at bank and in hand approximates to book value due to its short-term maturity. The amortised costs of bank loans approximates to book value,
as these are re-priced at intervals of six months or less.
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27 Financial instruments continued
Financial guarantee contracts
The Group has given guarantees to third parties in respect of lease liabilities of subsidiaries within the disposed hotels division. The Group has an indemnity received from
Hilton Hotels Corporation (HHC), at the time of the hotels division disposal, in relation to any loss the Group may subsequently incur under these third party guarantees.
The maximum liability exposure in respect of the guarantees is £1,228.1 million (2006: £1,288.9 million), with a maximum indemnity receivable of the same amount.
The maximum liability represents the total of all guaranteed rentals under the non-cancellable agreements into which the Group has entered. These guarantees expire
between 2009 and 2042 and the net present value of the maximum exposure at 31 December 2007 is £635.8 million (2006: £658.9 million). The Group monitors its
exposure under these guarantees on a regular basis and seeks, where appropriate, to novate its obligations.
The financial guarantees liability has been valued using a probability based model to estimate the net present value of the liabilities payable in the event of a default by
the hotels covered by the guarantees, and the probability of such a default and new leases being identified.
The financial guarantee asset has been valued on a similar basis to the liability, taking account of historic default data from internationally recognised credit-rating agencies
and the credit profile of the counter party, HHC, to assess the likelihood of HHC continuing to be solvent at the time of any future potential claim under the indemnity.
At 31 December 2007 the Group has recognised a financial liability of £10.0 million (2006: £14.0 million) in respect of these guarantees together with a financial asset
of £3.0 million (2006: £7.0 million) in relation to the indemnity.
Fair value of guarantees liability
2007
£m

2006
£m

As at 1 January
Initial recognition of guarantees liability on hotels disposal
Change in fair value attributable to hotels default risk
Guarantees expiring in the year

14.0
–
(3.0)
(1.0)

–
14.0
–
–

As at 31 December

10.0

14.0

2007
£m

2006
£m

As at 1 January
Initial recognition of guarantee asset on hotels disposal
Change in fair value attributable to credit risk of counterparty

7.0
–
(4.0)

–
7.0
–

As at 31 December

3.0

7.0

Fair value of guarantee asset

The change in the year in the fair value of the financial guarantee liability and asset have been recognised in the income statement and classified in discontinued operations.
The key assumption in the probability model is the hotel default rate. A rate of 1.2 per cent has been used as at 31 December 2007 (2006: 1.7 per cent). A 0.25 percentage
point increase in the default rate would increase the financial liability by £2.0 million.
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27 Financial instruments continued
Interest rate risk
The following table sets out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the Group’s financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk:
2007

Within 1 year
£m

1–2 years
£m

2–3 years
£m

3–4 years
£m

4–5 years
£m

> 5 years
£m

Total
£m

Floating rate(a)
7.25% GBP Bond 2008
6.5% Euro Bond 2009
HK Dollar loan note
Cash assets
Bank overdrafts
Loan notes
Interest rate swaps
Cross currency swaps
Foreign currency swaps
Bank loans

(174.9)
–
–
37.8
(11.6)
(0.8)
0.1
–
29.0
–

–
(370.8)
–
–
–
–
3.2
–
–
–

–
–
(14.3)
–
–
–
–
1.2
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(147.4)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

(174.9)
(370.8)
(14.3)
37.8
(11.6)
(0.8)
3.3
1.2
29.0
(147.4)

Total floating

(120.4)

(367.6)

(13.1)

(147.4)

–

–

(648.5)

Fixed rate
7.125% GBP Bond 2012
Interest rate swaps(c)
Bank loans(b)

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
(0.7)
(19.0)

(248.5)
(0.3)
–

–
–
–

(248.5)
(1.0)
(19.0)

Total fixed

–

–

–

(19.7)

(248.8)

–

(268.5)

(120.4)

(367.6)

(13.1)

(167.1)

(248.8)

–

(917.0)

Total
(a)At

31 December 2007, the Group had interest rate swap agreements in place that had an impact of switching fixed rate bonds with a carrying value of £560.0 million
to floating rates.
The fixed rate bonds and the interest rate swaps have the same critical terms.
(b)At 31 December 2007, the Group had interest rate swap agreements in place that had an impact of switching £19.0 million of bank debt from floating rate debt
to fixed rate debt. The floating rate bank debt and the interest rate swaps have the same critical terms.
(c)During December 2007, the Group entered into further interest rate swaps to hedge the cash flows of £180.0 million of bank borrowings with effect from 29 July 2008.
Interest on financial instruments classified as floating rate is re-priced at intervals of less than six months. Interest on financial instruments classified as fixed rate is fixed
until the maturity of the instrument. The other financial instruments of the Group that are not included in the above tables are non-interest bearing and are therefore not
subject to interest rate risk.
Within 1 year
£m

1–2 years
£m

2–3 years
£m

3–4 years
£m

4–5 years
£m

> 5 years
£m

Total
£m

–
–
–
–
(22.3)
36.4
(2.7)
(1.3)
(0.2)
0.6
(9.4)
(10.4)

(176.2)
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
1.5
–
–
–

–
(343.4)
–
–
–
–
–
–
8.0
–
–
–

–
–
–
(12.0)
–
–
–
–
–
1.6
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(169.2)

–
–
(251.4)
–
–
–
–
–
1.5
–
–
–

(176.2)
(343.4)
(251.4)
(12.0)
(22.3)
36.4
(2.7)
(1.3)
10.8
2.2
(9.4)
(179.6)

Total floating

(9.3)

(174.7)

(335.4)

(10.4)

(169.2)

(249.9)

(948.9)

Total

(9.3)

(174.7)

(335.4)

(10.4)

(169.2)

(249.9)

(948.9)

2006
Floating rate(a)
7.25% GBP Bond 2008
6.5% Euro Bond 2009
7.125% GBP Bond 2012
HK Dollar loan note
SE Krona loan note 2007
Cash assets
Bank overdrafts
Loan notes
Interest rate swap
Cross currency swaps
Foreign currency swaps
Bank loans

(a)At

31 December 2006, the Group had interest rate swap agreements in place which had an impact of switching the fixed rate bonds to floating rate. The fixed rate bonds
and the interest rate swaps have the same critical terms.
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27 Financial instruments continued
Sensitivity analysis
Foreign currencies
The Group has foreign exchange exposure to the Euro and US Dollar arising from foreign currency assets. The impact of a 10 per cent movement in the exchange rates
between sterling and these currencies is shown below:
GBP by 10%

Effect on profit before tax:
Euro balances
US Dollar balances
SE Krona balances

2007
£m

2006
£m

6.4
6.9
–

3.8
–
0.5

Interest rates
The Group’s policy is to maintain a minimum of 25 per cent of net debt at fixed interest rates and is therefore sensitive to movements in variable short-term interest rates.
The table below demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on income and equity for the year when this movement is applied to the
carrying value of financial assets and liabilities. The impact on equity is not significant.

Effect on profit before tax:
Increase in interest rates by 100 basis points
Decrease in interest rates by 100 basis points

2007
£m

2006
£m

(6.2)
6.2

(9.5)
9.5

Sensitivity has been estimated by applying the basis points movement to the carrying value of the financial assets and liabilities held by the Group at the period end.
Hedging activities
Hedging of net investments in foreign operations
The Group has continued to hold and enter into foreign exchange swaps and cross currency swaps that do not qualify as net investment hedges under IAS 39 but that
are economic hedges of the Group’s foreign currency borrowings.
The fair value of the Group’s cross currency swaps is £1.2 million (2006: £2.2 million), comprising £1.2 million (2006: £2.2 million) assets and £nil (2006: £nil) liabilities.
The fair value of the Group’s foreign currency swaps is an asset of £29.0 million (2006: liability of £9.4 million), comprising £29.0 million (2006: £nil) assets and £nil
(2006: £9.4 million) liabilities.
Fair value hedges
The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage its fair value exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings by swapping borrowings from fixed rates to floating
rates in accordance with the policy of the Group. Contracts with nominal values of £542.6 million (2006: £666.6 million) have fixed interest receipts and floating interest
payments based on LIBOR and EURIBOR. The contracts are outstanding for periods up until 2009. The fair value of these swaps at 31 December 2007 is £3.3 million
(2006: £11.3 million).
Cash flow hedges
During December 2007, the Group entered into contracts for interest rate swaps with nominal values of £180 million maturing between January 2011 and January 2012.
These contracts have floating rate receipts and fixed rate payables and take effect on 29 July 2008. The fair value at 31 December 2007 was a liability of £0.8 million which
has been deferred in equity.
Interest rate swap contracts in place at 31 December 2007 include a contract maturing in 2011, entered into during 2007, with a nominal value of £19.0 million with floating
rate receipts and fixed rate payables. The fair value of this interest rate swap contract at 31 December 2007 was a liability of £0.2 million, which has been deferred in equity.
At 31 December 2006, the Group held interest rate swap contracts to hedge its cash flow exposure on its floating rate SEK 300 million loan note. These interest rate swap
contracts had a nominal value of £22.3 million and matured in December 2007. The fair value of these interest rate swap contracts had been extinguished at maturity.
The movement in the fair value of these interest rate swap contracts during the year ended 31 December 2007 of £0.5 million has been recognised in the statement
of recognised income and expense.
There is no ineffectiveness recognised in the income statement arising from cash flow hedges.
Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholder value. The Group manages its capital structure (net debt and equity – see notes 28 and 30 for further details) and makes adjustments to it, in light
of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares.
The Group monitors capital using a net debt to EBITDA ratio. The target range is 3.5 to 3.75 times net debt to EBITDA ratio. The ratio at 31 December 2007 was
1.9 (3.1 adjusted to remove profit from high rollers) and at 31 December 2006 was 3.1 (3.2 adjusted to remove profit from high rollers). The Group has an ongoing share
buyback programme which commenced on 10 August 2007, and it is intended that, over time, the Group will repurchase shares in order to move towards its target
net debt to EBITDA range.
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28 Net debt
The Group’s net debt structure is as follows:
2007
£m

Non-current assets
Derivatives

2006
Continuing Discontinued
£m
£m

Total
£m

4.5

12.7

–

12.7

29.0
37.8

0.8
36.4

–
–

0.8
36.4

Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Derivatives

(11.6)
(175.7)
–

(2.7)
(16.3)
(9.9)

–
–
–

(2.7)
(16.3)
(9.9)

Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Derivatives

(800.0)
(1.0)

(952.2)
–

(17.7)
–

(969.9)
–

Net debt per balance sheet

(917.0)

(931.2)

(17.7)

(948.9)

Current assets
Derivatives
Cash and short-term deposits

29 Share capital
Number of
ordinary shares

£m

Authorised as at 31 December 2005 – 10p shares

2,300,000,000

230.0

Issued and fully paid
As at 1 January 2006 – 10p shares
During the period – 10p shares
Conversion of 10p shares to 281⁄3p shares

1,605,998,487
135,670,292
(1,126,962,152)

160.6
13.6
–

614,706,627

174.2

As at 13 April 2006 – 281⁄3p shares

Number of 281⁄3p
ordinary shares

£m

Authorised as at 31 December 2006 and 2007

892,941,175

253.0

Issued and fully paid
As at 13 April 2006
During the period

614,706,627
13,102,215

174.2
3.7

As at 1 January 2007
During the year

627,808,842
3,617,946

177.9
1.0

As at 31 December 2007

631,426,788

178.9

Number of 281⁄3p
ordinary shares

Shares issued as at 31 December 2007
Treasury shares

631,426,788
(19,930,386)

Shares issued as at 31 December 2007 excluding treasury shares

611,496,402
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29 Share capital continued
(a) The Company purchased 19,930,386 of its own ordinary shares of 281⁄3 pence each in the open market between 10 August 2007 and 31 December 2007, reducing
distributable reserves by £70.4 million. These are held as treasury shares and represent 3.2 per cent of the ordinary shares in issue (including treasury shares)
at 31 December 2007.
(b) During the year, the following fully paid shares of 281⁄3 pence each were issued for cash:
– 625,418 shares for £1,447,306 on exercise of options under the Ladbrokes plc 1978 share option scheme (‘1978 scheme’);
– 2,010,215 shares for £4,913,546 on exercise of options under the Ladbrokes plc international share option scheme (‘international scheme’);
– 26,648 shares for £46,162 on exercise of options under the Stakis 1994 share option scheme (‘1994 scheme’);
– 565,394 shares for £1,086,659 on exercise of options under the Ladbrokes plc 1983 savings related share option scheme (‘1983 scheme’);
– 21,686 shares for £6,144 on allocation of shares under the share incentive plan;
– 368,585 shares for £104,420 on allocation of shares under the performance share plan (‘the plan’).
(c) During the year, the following grants were made:
i) 1978 scheme
– options in respect of 263,857 shares at an exercise price of 411.4 pence per share to 458 executives and
– options in respect of 263,153 shares at an exercise price of 380.6 pence per share to 457 executives;
ii) international scheme
– options in respect of 392,043 shares at an exercise price of 411.4 pence per share to 97 executives and
– options in respect of 411,169 shares at an exercise price of 380.6 pence per share to 113 executives;
iii) 1983 scheme – options in respect of 683,285 shares at an exercise price of 349.56 pence per share to 820 employees;
iv) the plan – conditional awards in respect of up to a maximum of 1,047,786 shares to nine executives (including directors).
(d) As at 31 December 2007, the following were outstanding:
i) 1978 scheme – options in respect of 2,812,004 shares, which are normally exercisable (subject to performance conditions) during the period between three
and ten years from their respective dates of grant (the latest date for any exercise being 21 August 2017), at exercise prices from 141.60 pence per share to
422.80 pence per share for an aggregate cost of £8,990,710;
ii) international scheme – options in respect of 6,107,116 shares, which are normally exercisable (subject to performance conditions) during the period between
three and ten years from their respective dates of grant (the latest date for any exercise being 21 August 2017), at exercise prices from 141.60 pence per share
to 422.80 pence per share
– options in respect of 14,812 shares, which are normally exercisable during the same periods (the latest date for any exercise being
11 September 2012), and at the same exercise prices (being from 166.45 pence per share to 337.45 pence per share) as the options previously granted
under the 1978 scheme which they are exercisable instead of (at the election of the holders)
for an aggregate cost of £19,624,260 excluding costs in respect of 14,812 shares which are included in (d) i);
iii) 1994 scheme – options in respect of 8,784 shares, which are normally exercisable (subject to performance conditions) during the period between three
and ten years from the date of the grant (the latest date for any exercise being 12 February 2008), at an exercise price of 175.86 pence per share
for an aggregate cost of £15,448;
iv) 1983 scheme – options in respect of 2,680,435 shares, which are normally exercisable during the period of six months following the expiry of three or five
years (as previously selected by the holders) from their respective dates of grant (the latest date for any exercise being 31 January 2013), at exercise prices from
150.04 pence per share to 349.56 pence per share for an aggregate cost of £7,076,421;
v) the plan – conditional awards in respect of up to a maximum of 2,037,448 shares, which will normally vest (subject to performance conditions) after three years
from the respective dates of grant (the latest date being 1 January 2010).
(e) At the Annual General Meeting held on 18 May 2007, shareholders authorised the Company to purchase up to 62,780,884 of its ordinary shares in the market.
As at 27 February 2008, the Company had purchased 30,184,095 of its ordinary shares pursuant to that authority.

86 Annual Report and Accounts 2007

Ladbrokes R&A 07 Back1:Ladbrokes R&A 07 Back1

19/3/08

11:54

Page 87

30 Issued capital and reserves
Share
capital
£m

Share
premium
£m

Convertible
bond
adjustment
£m

Other
reserve
£m

160.6

1,767.7

34.3

158.2

–
4.3

–
66.0

–
–

13.0
–
–
–
–
–
–

287.0
6.1
–
–
–
–
–

At 31 December 2006

177.9

At 1 January 2007

At 1 January 2006
Total recognised income and expense
for the year
Issue of shares for cash
Issue of shares on conversion
of convertible bond
Share-based payment awards
Net increase due to shares held in ESOP trusts
Cost of share-based payments
Reserves transfer
Minority interests disposed
Equity dividends

Total recognised income and expense
for the year
Issue of shares for cash
Own shares purchased
Provision for share buybacks
Share-based payment awards
Net increase due to shares held in ESOP trusts
Cost of share-based payments
Equity dividends
At 31 December 2007

Treasury
and own
shares
£m

Retained
earnings
£m

Foreign
currency
translation
£m

Total
£m

Minority
interests
£m

Total
equity
£m

(16.0)

483.2

4.7

2,592.7

3.0

2,595.7

–
–

–
–

625.0
–

(2.5)
–

622.5
70.3

–
–

622.5
70.3

(25.8)
–
–
–
(8.5)
–
–

–
–
–
–
(158.2)
–
–

–
–
10.6
–
–
–
–

–
(0.7)
–
5.8
166.7
–
(4,208.4)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

274.2
5.4
10.6
5.8
–
–
(4,208.4)

–
–
–
–
–
(3.0)
–

274.2
5.4
10.6
5.8
–
(3.0)
(4,208.4)

2,126.8

–

–

(5.4)

(2,928.4)

2.2

(626.9)

–

(626.9)

177.9

2,126.8

–

–

(5.4)

(2,928.4)

2.2

(626.9)

–

(626.9)

–
0.9
–
–
0.1
–
–
–

–
6.7
–
–
0.7
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
(30.0)
–
–
–
–

–
–
(70.4)
–
–
(4.2)
–
–

344.1
–
–
–
(0.8)
–
6.4
(84.6)

7.2
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

351.3
7.6
(70.4)
(30.0)
–
(4.2)
6.4
(84.6)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

351.3
7.6
(70.4)
(30.0)
–
(4.2)
6.4
(84.6)

178.9

2,134.2

–

(30.0)

(80.0)

(2,663.3)

9.4

(450.8)

–

(450.8)

The other reserve in 2006 was used to record the premium on shares issued on acquisition of Scandic Hotels AB in 2001. Following the disposal of the hotels division
during 2006, this reserve has been transferred to retained earnings. The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries and arising on the Group’s net investment hedges.
In 2007, the other reserve of £30.0 million is with reference to the Group entering into a contingent agreement with its brokers to purchase shares during the close period.
For further details of treasury and own shares refer to notes 29 and 31.
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31 Employee share ownership plans
The Ladbrokes Share Ownership Trust (‘LSOT’) is used in connection with the Company’s Deferred Bonus Plan and the Restricted Share Plan (‘the Plans’). The LSOT
may also be used in connection with the Company’s other share-based plans, including the Ladbrokes plc International Share Option Scheme. The trustee of the LSOT,
Computershare Trustees (CI) Limited, purchases the Company’s shares in the open market, as required, on the basis of regular reviews of the anticipated liabilities
of the Group, with financing provided by the Company. Under the Plans, awards of shares are made either in the form of conditional shareholdings or nil priced options (for
certain non-UK executives) once the bonuses for the year ending 31 December have been finalised. Awards made under the Deferred Bonus Plan will vest two years (or three
years in respect of awards made from 2008 to executive directors and certain senior executives) after the award date. Awards made under the Restricted Share Plan will vest
in their entirety after three years (employees can elect for 50 per cent of the award to vest after two years). Shares in LSOT have been conditionally gifted to employees. Shares
are forfeited by employees who leave, other than for specified reasons, within the vesting period. All expenses of the LSOT are settled directly by the Company and charged
in the financial statements as incurred.
The Ladbrokes Share Incentive Plan (‘LSIP’) is currently used in connection with the Company’s OWN share plan (‘the OWN plan’) and Freeshare share plan (‘Freeshare’).
The trustee of the LSIP, Computershare Trustees (CI) Limited, purchases the Company’s shares in the open market, as required, using: (i) deductions made from the salaries
of participants in the OWN plan; (ii) dividends paid on the shares held by the LSIP and (iii) financing provided by the Company to make awards of Freeshares to employees
with more than one year’s service. Under the OWN plan, to match those shares acquired using participants’ salary deductions, one additional share is issued by the Company
to LSIP for every two held per employee. These shares are forfeited by employees who leave, other than for specified reasons, within the one year conditional vesting period.
At 31 December 2007, the LSIP held 913,950 shares, all of which are held on behalf of OWN plan and Freeshare share plan participants. All expenses of the LSIP are settled
directly by the Company and charged in the financial statements as incurred.
The following table shows the number of shares held in trust that have not yet vested unconditionally and the associated reduction in shareholders’ funds.
LSOT

LSIP

Shares
held
Number

Cost of
shares
£m

Shares
held
Number

At 31 December 2006
Shares purchased*
Vested in period

661,874
1,562,075
(258,155)

2.2
5.4
(1.0)

At 31 December 2007

1,965,794

6.6

Market value of shares in trusts
Unallocated shares in trusts

1,343,171

Total
Shares
held
Number

Cost of
shares
£m

937,198
145,587
(168,835)

3.2 1,599,072
0.1 1,707,662
(0.3) (426,990)

5.4
5.5
(1.3)

913,950

3.0

9.6

6.4

Cost of
shares
£m

2,879,744

3.0
–

9.4
1,343,171

*Of the £5.5 million total cost of shares purchased, £2.5 million was paid in cash in 2007.
32 Notes to the cash flow statement
Reconciliation of profit to net cash inflow from operating activities:
2007
£m

2006
£m

Profit before tax and finance costs – continuing(1)
Profit before tax and finance costs – discontinued(1)

420.0
6.0

262.2
17.1

Profit before tax and finance costs(1)

426.0

279.3

Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Costs of share-based payments
Increase in other financial assets
Increase in assets classified as held for sale
Increase in trade and other receivables
Decrease in other financial liabilities
Increase in trade and other payables
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions
Contribution to retirement benefit schemes
Share of results from joint venture
Share of results from associates
Other items

45.5
5.0
6.4
(0.2)
–
(63.2)
(1.7)
15.7
(3.0)
(6.1)
0.2
(4.0)
0.5

38.1
4.3
2.3
–
(6.3)
(1.8)
–
3.2
5.7
(67.6)
–
(3.3)
10.8

Cash generated by operations
Income taxes paid
Finance costs paid

421.1
(65.8)
(69.8)

264.7
(48.9)
(59.3)

Net cash inflow from operating activities

285.5

156.5

(1)before

non-trading items
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33 Retirement benefit schemes
Defined contribution schemes
The total cost charged to the income statement of £0.3 million for continuing operations (2006: £0.7 million for discontinued operations) represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.
Defined benefit plans
Following the disposal of the hotels division in 2006, the Group’s only significant retirement plan is the Ladbrokes Pension Plan, which is a final salary pension plan for UK
employees. Assets are held separately from those of the Group. Although the Group is responsible for the operation of this arrangement, professional advisers are appointed
to run it.
The latest formal actuarial valuation of the Ladbrokes Pension Plan was carried out with an effective date of 1 July 2005. A funding review, following the disposal of the hotels
division, was carried out in 2006 and a further review was carried out in 2007.
The results of the actuarial valuations were updated to 31 December 2007 by an independent qualified actuary in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits. The value
of the defined benefit obligation and current service cost has been measured using the projected unit credit method, as required by IAS 19.
During 2007, the sale of the Vernons Pools business was announced. Vernons Pools Limited is a participating employer in the Ladbrokes Pension Plan and contributed
£0.1 million during the year for those employees affected by the sale that have now ceased to participate in the Ladbrokes Pension Plan. The liabilities in respect of the affected
individuals have been retained in the Ladbrokes Pension Plan.
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
2007
£m

Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

2006
£m

(208.5)
242.1

(208.1)
230.7

Net asset
Amounts in the balance sheet:
Liabilities
Assets

33.6

22.6

–
33.6

–
22.6

Net asset

33.6

22.6

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:
2007

2006

£m

UK
Schemes
£m

Non-UK
Schemes
£m

Total
£m

4.5
0.1

4.6
1.0

–
1.0

4.6
2.0

Interest on obligation
– continuing operations
– discontinued operations

10.8
–

9.5
1.5

–
0.5

9.5
2.0

Expected return on plan assets:
– continuing operations
– discontinued operations

(14.2)
–

(12.1)
(1.4)

–
(0.4)

(12.1)
(1.8)

Gains on curtailments and settlements:
– continuing operations

(1.0)

(0.4)

–

(0.4)

Total expense recognised in the income statement in staff costs:
– continuing operations
– discontinued operations

0.1
0.1

1.6
1.1

–
1.1

1.6
2.2

Analysis of amounts charged to staff costs:
Current service cost (excluding employee element)
– continuing operations
– discontinued operations

The actual return on plan assets over the year was £11.2 million (2006: £22.8 million).
The amount recognised outside the income statement but in the statement of recognised income and expense (SORIE) for 2007 is a gain of £5.1 million (2006: gain
of £9.6 million). The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the SORIE at 31 December 2007 is a loss of £14.8 million (2006: loss of £19.9 million).
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33 Retirement benefit schemes continued
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
2007

£m

2006
UK
Schemes
£m

Non-UK
Schemes
£m

Total
£m

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost (excluding employee element)
Employee contributions
Interest cost
Gains on curtailments
Liabilities extinguished on settlements
Actuarial gains
Benefits paid

(208.1)
(4.6)
(1.5)
(10.8)
1.0
–
8.1
7.4

(401.3)
(5.6)
(1.7)
(11.0)
–
197.8
0.7
13.0

(99.5)
(1.0)
–
(0.5)
–
100.1
–
0.9

(500.8)
(6.6)
(1.7)
(11.5)
–
297.9
0.7
13.9

Closing defined benefit obligation

(208.5)

(208.1)

–

(208.1)

UK
Schemes
£m

Non-UK
Schemes
£m

Total
£m

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
2007

£m

2006

Opening defined benefit asset
Expected return
Actuarial (losses)/gains
Contributions by sponsoring companies
Assets distributed on settlements
Contributions from plan members
Benefits paid

230.7
14.2
(3.0)
6.1
–
1.5
(7.4)

293.9
13.5
8.9
123.1
(197.4)
1.7
(13.0)

63.4
0.4
–
1.2
(64.1)
–
(0.9)

357.3
13.9
8.9
124.3
(261.5)
1.7
(13.9)

Closing defined benefit asset

242.1

230.7

–

230.7

2007
£m

2006
£m

50.0
50.0

67.0
33.0

100.0

100.0

2007
%

2006
%

5.9
6.1
6.2
3.1

5.2
6.5
5.9
2.8

The Group expects to contribute £6 million to its defined benefit plan in 2008.
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows:

Equity instruments (%)
Debt instruments (%)

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages where appropriate):

Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets
Future salary growth
Future pension increases – LPI 5%

The overall expected return on plan assets was derived as an average of the long-term expected rates of return on each of the major asset classes invested in, weighted
by the allocations of assets among the classes. The sources used to determine the best estimate of long-term returns include: bond yields, inflation and investment
market expectations derived from market data and analysts’ or government’s expectations. At 31 December 2007, the long-term expected rate of return on equity
instruments, debt instruments and other assets was assumed to be 7.6 per cent pa, 4.6 per cent pa and 4.4 per cent pa, respectively, for the Plan.
The post retirement mortality assumed for most members is based on the standard PA92 mortality table with medium cohort projection, which takes into account future
improvements, adjusted to reflect plan specific experience. The assumption used implies that the expected future lifetime of members aged 65 in 2007 is 85.0 years for
males and 87.9 years for females. For members with large pensions, a longer lifetime is assumed (88.6 for males and 91.7 for females).
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33 Retirement benefit schemes continued
Changes to the assumptions will impact the amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the income statement in respect of the Plan. For the significant assumptions,
the following sensitivity analysis provides an indication of the impact for the year ended 31 December 2007, excluding the impact on the associated deferred tax items:
2007
£m

A 0.5% pa decrease in the discount rate would have the following approximate effect:
Increase in the current service cost (excluding employee element)
Decrease in the balance sheet asset as at 31 December 2007
(This ignores the potential positive impact that a general fall in bond yields may have on the value of the bond assets held by the Plan)

0.8
18.4

A 1.0% pa decrease in the expected return on Plan assets would have the following approximate effect:
Increase in the amount charged to staff costs

2.2

A one year increase in life expectancy would have the following approximate effect:
Increase in the current service cost (excluding employee element)
Decrease in the balance sheet asset as at 31 December 2007

0.1

A 0.5% pa increase in price inflation would have the following approximate effect:
Increase in the current service cost (excluding employee element)
Decrease in the balance sheet asset as at 31 December 2007

0.5

5.0

10.2

Amounts for the current year and the prior three years are as follows:
2007

£m

Defined benefit obligation
Plan assets
Surplus/(deficit)
Experience gain/(loss) on plan liabilities
Experience (loss)/gain on plan assets

(208.5)
242.1
33.6
8.1
(3.0)

2006

2005

£m

UK
Schemes
£m

Non-UK
Schemes
£m

(208.1)
230.7
22.6
0.7
8.9

(401.3)
293.9
(107.4)
(49.6)
34.0

(99.5)
63.4
(36.1)
(3.5)
0.2

2004

Total
£m

UK
Schemes
£m

Non-UK
Schemes
£m

Total
£m

(500.8)
357.3
(143.5)
(53.1)
34.2

(332.7)
236.9
(95.8)
(11.2)
7.7

(86.5)
53.7
(32.8)
(6.5)
(0.4)

(419.2)
290.6
(128.6)
(17.7)
7.3
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34 Share-based payments
Ladbrokes plc has a performance share plan, an approved and an unapproved share option plan, a sharesave, a share incentive plan, a restricted share plan and an annual
bonus plan. The plans and the various performance conditions are discussed in more detail below. All of the plans listed below are equity settled share-based payments.
(i) Annual bonus – compulsory and voluntary deferral into shares
For senior executives, one third of the gross annual bonus is delivered in shares that vest, subject to continued employment, after three years. For other employees, half of the
gross annual bonus is delivered in shares that vest, subject to continued employment, after two years. In respect of the annual bonus years 2004 to 2005, where a participant
earned a bonus and further Group performance criteria were met, participants were invited to invest up to 25 per cent of the value of their total bonus in Ladbrokes plc shares
which must then be held for three years. The Group matched any percentage up to the 25 per cent maximum voluntarily invested by a participant. The matching shares vest
after three years, subject to continued employment and the participant continuing to hold the shares purchased by their voluntary investment.
(ii) Sharesave – related share options scheme
This is a sharesave scheme with options granted at a 20 per cent discount to market value. The scheme operates with either a three or five years’ saving with vesting after
this time.
(iii) Share incentive plan
(a) Under the OWN Plan, employees can contribute up to £75 per month to acquire Ladbrokes plc shares. For every two shares purchased, the Group provides a match
of one additional share.
(b) An award of Freeshares up to £250 in value is made to participating employees on reaching one year’s service.
(iv) Share options
The options granted are all market value options with a three year vesting period. Vested options lapse if they have not been exercised within ten years of the date of grant.
All options have an EPS growth based performance condition.
(v) Restricted plan
An award under the Restricted plan will vest in its entirety after three years. However, employees can elect for 50 per cent of the award to vest after two years.
(vi) Performance share plan (‘PSP’)
An award under the PSP consists of a conditional allocation of shares which will vest, subject to the achievement of performance conditions, at the end of the three year
period. The performance conditions are set out below. No dividends are paid to employees during the vesting period nor at the end of the period as dividend equivalents.
2004 awards
The vested 2004 awards had two separate performance conditions; half of the award vested based on TSR and half of the award vested based on an operating profit
growth target for Betting and Gaming employees, and return on capital employed for the discontinued hotels division.
2005 and 2006 awards
The 2005 and 2006 awards shall vest based on two separate performance conditions; half of the award vests based on TSR and half of the award vests based
on operating profit growth.
2007 awards
The 2007 awards have two separate performance conditions; half of the award vests based on TSR and half of the award vests based on EPS.
For a more detailed description of each of the above plans, refer to the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of share options:
2007
Number

2007
WAEP-£

2006
Number

2006
WAEP-£

Outstanding at the beginning of the year(1)
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year
Lapsed during the year

15,184,352
2,013,507
(3,227,675)
(2,361,845)

2.73
3.80
2.32
2.49

44,500,785
4,038,490
(31,129,948)
(2,224,975)

1.76
3.88
2.25
2.21

Outstanding at the end of the year(1)

11,608,339

3.08

15,184,352

2.73

3,814,253

2.30

5,530,970

2.24

Exercisable at the end of the year
(1)Included

within this balance are options over 1,976,356 shares that have not been recognised in accordance with IFRS 2 as the options were granted on or before 7 November
2002. These options have not been subsequently modified and therefore do not need to be accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2.
Of the 11,608,339 share options outstanding, as at 31 December 2007, 5,185,371 are at a price above the year end share price of 323.25 pence. The total value of these
shares is £20.5 million.
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was £4.29 (2006: £3.83). The weighted average fair value of options
granted during the year was 91 pence (2006: 94 pence). The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding at 31 December 2007 is between
seven and eight years (2006: between seven and eight years). The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was £1.42-£4.23 (2006: £1.42-£4.23).
At 31 December 2007, there were 1,889,921 options outstanding with an exercise price between £1.42 and £2.00, 3,777,696 options outstanding with an exercise
price between £2.01 and £3.00, 3,106,031 options outstanding with an exercise price between £3.01 and £4.00 and 2,834,691 options outstanding with an exercise price
between £4.00 and £4.23.
At 31 December 2006, there were 3,578,295 options outstanding with an exercise price between £1.42 and £2.00, 6,997,143 options outstanding with an exercise price
between £2.01 and £3.00, 2,354,702 options outstanding with an exercise price between £3.01 and £4.00 and 2,254,212 options outstanding with an exercise price between
£4.00 and £4.23.
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34 Share-based payments continued
The inputs into the binominal model are as follows:

Weighted average share price (£)
Weighted average exercise price (£)
Expected volatility (%)
Expected life (years)
Risk free rate (%)
Expected dividends (%)

2007

2006

4.14
3.80
18.0
4.4
5.41
2.50

4.07
3.89
24.0
4.0
4.70
2.73

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group’s share price over the previous four years. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.
The Group recognised expenses of £6.4 million (2006: £5.8 million) relating to equity settled share-based payment transactions.
Share awards granted during the year:

Number
Weighted average fair value

2007

2006

1,047,786
£4.04

812,209
£3.40

The fair value of share awards was measured by calculating the present value of the dividends receivable between the grant date and the vesting date and valuing the
market related performance conditions through the use of a closed-form model, similar to a Monte Carlo simulation.
35 Commitments and contingencies
Operating lease commitments – Group as lessee
The Group has a number of lease agreements that pursuant to their economic substance, qualify as non-cancellable operating lease agreements. These primarily relate
to rents payable on land and buildings. The terms of the leases vary significantly but can broadly be summarised as follows:
Lease terms
Shop leases are typically 15 years with a tenant only break clause at 10 years and rent reviews every five years. Other leases are typically between three and 10 years.
Determination of rent payments
Rent payments are based on the amount specified in the agreement.
Terms of renewal
The agreements are not terminated automatically after expiry of the lease term and in the majority of cases, lease extension options have been agreed upon and in many
other cases, there will be an opportunity to negotiate lease extensions with the lessor.
Restrictions
There are no restrictions imposed upon the Group, concerning dividends, additional debt or further leasing under any of the existing lease arrangements, although there
were occasionally non-financial restrictions on leases preventing the Group from opening or operating another competing hotel for a specified number of years.
Subleases
The Group does sublease areas of leased properties and receives sublease payments from third parties.
Lease payments recognised as an expense for the year:

Minimum lease payments
Contingent rents

2007
£m

2006
£m

54.6
–

77.8
16.7

54.6

94.5

2007
£m

2006
£m

53.7
0.2
0.7
–

50.9
0.1
–
26.8

54.6

77.8

Analysis of minimum lease payments by division:

European Retail
eGaming
Other
Hotels

Annual Report and Accounts 2007 93

Ladbrokes R&A 07 Back1:Ladbrokes R&A 07 Back1

19/3/08

11:54

Page 94

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 Commitments and contingencies continued
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
More than five years

Total of future minimum sublease income expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases at the balance sheet date

2007
£m

2006
£m

50.0
155.6
177.4

52.6
158.7
158.4

383.0

369.7

2007
£m

2006
£m

12.2

11.2

Operating lease commitments – Group as lessor
The Group has entered into sublease agreements for unutilised space in the UK shop estate. These non-cancellable leases have remaining lease terms of between
one and 10 years.
The hotels division, which was disposed of in 2006, entered into sub-lease agreements such as casinos and boutiques in certain areas in the hotels.
Lease receipts recognised as income for the period:
2007
£m

2006
£m

Minimum lease receipts
Contingent rent receipts

3.8
–

8.9
0.4

Total

3.8

9.3

2007
£m

2006
£m

2.7
5.9
3.6

2.6
5.6
3.0

12.2

11.2

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
More than five years

Finance lease commitments
Following the disposal of the hotels division in 2006 the Group no longer holds assets under finance leases.
Contingent liabilities
The following contingent liabilities exist at 31 December 2007:
Guarantees have been given in the ordinary course of business in respect of loans granted to subsidiaries amounting to £974.9 million (2006: £984.9 million). In addition,
subsidiaries have guaranteed loans of £0.8 million (2006: £1.3 million) given in the normal course of business to subsidiary companies.
Bank guarantees have been issued on behalf of subsidiaries and joint ventures with a value of £17.7 million (2006: £26.4 million).
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36 Related party disclosures
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Ladbrokes plc and its subsidiaries. The principal subsidiaries are listed in the following table.
% equity interest

Country of
Incorporation

2007

2006

Betting and Gaming
Ladbrokes Betting & Gaming Limited
Jack Brown (Bookmaker) Limited
Ladbroke (Ireland) Limited
Ladbrokes Leisure (Ireland) Limited
Ladbrokes International Limited
Tiercé Ladbroke SA(1)

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Ireland
Ireland
Gibraltar
Belgium

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

Central services
Ladbrokes Group Finance plc(1)

United Kingdom

100.0

100.0

(1)directly

owned by Ladbrokes plc

All of the undertakings listed above are wholly owned by the Group and only have ordinary shares in issue unless otherwise indicated.
The following table provides a list of joint ventures:

Cirsa Ladbrokes Madrid Betting Company SL

% equity interest

Country of
Incorporation

2007

2006

Spain

50.0

–

Country of
Incorporation

2007

2006

United Kingdom

23.4

25.3

The following table provides a list of associates:

Satellite Information Services (Holdings)
(1)During

Limited(1)

% equity interest

the year, the Group disposed of 1.9 per cent of its investment.

A full list of subsidiary and other related undertakings will be annexed to the next annual return of Ladbrokes plc to be filed with the Registrar of Companies.
Other than its associates and joint venture, significant related parties of the Group are the executive and non-executive directors of the Group.
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture and other related parties are disclosed on the next page.
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36 Related party disclosures continued
Trading transactions
During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions with related parties who are not members of the Group:

Equity investment
– Joint venture(1)
Settlement of loans
– Associates
Additional loans provided
– Associates
– Joint venture partner
Dividends received
– Associates
Sundry expenditures
– Associates(2)

2007
£m

2006
£m

0.6

–

–

7.8

–
0.5

1.8
–

2.3

0.5

33.1

36.3

(1)The

equity investment included in this category relates to the investment in Cirsa Ladbrokes Madrid Betting Company SL of £0.6 million (2006: £nil).
payments that are included in this category relate to payments made to Satellite Information Services (Holdings) Limited of £33.1 million (2006: £32.3 million).
In 2006, rental payments were also made to Tindall Hotels Limited Partnership of £4.0 million before it was disposed.

(2)Significant

Details of related party outstanding balances

Loan balances outstanding
– Associates
– Joint venture partner
Other receivables outstanding
– Associates

2007
£m

2006
£m

–
0.5

1.8
–

3.0

–

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Sales to and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prices and in the ordinary course of business. Outstanding balances at 31 December 2007 are
unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group has not raised any provision for doubtful debts relating to amounts owed
by related parties, as the payment history has been excellent (2006: £nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position
of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 Related
Party Disclosures. Further information about the remuneration of individual directors is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 41 to 48.
2007
£m

2006
£m

Short-term employee benefits
Retirement benefits
Share-based payments

5.4
0.4
1.2

2.9
0.4
1.8

Total compensation paid to key management personnel

7.0

5.1

Directors’ interests in the employee share incentive plan and employee share trust are disclosed within the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
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37 Business combinations
In 2007, the Group acquired the following interests with net assets at fair value of £50.7 million, for a consideration of £64.9 million (cash paid of £60.9 million, with a
deferred consideration of £4.0 million, resulting in goodwill on acquisition of £14.2 million:
Consideration
£m

Interest

Date of
acquisition

10.7
41.8

65%*
100%

3 January 2007
18 January 2007

3.1
1.4
4.3
1.5
1.5
0.6

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

28 February 2007
27 June 2007
7 August 2007
10 August 2007
29 August 2007
30 November 2007

Paddington Casino Limited
Sponsio Limited
European Retail acquisitions
Keenan Sports and Leisure Limited
Micheletto Agenzia Ippica Cuneo SRL
Parco Del Lido SRL
Montecarlo SRL
Laura Bassi SRL
Ace Racing Limited

*The acquisition of 65 per cent during 2007 took the Group’s shareholding to 100 per cent. At 31 December 2006, the Group held a 35 per cent shareholding
that it accounted for as an investment in associate.
Sponsio Limited
Sponsio Limited is a Swedish service provider for the Group’s eGaming operations and has formed part of the Group’s eGaming segment.
The acquisition and fair value balance sheet of Sponsio Limited is as follows:
Acquiree’s carrying
amount before
combination
£m

Fair value
adjustments
£m

Total
£m

Non-current assets
Intangible assets – customer relationships
Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

–

40.5

40.5

0.7
1.9

–
–

0.7
1.9

Total assets

2.6

40.5

43.1

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

(1.3)

–

(1.3)

Total liabilities

(1.3)

–

(1.3)

Fair value of net assets acquired

1.3

40.5

41.8

Consideration
Cash consideration
Acquisition costs
Deferred consideration

37.4
0.4
4.0

–
–
–

37.4
0.4
4.0

Total consideration

41.8

–

41.8

The cash outflow on acquisition is as follows:
Net cash acquired with subsidiaries
Cash paid (including costs)

(1.9)
37.8

–
–

(1.9)
37.8

Net cash outflow

35.9

–

35.9

The customer relationships of £40.5 million relate to the fair value of contracted relationships that Sponsio Limited held at the acquisition date.
From the date of acquisition, Sponsio Limited has contributed £nil to revenue and £2.3 million of operating profit to the Group.
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37 Business combinations continued
Paddington Casino Limited
Paddington Casino Limited is a land based casino in London, England and has formed part of the Group’s Other segment.
The acquisition and fair value balance sheet of Paddington Casino Limited is as follows:
Paddington
Casino Limited
£m

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

0.5
4.3
0.1
0.5

Total assets

5.4

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Interest bearing loans and borrowings

(1.3)
(4.1)

Total liabilities

(5.4)

Fair value of net assets acquired

–

Goodwill arising on acquisition

10.7

Consideration
Cash consideration
Acquisition costs

10.6
0.1

Total consideration

10.7

The cash outflow on acquisition is as follows:
Net cash acquired with subsidiaries
Cash paid (including costs)

(0.5)
10.7

Net cash outflow

10.2

The goodwill of £10.7 million comprises a customer list, which is not separately recognised. The customer list is not contracted and therefore does not meet recognition
criteria under IAS 38 Intangible Assets.
From the date of acquisition, Paddington Casino Limited has contributed £7.2 million to revenue and £0.7 million of operating loss to the Group.

98 Annual Report and Accounts 2007

Ladbrokes R&A 07 Back1:Ladbrokes R&A 07 Back1

19/3/08

11:54

Page 99

37 Business combinations continued
European Retail statutory acquisitions
The Group made six acquisitions, which have formed part of its European Retail segment:
Keenan Sport and Leisure Limited (based in Ireland)
Ace Racing Limited (based in Ireland)
Micheletto Agenzia Ippica Cuneo SRL (based in Italy)
Parco Del Lido SRL (based in Italy)
Montecarlo SRL (based in Italy)
Laura Bassi SRL (based in Italy)
As shown in the table below, these acquisitions have been disclosed in aggregate, as they are not considered individually material to the Group.
Acquiree’s carrying
amount before
combination
£m

Fair value
adjustments
£m

Total
£m

Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Other financial assets

0.3
0.7
0.1

12.1
(0.7)
–

12.4
–
0.1

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

0.2
1.3

–
–

0.2
1.3

Total assets

2.6

11.4

14.0

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Deferred income tax liability

(1.6)
–

–
(3.5)

(1.6)
(3.5)

Total liabilities

(1.6)

(3.5)

(5.1)

Fair value of net assets acquired

8.9

Goodwill arising on acquisition

3.5

Consideration
Cash consideration
Acquisition costs

11.8
0.6

Total consideration

12.4

The cash outflow on acquisition is as follows:
Net cash acquired with subsidiaries
Cash paid (including costs)

(1.3)
12.4

Net cash outflow

11.1

From the dates of acquisition, the European Retail acquisitions have contributed £2.5 million to revenue and £0.6 million of operating profit to the Group.
If the Sponsio Limited, Paddington Casino Limited and European Retail statutory acquisitions had been completed on the first day of the financial year, Group revenues
for the year would have been £5.4 million higher and Group profit attributable to the equity holders of the parent Company would have been £1.3 million higher than
disclosed in the income statement.
2006 Acquisitions
In 2006, the Group acquired the following interests with net assets at fair value of £19.3 million (including licences of £27.6 million), for a consideration of £28.6 million
(cash paid of £26.0 million, with a deferred consideration of £2.6 million), resulting in goodwill on acquisition of £9.3 million:

Harney Bookmakers Limited
MD Betting Limited
North West Bookmakers Limited
Nuova Pianeta Scommesse SRL
Mantovani SRL and Better SRL

Consideration
£m

Interest
%

Date of
acquisition

6.2
4.8
12.8
0.7
4.1

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
51.0%
100.0%

26 April 2006
15 September 2006
29 September 2006
18 October 2006
1 December 2006

From the dates of these acquisitions to 31 December 2006, the European Retail acquisitions contributed £1.7 million to the net profit of the Group. If these acquisitions
had been completed on the first day of 2006, profit from these acquisitions in 2006 would have been £4.4 million.
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38 Events after the balance sheet date
A final dividend of 9.05 pence has been proposed and will be paid on 2 June 2008.
On 4 February 2008, the Group acquired 100 per cent of the ordinary share capital of Agenzie Scommesse SRL, a betting company in Italy, for a cash consideration
of £14.2 million, deferred consideration of £3.2 million, costs of acquisition of £0.2 million, and acquired £5.5 million of net assets of which £5.4 million are intangible assets.
The purchase price allocation has not been completed due to the recent date of the acquisition.
On 6 February 2008, the Group acquired the trade and assets of Eastwood Bookmakers, in Northern Ireland, for a cash consideration of £117.5 million, costs of acquisition
of £0.6 million, and acquired £2.0 million of net assets, all of which were property, plant and equipment. The purchase price allocation has not been completed due to the
recent date of the acquisition.
The Company purchased 10.3 million of its own ordinary shares of 281⁄3p each in the open market between 1 January 2008 and 27 February 2008 for a cost of £30.2 million. These
are held as treasury shares.
39 Restatement of income statement for the year ended 31 December 2006
Reported
Adjustment
before Discontinued
non-trading operations –
items
Vernons
£m
£m

Amounts staked(1)

Adjustment
Revenue
£m

Restated
before
non-trading
items
£m

12,383.8

(37.9)

–

12,345.9

Continuing operations
Revenue
Share of results from associates

966.0
4.0

(18.6)
–

–
(4.0)

947.4
–

Total revenue
Cost of sales before depreciation
Administrative expenses
Share of results from associates

970.0
(573.3)
(86.2)
–

(18.6)
3.6
8.9
–

(4.0)
–
–
4.0

947.4
(569.7)
(77.3)
4.0

EBITDA

310.5

(6.1)

–

304.4

(42.4)

0.2

–

(42.2)

Profit before tax and finance costs
Finance costs
Finance income

268.1
(62.3)
40.7

(5.9)
1.0
–

–
–
–

262.2
(61.3)
40.7

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

246.5
(43.9)

(4.9)
1.5

–
–

241.6
(42.4)

Profit for the year – continuing operations

202.6

(3.4)

–

199.2

7.0

3.4

–

10.4

Profit for the year

209.6

–

–

209.6

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent

209.6

–

–

209.6

209.6

–

–

209.6

22.0p
21.5p

(0.3)p
(0.3)p

–
–

21.7p
21.2p

22.8p
22.2p

–
–

–
–

22.8p
22.2p

Depreciation and amounts written off non-current assets

Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations

Earnings per share from continuing operations:
– basic
– diluted
Earnings per share on profit for the year:
– basic
– diluted
(1)Amounts

staked does not represent the Group’s statutory revenue and comprises the total amount staked by customers on betting and gaming activities.
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39 Restatement of income statement for the year ended 31 December 2006 continued
Segment information note for the year ended 31 December 2006
The allocation of shared costs has been adjusted in 2007 to reflect more accurately each division’s current activity. The segmental information for the year ended 31 December
2006 has been restated to reflect this change to reported profit and is shown in the table below:

Year ended 31 December 2006

Reported
Adjustment
profit before
relating to
taxation and
allocation
non-trading
of shared
(1)
costs
items
£m
£m

Restated
profit before
taxation and
non-trading
items
£m

Continuing operations:
European Retail
eGaming
Telephone Betting
Other
Corporate costs

212.7
47.0
17.7
–
(15.2)

4.1
(2.7)
(0.4)
(1.6)
0.6

216.8
44.3
17.3
(1.6)
(14.6)

Total
Net finance costs

262.2
(20.6)

–
–

262.2
(20.6)

Discontinued operations:

241.6
15.7

–
–

241.6
15.7

257.3

–

257.3

(1)Reported

profit in 2006 restated to classify Vernons as discontinued operations.

Non-trading finance costs
Non-trading finance costs and finance income has been restated to disclose the net impact of gains and losses on fair value hedges within finance costs.
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2006
The balance sheet for 31 December 2006 has been restated for reclassifications of £2.9 million of non-current liability provisions to current liability provisions and £1.0 million
of non-current financial liabilities to current financial liabilities.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN
RELATION TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in relation to the consolidated
financial statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and those
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union. The Directors are required to prepare financial statements for each financial
year that present fairly the financial position of the Group and the financial
performance and cash flows of the Group for that period. In preparing those financial
statements, the Directors are required to:
select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides
relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;
provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements
in IFRSs is insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position
and financial performance; and
state that the Company has complied with IFRSs, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements.
The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and of
the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LADBROKES PLC

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Ladbrokes plc
We have audited the Group financial statements of Ladbrokes plc for the year ended
31 December 2007 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the
Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income
and Expense, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 to 39.
These Group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies
set out therein.
We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements
of Ladbrokes plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 and on the information
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance
with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the Group
financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.
Our responsibility is to audit the Group financial statements in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland).
We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give
a true and fair view and whether the Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation. We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the
Directors’ report is consistent with the Group financial statements. The information
given in the Directors’ report includes that specific information presented in the
Financial Review that is cross referred from the Business Review section of the
Directors’ report.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures
in the Group financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the Group
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error.
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the Group financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion:
the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the Group’s affairs
as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended;
the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation; and
the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the Group
financial statements.

Ernst & Young LLP
Registered auditor
London
28 February 2008

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
director’s remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.
We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the Company’s
compliance with the nine provisions of the 2006 Combined Code specified for our
review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does
not. We are not required to consider whether the board’s statements on internal
control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the
group’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.
We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether
it is consistent with the audited group financial statements. The other information
comprises only the Directors’ Report, the Chairman’s Statement, the Financial
Review and the Corporate Governance Statement. We consider the implications
for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the Group financial statements. Our responsibilities do not
extend to any other information.

Annual Report and Accounts 2007 103

Ladbrokes R&A 07 Back2:Ladbrokes R&A 07 Back2

19/3/08

11:55

Page 104

COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

Restated
2006
£m

Note

2007
£m

Fixed assets
Investments

6

3,327.5

2,819.8

Current assets
Debtors

7

436.6

851.1

Creditors – amounts falling due within one year

8

436.6
(99.8)

851.1
(44.0)

336.8

807.1

3,664.3

3,626.9

(394.1)
(33.8)

(390.2)
(5.9)

3,236.4
25.4

3,230.8
17.1

3,261.8

3,247.9

178.9
2,134.2
(30.0)
(80.0)
0.1
1,058.6

177.9
2,126.8
–
(5.4)
0.1
948.5

3,261.8

3,247.9

As at 31 December

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors – amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities and charges

10

Net assets excluding pension asset
Net pension asset

15

9

Net assets
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Other reserves
Treasury and own shares
Capital reserve
Profit and loss account
Total equity

12
13
13
13
13
13

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2008
C Bell
B G Wallace
Directors
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except as otherwise stated. They have been drawn up to comply with applicable
UK accounting standards.
The Company has taken advantage of the provision of FRS 1 (revised) which
exempts subsidiaries, 90 per cent or more of whose voting rights are controlled
within the Group, from preparing a cash flow statement. The required consolidated
cash flow statement has been included within the consolidated IFRSs financial
statements of the Group.
The Company has restated its comparative year balance sheet and profit for
the year ended 31 December 2006 to recognise a financial liability and a financial
asset in relation to guarantees given to third parties in respect of lease liabilities
of subsidiaries within the disposed hotels division and an indemnity received from
Hilton Hotels Corporation respectively.
2 Change in accounting policies
There have been no changes in accounting policies during the year.
3 Summary of significant accounting policies
Investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less provision for any impairment.
The Company assesses these investments for impairment wherever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an investment may
not be recoverable. If any such indication of impairment exists, the Company makes
an estimate of the recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit is less than the value of the investment, the investment is considered
to be impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.
Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes party to the contracts
that give rise to them.
The Company classifies financial assets at inception as either financial assets at
fair value or loans and receivables. On initial recognition, loans and receivables are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value comprise
guarantees provided to the Company. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured initially at fair value, with transaction costs taken directly to
the profit and loss account. Subsequently, the fair values are remeasured, and gains
and losses from changes therein are recognised in the profit and loss account.
Financial guarantees provided to the Company are classified as financial assets and
are measured at fair value by estimating the probability of the guarantees being called
upon and the related cash inflows to the Company.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities comprise guarantees given to third parties. On initial recognition,
financial liabilities are measured at fair value plus transactions costs where they
are not categorised as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured initially at fair value, with
transaction costs taken directly to the profit and loss account. Subsequently, the fair
values are remeasured, and gains and losses from changes therein are recognised
in the profit and loss account.
Financial guarantee contracts
The Company has provided financial guarantees to third parties in respect of lease
obligations of certain of the Company’s former subsidiaries within the disposed
hotels division. Financial guarantee contracts are classified as financial liabilities
and are measured at fair value by estimating the probability of the guarantees
being called upon and the related cash outflows from the Company.
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the
assets has expired; or when the Company has transferred its contractual right
to receive the cash flows from the financial assets, and either
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred; or
substantially all the risks and rewards have neither been retained nor transferred
but control is not retained.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled
or expires.
106 Annual Report and Accounts 2007

Taxation
Deferred tax is recognised as an asset or liability, at appropriate rates, in respect
of transactions and events recognised in the financial statements of the current
and previous periods which give the entity a right to pay less, or an obligation to pay
more, tax in future periods. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent it is
probable that there will be suitable taxable profits from which they can be recovered.
No provision is made for any taxation on capital gains that would arise from the future
disposal of any fixed assets shown in the financial statements at valuation, except to
the extent that at the balance sheet date there is a binding sale agreement.
Deferred tax balances are not discounted.
Foreign currency translation
The presentation and functional currency of the Company and the functional
currencies of its UK subsidiaries, is sterling (£).
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in sterling at the foreign
currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the foreign currency rate
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
All foreign currency translation differences are taken to the profit and loss account
with the exception of differences on foreign currency borrowings that provide a post
tax hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity. These are taken directly to
equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised
in the profit and loss account. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those borrowings are also dealt with in equity.
Non monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial transaction.
Non monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was determined.
Pensions
The Company is the principal employer of the Ladbrokes Pension Plan, a funded
defined benefit group plan. The pension cost relating to the plan is assessed in
accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries using the projected
credit unit method.
Any actuarial gains or losses arising are taken to equity in the period in which they arise.
Any past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are
already vested, and otherwise are amortised on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the benefits are vested.
The defined benefit asset recognised in the balance sheet represents the fair value
of plan assets less the present value of defined benefit obligations adjusted for
any unrecognised past service costs. If necessary, the net defined benefit surplus
is limited to the amount that can be recovered through reduced Company
contributions in the future plus any refunds that have been agreed at the balance
sheet date.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Share-based payments
The cost of equity settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined using
a binomial model, further details of which are given on page 93, note 34 of the consolidated IFRSs financial statements. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account
is taken of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of Ladbrokes plc (‘market conditions’).
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (‘vesting date’). The cumulative expense recognised for equity settled transactions
at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the number of awards that, in the opinion of the Directors of the
Company at that date, based on the best available estimate of the number of equity instruments will ultimately vest.
No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.
ESOP trusts
Where the Company holds its own equity shares through an ESOP trust these shares are shown as a reduction in equity. Any consideration paid or received for the purchase
or sale of these shares is shown in the reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds and no gain or loss is recognised within the profit and loss account or the statement
of total recognised gains and losses on the purchase, sale or cancellation of these shares.
Treasury shares
Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
Share buybacks in the close period
During the close period, the period between the year end and the preliminary results announcement, the Company is prevented from purchasing its own shares by the
UK Listing Authority’s Listing Rules, except under certain allowed contingent purchase agreements with third parties. In accordance with FRS 25 Financial Instruments
Presentation, a financial liability is recognised when the Company enters into such an agreement, representing the purchase price of the shares the Company may be
required to purchase.
4 Profit and loss account of the parent Company
As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the profit and loss account of the parent Company has not been separately presented in these financial statements.
The parent Company profit for the year was £186.7 million (restated 2006: £1,820.0 million).
5 Dividends paid and proposed
Proposed dividends
Pence per share
Interim
Final

2007
pence

2006
pence

4.85
9.05

4.60
8.60

13.90

13.20

A final dividend of 9.05 pence (2006 8.60 pence) per share, amounting to a total dividend of £54.4 million (2006: £54.1 million) was declared by the Directors on
28 February 2008. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. The 2006 final dividend of 8.60 pence (£54.1 million) and the 2007 interim dividend
of 4.85 pence (£30.5 million) were paid in 2007.
6 Fixed asset investments
Shares in
Group
companies
£m

Unlisted
investments
at cost
£m

Total
£m

Cost
As at 31 December 2006
Exchange rate movements
Additions
Disposals

4,827.0
–
508.7
–

7.8
–
–
(1.0)

4,834.8
–
508.7
(1.0)

As at 31 December 2007

5,335.7

6.8

5,342.5

Provision for impairment
As at 31 December 2006
Provided during the year

2,015.0
–

–
–

2,015.0
–

As at 31 December 2007

2,015.0

–

2,015.0

As at 31 December 2006

2,812.0

7.8

2,819.8

As at 31 December 2007

3,320.7

6.8

3,327.5

Net book value

Principal subsidiaries are listed in note 36 of the consolidated IFRSs financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts due from Group companies
Other debtors
Deferred tax asset

Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Other debtors
Financial asset – financial guarantee contract
Deferred tax asset

2007
£m

Restated
2006
£m

424.4
1.1
3.8

827.7
1.8
4.2

429.3

833.7

–
3.0
4.3

1.5
7.0
8.9

7.3

17.4

436.6

851.1

A financial asset of £3.0 million (2006: £7.0 million) has been recognised at 31 December 2007 that relates to the indemnity received from Hilton Hotels Corporation,
at the time of the disposal of the hotels division, in relation to any loss the Company may subsequently incur under these third party guarantees.
8 Creditors – amounts falling due within one year

Other financial liabilities
Other creditors
Corporate taxation
Accruals and deferred income
Amounts due to Group companies

2007
£m

2006
£m

30.0
0.7
22.7
10.0
36.4

–
0.9
14.9
4.6
23.6

99.8

44.0

During the close period, the period between the year end and the preliminary annual results announcement, the Company is prevented from purchasing its own shares
by the UK Listing Authority’s Listing Rules, except under certain allowed purchase agreements with third parties. The Company entered into such an agreement with its
brokers and this commitment of £30.0 million (2006: £nil) is recognised in other financial liabilities.
9 Creditors – amounts falling due after more than one year

Amounts due to Group companies
Financial liability – financial guarantee contract

2007
£m

Restated
2006
£m

384.1
10.0

376.2
14.0

394.1

390.2

Financial guarantee contracts
The Company has given guarantees to third parties in respect of lease liabilities of subsidiaries within the disposed hotels division. The Company has an indemnity
received from Hilton Hotels Corporation (HHC), at the time of the hotels division disposal, in relation to any loss the Company may subsequently incur under these
third party guarantees.
The maximum liability exposure in respect of the guarantees is £1,228.1 million (2006: £1,228.9 million), with a maximum indemnity receivable of the same amount.
The maximum liability represents the total of all guaranteed rentals under the non-cancellable agreements into which the Company has entered. These guarantees expire
between 2009 and 2042 and the net present value of the maximum exposure at 31 December 2007 is £635.8 million (2006: £658.9 million). The Company monitors its
exposure under these guarantees on a regular basis and seeks, where appropriate, to novate its obligations.
The financial guarantees liability has been valued using a probability based model to estimate the net present value of the liabilities payable in the event of a default by
the hotels covered by the guarantees, and the probability of such a default and new leases being identified.
The financial guarantee asset has been valued on a similar basis to the liability, taking account of historic default data from internationally recognised credit-rating agencies
and the credit profile of the counter party, HHC, to assess the likelihood of HHC continuing to be solvent at the time of any future potential claim under the indemnity.
At 31 December 2007, the Company has recognised a financial liability of £10.0 million (2006: £14.0 million) in respect of these guarantees together with a financial asset
of £3.0 million (2006: £7.0 million) in relation to the indemnity.
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10 Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred taxation
£m

As at 31 December 2006
Amounts charged in the profit and loss account for the year
Released during the year

5.9
27.9
–

As at 31 December 2007

33.8

Analysis of deferred tax by type of timing difference:
2007
£m

2006
£m

(9.9)
(33.8)
8.1

(7.3)
(5.9)
13.1

(35.6)

(0.1)

(9.9)
8.1
(33.8)

(7.3)
13.1
(5.9)

(35.6)

(0.1)

2007
£m

2006
£m

Opening balance
Amounts charged or credited in the profit and loss account for the year
Tax on items recognised directly in equity

(0.1)
(32.9)
(2.6)

34.5
(29.3)
(5.3)

Closing balance

(35.6)

(0.1)

Deferred tax liability on pension asset
Capital allowances
Other timing differences

Reported as:
Deferred tax liability on pension asset
Other deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Analysis of movements in deferred tax:

11 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company had exposure to credit risk arising from guarantees, given to subsidiary companies of its former hotels division, in respect of rent liabilities. Details of these
guarantees are given in note 9 and in the consolidated IFRSs financial statements in note 27.
12 Share capital
Number of
ordinary
shares

£m

Authorised as at 31 December 2005 – 10p shares

2,300,000,000

230.0

Issued and fully paid
As at 1 January 2006 – 10p shares
During the period – 10p shares
Conversion of 10p shares to 281⁄3 p shares

1,605,998,487
135,670,292
(1,126,962,152)

160.6
13.6
–

614,706,627

174.2

As at 13 April 2006 – 281⁄3 p shares
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12 Share capital continued
Number of
281⁄3p ordinary
shares

£m

Authorised as at 31 December 2006 and 2007

892,941,175

253.0

Issued and fully paid
As at 13 April 2006
During the period

614,706,627
13,102,215

174.2
3.7

As at 1 January 2007
During the year

627,808,842
3,617,946

177.9
1.0

As at 31 December 2007

631,426,788

178.9

Number of
281⁄3p ordinary
shares

Shares issued as at 31 December 2007
Treasury shares

631,426,788
(19,930,386)

Shares issued as at 31 December 2007 excluding treasury shares

611,496,402

The Company purchased 19,930,386 of its own ordinary shares of 281⁄3 pence each in the open market between 10 August 2007 and 31 December 2007, reducing
distributable reserves by £70.4 million.
Details of shares issued in the year are given in the consolidated IFRSs financial statements in note 29.
13 Reconciliation of shareholders’ funds and movements on reserves
Share
capital
£m

Share
premium
£m

As at 1 January 2006
Profit for the financial year restated
Issue of shares for cash
Issue of shares on conversion of convertible bond
Net decrease due to shares held in ESOP trusts
Share-based payment awards
Cost of share-based payments
Actuarial gains on defined pension schemes
Tax on items taken directly to equity
Reserves transfer
Dividends

160.6
–
4.3
13.0
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

1,767.7
–
66.0
287.0
–
6.1
–
–
–
–
–

158.2
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(158.2)
–

As at 31 December 2006 restated

177.9

2,126.8

–
0.9
–
–
–
0.1
–
–
–
–
178.9

Profit for the financial year
Issue of shares for cash
Provision for share buybacks
Net increase due to shares held in ESOP trusts
Purchase of own shares
Share-based payment awards
Cost of share-based payments
Actuarial gains on defined pension schemes
Tax on items taken directly to equity
Dividends
As at 31 December 2007

Other Treasury and
reserves
shares
£m
£m

Capital
reserve
£m

Profit and
loss account
£m

Total
£m

(16.0)
–
–
–
10.6
–
–
–
–
–
–

0.1
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

3,170.1
1,820.0
–
–
–
(0.7)
5.8
8.8
(5.3)
158.2
(4,208.4)

5,240.7
1,820.0
70.3
300.0
10.6
5.4
5.8
8.8
(5.3)
–
(4,208.4)

–

(5.4)

0.1

948.5

3,247.9

–
6.7
–
–
–
0.7
–
–
–
–

–
–
(30.0)
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
(4.2)
(70.4)
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

186.7
–
–
–
–
(0.8)
6.4
5.0
(2.6)
(84.6)

186.7
7.6
(30.0)
(4.2)
(70.4)
–
6.4
5.0
(2.6)
(84.6)

2,134.2

(30.0)

(80.0)

0.1

1,058.6

3,261.8

The profit and loss account includes currently non-distributable reserves of £420.4 million (2006: £420.4 million).
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14 Employee share ownership plans
Details of the employee share ownership plans of the Company are given in the consolidated IFRSs financial statements in note 31.
The following table shows the number of shares held in trust that have not yet vested unconditionally and the associated reduction in shareholders’ funds.
LSOT

LSIP

Shares
held
Number

Cost of
shares
£m

Shares
held
Number

As at 31 December 2006
Shares purchased
Vested in period

661,874
1,562,075
(258,155)

2.2
5.4
(1.0)

As at 31 December 2007

1,965,794

6.6

Market value of shares in trusts
Unallocated shares in trusts

1,343,171

Total
Shares
held
Number

Cost of
shares
£m

937,198
145,587
(168,835)

3.2 1,599,072
0.1 1,707,662
(0.3) (426,990)

5.4
5.5
(1.3)

913,950

3.0

9.6

6.4

Cost of
shares
£m

2,879,744

3.0
–

9.4
1,343,171

15 Pensions
The Company’s main pension plan is the Ladbrokes Pension Plan.
The latest formal actuarial valuation of the plan was carried out with an effective date of 1 July 2005. A funding review, following the disposal of the hotels division, was carried
out in 2006 and a further review was carried out in 2007.
The latest funding review was updated to 31 December 2007 by an independent qualified actuary in accordance with FRS 17. The defined benefit obligations and current
service cost have been measured using the projected unit credit method.
The following table sets out the key FRS 17 assumptions used for the plan. The table also sets out as at 31 December 2005, 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2007,
the fair value of assets, a breakdown of the assets into the main asset classes, the present value of the FRS 17 liabilities, the surplus (or deficit) of assets compared to the
FRS 17 liabilities, the related deferred tax liability (or asset) and the net pension asset (or liability).

Assumptions:
Inflation
Pension increases
(LPI 5% for UK)
Salary growth
Discount rate
Expected long-term return for:
– Equities
– Bonds
– Other
Fair value of assets
Composed of:
– Equities
– Bonds
– Other
Present value of liabilities
Surplus/(deficit)
Related deferred tax (liability)/asset
Net pension asset/(liability)

2007
£m

2006
£m

2005
£m

3.2%pa
3.1%pa

2.9%pa
2.8%pa

2.6%pa
2.5%pa

6.2%pa
5.9%pa

5.9%pa
5.2%pa

5.6%pa
4.8%pa

7.6%pa
4.6%pa
4.4%pa
£243.8m

7.5%pa
4.5%pa
4.3%pa
£232.5m

7.5%pa
4.2%pa
4.2%pa
£296.5m

50.0%
50.0%
–
£208.5m
£35.3m
(£9.9m)

67.0%
33.0%
–
£208.1m
£24.4m
(£7.3m)

75.0%
23.0%
2.0%
£401.3m
(£104.8m)
£31.4m

£25.4m

£17.1m

(£73.4m)

The contributions made by the employers in 2007, in respect of the Ladbrokes Pension Plan, were £6.1 million. In 2006, employers paid £123.1 million that included
a special contribution of £111.0 million, half of which was paid by the Company and half of which was paid by Hilton Hotels Corporation.
During 2007, the sale of the Vernons Pools business was announced. Vernons Pools Limited is a participating employer in the Ladbrokes Pension Plan and contributed
£0.1 million during the year for those employees affected by the sale that have now ceased to participate in the Ladbrokes Pension Plan. The liabilities in respect of the
affected individuals have been retained in the Ladbrokes Pension Plan.
The currently agreed level of employer contributions is 24.5 per cent of pensionable payroll, leading to an expected contribution of £6.0 million in 2008. As the Plan is closed
to new entrants and, under the method used to calculate pension costs in accordance with FRS 17, the service cost as a percentage of covered pensionable payroll will tend
to increase over time as the average age of the membership increases.
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15 Pensions continued
The following table sets out the amounts charged to the profit and loss account and directly in equity for the year ended 31 December 2007 in accordance with the
requirements of FRS 17, together with the prior year comparatives.

Analysis of amounts charged to operating profit:
Current service cost (excluding employee element)
– continuing operations
– discontinued operations
Settlement credit
– discontinued operations
Curtailment credit
– continuing operations
Operating charge
– continuing operations
– discontinued operations
Analysis of the amount credited to other finance income:
Expected return on pension scheme assets
– continuing operations
– discontinued operations
Interest on pension scheme liabilities
– continuing operations
– discontinued operations
Net return
– continuing operations
– discontinued operations
Analysis of the amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses (STRGL):
Actuarial return less expected return on pension scheme assets
Experience losses arising on the scheme liabilities
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities
Actuarial gain recognised in the STRGL
Movement in surplus/(deficit) during the year
Surplus/(deficit) at beginning of year
Movement in year:
Current service cost
Contributions from sponsoring companies
Settlement gain
Curtailment gain
Other finance income
Actuarial gain
Surplus in scheme at end of the year

2005
£m

2006
£m

4.5
0.1

4.8
0.8

–

(0.4)

(1.0)

–

3.5
0.1

4.8
0.4

14.2
–

12.1
1.4

(10.8)
–

(9.5)
(1.5)

3.4
–

2.6
(0.1)

(3.1)
(5.8)
13.9

8.5
(3.0)
3.3

5.0

8.8

24.4

(104.8)

(4.6)
6.1
–
1.0
3.4
5.0

(5.6)
123.1
0.4
–
2.5
8.8

35.3

24.4

2004
£m

2003
£m

History of experience gains and (losses)

2007
£m

Difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets:
Amount (£m)
Percentage of scheme assets (%)

(3.1)
1.3%

8.5
4.0%

34.0
11.0%

8.0
3.0%

17.8
8.0%

Experience gains and (losses) on scheme liabilities:
Amount (£m)
Percentage of scheme liabilities (%)

(5.8)
2.4%

(3.0)
1.0%

(0.3)
–

–
–

–
–

Total amount recognised in statement of total recognised gains and losses:
Amount (£m)
Percentage of scheme liabilities (%)

5.0
2.1%

8.8
4.0%

(15.6)
4.0%

(3.2)
1.0%
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16 Share-based payments
Details of share-based payments are given in the consolidated IFRSs financial statements in note 34.
17 Contingencies
The following contingent liabilities exist at 31 December 2007:
Guarantees have been given in the ordinary course of business in respect of loans granted to subsidiaries amounting to £974.9 million (2006: £984.9 million). In addition,
subsidiaries have guaranteed loans of £0.8 million (2006: £1.3 million) given in the normal course of business to subsidiary companies and companies in which they
hold minority equity investments. The Company has given guarantees to third parties in respect of rent liabilities of certain of its former subsidiaries within the disposed
hotels division. For further details see note 9.
Bank guarantees have been issued on behalf of subsidiaries and joint ventures with a value of £17.7 million (2006: £26.4 million).
18 Events after the balance sheet date
A final dividend of 9.05 pence has been proposed and will be paid on 2 June 2008.
On 4 February 2008, a subsidiary of the Company acquired 100 per cent of the ordinary share capital of Agenzie Scommesse SRL, a betting company in Italy for a cash
consideration of £14.2 million, deferred consideration of £3.2 million and costs of acquisition of £0.2 million.
On 6 February 2008, a subsidiary of the Company acquired the trade and assets of Eastwood Bookmakers, in Northern Ireland, for a cash consideration of £117.5 million
and costs of acquisition of £0.6 million.
The Company purchased 10.3 million of its own ordinary shares of 281⁄3p each in the open market between 1 January 2008 and 27 February 2008 for a cost of £30.2 million.
These are held as treasury shares.

Annual Report and Accounts 2007 113

Ladbrokes R&A 07 Back2:Ladbrokes R&A 07 Back2

19/3/08

11:55

Page 114

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RELATION
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation
to the financial statements
The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the statement
of auditor’s responsibilities set out on page 115 is made with a view to distinguishing
for shareholders the respective responsibilities of the Directors and the auditors
in relation to the financial statements.
The Directors are required by the Companies Act 1985 to prepare financial
statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the
Company for the year.
The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements on pages 105
to 113 the Company has used appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied
and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, and that all
accounting standards that they consider to be applicable have been followed,
subject to any explanations and any material departures disclosed in the notes
to the accounts.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The Directors have responsibility for ensuring that the Company keeps accounting
records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the
Company and that enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985.
The Directors have general responsibility for taking such steps, as are reasonably
open to them and which they deem appropriate to safeguard the assets of the
Company and to seek to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LADBROKES PLC

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Ladbrokes plc
We have audited the parent Company financial statements of Ladbrokes plc for the
year ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the Balance Sheet and the related
notes 1 to 18. These parent Company financial statements have been prepared
under the accounting policies set out therein. We have also audited the information
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Ladbrokes plc
for the year ended 31 December 2007.
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance
with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors
The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’
Remuneration Report and the parent Company financial statements in accordance
with applicable United Kingdom law and Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities.
Our responsibility is to audit the parent Company financial statements and the part
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited in accordance with relevant
legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland).
We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent Company financial statements
give a true and fair view and whether the parent Company financial statements and
the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you
whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent
with the parent Company financial statements. The information given in the Directors’
Report includes that specific information presented in the Financial Review that
is cross referred from the Business Review section of the Directors’ Report.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures
in the parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation
of the parent Company financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent Company financial statements
and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error.
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited.
Opinion
In our opinion:
the parent Company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state
of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2007;
the parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985; and
the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the parent
Company financial statements.

Ernst & Young LLP
Registered auditor
London
28 February 2008

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’
remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.
We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether
it is consistent with the audited parent Company financial statements. The other
information comprises only the Directors’ Report, the unaudited part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report, the Chairman’s Statement and the Financial Review.
We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the parent Company financial
statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.
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2007
£m

Revenue(1)
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Restated(1)
2006
£m

2005(1),(2)
£m

2004(1),(3)
£m

2003(1),(3)
£m

1,235.0
16.8

947.4
283.0

908.5
1,848.9

10,125.9
1,771.2

7,267.1
1,663.4

1,251.8

1,230.4

2,757.4

11,897.1

8,930.5

209.5
55.0
183.6
(7.0)
(21.1)

216.8
44.3
17.3
(1.6)
(14.6)

222.3
39.0
(0.5)
–
(17.6)

227.9
21.3
17.8
–
(14.1)

184.6
14.2
9.4
–
(6.7)

420.0

262.2

243.2

252.9

201.5

6.0

17.1

192.8

164.8

145.5

426.0

279.3

436.0

417.7

347.0

Net finance costs
Profit before taxation(4)
Income tax expense(4)
Profit for the year(4)
Minority interests
Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent(4)
Goodwill amortisation (under UK GAAP)
Non-trading items
Tax on non-trading items
Non-trading tax credit
Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent
Dividends

(69.2)
356.8
(56.2)
300.6
–
300.6
–
38.2
–
2.0
340.8
(84.6)

(22.0)
257.3
(47.7)
209.6
–
209.6
–
412.5
(4.9)
–
617.2
(4,208.4)

(22.1)
413.9
(62.1)
351.8
(0.2)
351.6
–
(19.9)
(0.9)
–
330.8
(156.8)

(41.0)
376.7
(57.1)
319.6
(0.1)
319.5
–
(0.6)
–
9.0
327.9
(144.4)

(74.6)
272.4
(59.9)
212.5
(0.2)
212.3
(72.2)
(29.0)
0.9
–
112.0
(141.1)

Non-current assets
Equity shareholders’ funds

873.7
(450.8)

738.5
(629.9)

642.8
2,592.7

4,356.8
2,373.6

4,309.2
2,443.7

Dividend per share

13.90p

13.20p

243.80p

9.60p

8.92p

Basic earnings per share(4)

48.0p

22.8p

22.0p

20.2p

13.4p

Basic earnings per share

54.4p

67.2p

20.7p

20.7p

7.1p

Profit before tax and finance costs(1)
Continuing operations:
European Retail
eGaming
Telephone Betting
Other
Central costs and income

Discontinued operations

(1)Revenue

and profit before tax and finance costs restated for discontinued operations.
before tax and finance costs restated for reallocation of shared costs.
(3)This information has been prepared under UK GAAP.
(4)Before non-trading items (before exceptional items and goodwill amortisation in periods prior to 2004).
(2)Profit

The categories of the main adjustments for this information to comply with IFRSs are as follows:
IAS 19 Employee Benefits:
IAS 19 requires separate recognition of the operating and financing costs of defined benefit pension schemes in the income statement and permits for the recognition
of the actuarial gains and losses in the statement of recognised income and expense.
IAS 12 Deferred Taxes:
IAS 12 requires entities to calculate deferred taxation based on temporary differences, which are defined as the difference between the carrying amount of liabilities
and their tax base.
IFRS 2 Share-Based Payments:
IFRS 2 requires the Group to recognise a charge reflecting the fair value of options granted to employees. The fair value is calculated by using a binomial valuation
model and is charged to profit over the relevant option vesting period, adjusted to reflect actual and expected level of vesting.
IFRS 3 Business Combinations:
IFRS 3 prohibits the amortisation of goodwill. The standard requires goodwill to be carried at cost less any impairment charges.
IAS 37 Provisions:
Under IAS 37, a provision should only be recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to transfer resources. Therefore under IFRSs, the Group will
no longer accrue unapproved dividends at period ends.
IAS 32 & IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
IAS 39 requires the measurement, at fair value, of a wide range of financial assets and liabilities and derivatives. For derivatives, any changes in fair value are accounted
for in income immediately unless the derivative is part of a designated hedging relationship. Under IAS 39, the Group’s £300 million convertible bond was required to
be split into debt and equity components, net of issue costs.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS/SHAREHOLDER REVIEW

The Board fully appreciates that our shareholders are the owners of Ladbrokes plc. Our primary goal is to increase shareholder value and we are committed to communicating
openly with our shareholders.
Investor relations approach
Our objective is to provide a complete and accurate picture of Ladbrokes, whilst acknowledging our responsibilities and continuing obligations under the regulatory regime.
We listen to shareholder views and respond to issues in a timely manner via external announcements and communication of Ladbrokes’ strategy.
We aim to maintain a co-operative and mutually respectful relationship with current and potential investors and equity analysts.
Share register information
Band analysis as at 31 December 2007
Number of
shareholders

Range

%

Number of
shares

%

1-1,000
1,001-2,000
2,001-4,000
4,001-20,000
20,001-40,000
40,001-99,999,999

47,498
3,999
1,972
1,276
166
562

85.62
7.21
3.56
2.30
0.30
1.01

10,516,844
5,612,215
5,544,136
10,073,641
4,880,054
594,799,898

1.67
0.89
0.88
1.59
0.77
94.20

Total

55,473

100.00

631,426,788

100.00

Number of
holdings

%

Number of
shares

%

Individuals
Bank or nominees
Investment trust
Insurance company
Other company
Pension trust
Other corporate body
Treasury shares

51,246
3,763
43
48
333
12
26
2

92.38
6.78
0.08
0.09
0.60
0.02
0.05
0.00

28,505,808
562,468,002
126,704
327,921
17,593,430
1,949,002
525,535
19,930,386

4.52
89.08
0.02
0.05
2.79
0.31
0.08
3.15

Total

55,473

100.00

631,426,788

100.00

Analysis of categories as at 31 December 2007

Source: Computershare Investor Services PLC

PERCENTAGE OF SHAREHOLDERS

PERCENTAGE OF SHARES

4.5

7.6

%
92.4

Individuals
Other

%

Individuals
Other

95.5
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INVESTOR RELATIONS/SHAREHOLDER REVIEW

The composition of our shareholder base changed slightly during 2007, reflecting
a higher concentration of shares held amongst our top 10 shareholders.
At the end of 2007, the top 20 shareholders accounted for 59.7 per cent of our total
shareholding compared to 48.6 per cent in 2006.

Price (p)

Share price movement
The share price graph below illustrates Ladbrokes plc’s share movement from
1 January 2007 to 27 February 2008. On 27 February 2008, the share price closed
at 326.5 pence.

Website links
http://investors.ladbrokesplc.com
The Investor Centre is designed to help investors and the financial community
access all the relevant information they need on Ladbrokes plc, including stock
exchange announcements, financial presentations and audiocasts.
http://investors.ladbrokesplc.com/reports
A copy of this Annual Report is available to download as a pdf or view via an
interactive html version. In addition, our archived Annual Reports are also available
within this section.

500

http://investors.ladbrokesplc.com/calculator
Calculate the change in value of your holding or look up the historic share price
on a particular date.

450

Dividend information
The interim dividend for 2007 of 4.85 pence per ordinary share was paid on
3 December 2007. The proposed final dividend for 2007 of 9.05 pence per ordinary
share was announced by the Board on 28 February 2008 and, subject to approval
at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 2 June 2008 to those shareholders
who are on the register at the close of business on 7 March 2008. Dividends are paid
to holders of ordinary shares on dates which are determined in accordance with
the guidelines of the UK Listing Authority. An interim dividend is normally declared
by the Board of Directors following the end of the first half year to which it relates.
The Board reiterates a target dividend cover of x2 for Ladbrokes plc.

400

350

300

If you currently receive your dividends by cheque and would prefer them to be paid
directly to your bank or building society account, please ask our registrars for
a bank mandate or apply for one online.

250
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb
07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 08 08

The table below details the amounts of interim, final and total dividends declared in
the last five years. Please note that 2006 and 2007 are not directly comparable
to previous years, due to the share consolidation in April 2006.

Relationship with shareholders
Large institutions hold 95.5 per cent of our shares, therefore, it is important for
senior management’s time to be apportioned accordingly. During 2007, our senior
management held over 50 one to one and group meetings with current and potential
shareholders. The meetings are a useful way for senior management to expand upon
Ladbrokes’ objectives, strategy, performance and outlook.
The Investor Relations function also provides assistance for private investors, who
are seeking information about Ladbrokes plc. During 2007, Ladbrokes’ Investor
Relations team was pleased to present to the UK Shareholders’ Association
in London.
Dissemination of information
Our Annual Report and Financial Statements are acknowledged as an important
tool for communicating with all our stakeholders. We have examined best practice
guidelines and feedback from investors and the content of this Annual Report
reflects our findings.
Over the past five years, we have complemented the Annual Report with an
interactive online report held on our corporate website, www.ladbrokesplc.com.
Over 5,000 people are now registered to receive an electronic communication linking
them to this service. Ladbrokes encourages the use of electronic communications
as it saves printing and postage costs, is a more convenient way of communicating
with shareholders and is more environmentally friendly.
To register to receive future communications electronically (including annual reports
and accounts, circulars and notices of meeting), you should log on to
www.computershare.com/investor/uk.
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2007
2006
2005
2004
2003

Interim
dividend
pence

Final
dividend
pence

Special
dividend
pence

Total
pence

4.85
4.6
3.8
3.6
3.4

9.05
8.6
6.6
6.0
5.52

–
–
233.4
–
–

13.9
13.2
243.8
9.6
8.92

Financial calendar
2007 profit and recommended 2007 final dividend
of 9.05 pence per share announced
Record date for the 2007 final dividend
Annual General Meeting
Payment date for the 2007 final dividend
Half year results and 2008 interim dividend to be announced
November trading update

28 February 2008
7 March 2008
16 May 2008
2 June 2008
7 August 2008
13 November 2008
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Contact details
We are happy to answer queries from current and potential shareholders. Similarly,
please let us know if you would like to receive past, present or future copies of our
Annual Report and Accounts. Please contact us by phone, email, fax, letter or via
the website.

Dividend reinvestment plan
Ladbrokes provides a dividend reinvestment plan, which enables shareholders to
apply all of their cash dividends to buy additional shares in the Company. To obtain
more information and a mandate to join the plan, you should contact our registrar
whose contact details are given on page 120.

Investor relations
Kate Elliott
Head of Investor Relations

American depositary receipts (ADRs)
An ADR is a receipt that is issued by a depositary bank representing ownership of the
Company’s underlying ordinary shares. ADRs are quoted in US Dollars and trade just
like any other US security.

Email: investor.relations@ladbrokes.co.uk
Telephone: +44 (0) 20 8515 5532
Fax: +44 (0) 20 8868 5273
www.ladbrokesplc.com
Ladbrokes plc, Investor Relations, Imperial House, Imperial Drive, Rayners Lane,
Harrow HA2 7JW.
Share price information
Ladbrokes’ share price appears on www.ladbrokesplc.com. In addition, it is
broadcast on the following pages:
BBC1 teletext (Analogue 227; Digital 220)
BBC2 teletext (Analogue 222; Digital 220)
ITV1 ceefax (Digital 867)
Sky News freeview 82
Channel 4 (Analogue 518)
Sky Channel 501
Bloomberg News Sky Channel 502
CNBC Sky News Channel 505
and it also appears in the financial columns of the national press.
Share dealing service
A share dealing service for Ladbrokes plc shares is available through The Share
Centre Ltd, a member of the London Stock Exchange, authorised and regulated by
the Financial Services Authority. For further details, please contact: The Share Centre
Ltd, PO Box 2000, Aylesbury, Bucks HP21 8ZB. Telephone: 01296 414141.

Ladbrokes has a sponsored level 1 ADR programme for which Deutsche Bank
Trust Company Americas acts as depositary. The ADRs are traded on the OverThe-Counter market in the US under the symbol LDBKY, where one ADR is equal
to one ordinary share.
When dividends are paid to shareholders, the depositary makes the equivalent
payment in US Dollars to ADR holders. For enquiries, brokers may contact the
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas Broker Service Desk on +44 20 7547
6500 or +1 212 250 9100. Registered ADR holders may contact the Ladbrokes
ADR shareholder services line on +1 866 249 2593. Further information, including
an ADR share price quote, is available at www.adr.dd.com
Unsolicited mail/telephone calls
Shareholders may receive unsolicited mail or telephone calls from organisations
which use the Company share register as a mailing list. If you wish to limit the receipt
of such mail, you should write to the Mailing Preference Service, DMA House,
70 Margaret Street, London W1W 8SS. Telephone 0845 703 4599 or register at
their website www.mpsonline.org.uk. For telephone calls, you should contact the
Telephone Preference Service, at the same address. Telephone 0845 070 0707
or register at their website www.tpsonline.org.uk. You may, however, still continue
to receive mail from organisations which do not subscribe to this service.

UK tax on capital gains
A leaflet for UK capital gains tax purposes, which includes details of rights and
capitalisation issues which have occurred since 31 March 1982, is available from
the Company Secretary whose address is given on page 120.
Shareholder enquiries
All administrative enquiries relating to your shareholding such as queries concerning
dividend payments, notification of change of address or the loss of a share certificate,
should be made to our registrar whose contact details are given on page 120.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Registered number
England 566221
Secretary and registered office
Michael J Noble
Ladbrokes plc
Imperial House, Imperial Drive
Rayners Lane
Harrow
Middlesex HA2 7JW
Telephone: +44 (0) 20 8868 8899
Fax: +44 (0) 20 8868 8767
www.ladbrokesplc.com
Registrar
Computershare Investor Services PLC
PO Box 82
The Pavilions
Bridgwater Road
Bristol BS99 7NH
Telephone: 0870 702 0127
www-uk.computershare.com/investor
Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP
1 More London Place
London SE1 2AF
Corporate stockbrokers
Deutsche Bank AG, London
UBS Investment Bank
Solicitors
S J Berwin LLP
Slaughter and May
Principal UK bankers
Barclays Bank PLC
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc
Divisional offices
UK – Retail, Telephone Betting and eGaming
Imperial House, Imperial Drive
Rayners Lane
Harrow
Middlesex HA2 7JW
Telephone: +44 (0) 20 8868 8899
Fax: +44 (0) 20 8868 8767
Customer enquiries: 0870 556 1060
www.ladbrokes.com
www.ladbrokescasino.com
www.ladbrokesgames.com
www.ladbrokespoker.com
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Republic of Ireland – Retail betting
First Floor, Otter House, Naas Road
Dublin 22
Republic of Ireland
Telephone: (00) 353 1403 6500
Fax: (00) 353 1403 6501
Belgium – Retail betting
Chausée de/Steenweg op Waterloo 715
1180 Brussels
Belgium
Telephone: (00) 322 349 1611
Fax: (00) 322 349 1615
Italy – Retail betting
Ladbrokes Italia
Piazza Grandi 19
20129 Milano
Italia
Telephone: (00) 39 02 70162 111
Fax: (00) 39 02 70162 120
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GLOSSARY

AWPs or Amusement with Prizes
Electronic slot machines into which customers insert coins to play games of chance.
Betting-in-Play
Betting-in-Play allows bettors the opportunity to bet on outcomes during
a live event.
Cost per Acquisition
Total of all online and offline marketing spend (including promotions and bonuses
netted from revenue), all affiliate expenses relating to deals where affiliates are paid
a one-off fee for each sign-up and all bonus costs (except those relating to sign-ups
from revenue share affiliates) divided by the aggregate of the number of real money
sign-ups from non-affiliate sources and the number of real money sign-ups through
affiliates that are paid a one-off fee.

Player Points
Customers can accumulate player points by playing raked hands on
Ladbrokespoker.com. Accumulating enough player points allows a customer
to enter tournaments for free and also entitles them to cashback bonuses.
Rake
Scaled commission fee charged by Ladbrokes for each hand of Poker,
i.e. a percentage taken from the pot after each betting round.
Real Money Sign-up
A new player who has registered and deposited funds into an account with the
Company. Customers are categorised between lines of business according to where
they first register on the gaming site to address the issues posed by shared wallets.

Electronic Point of Sale (EPOS)
Device which enables an efficient recording of the sale of goods or services to
the customer.

SIS (Satellite Information Services)
Ladbrokes owns 23.4 per cent of SIS, a leading supplier of television programming
and sports data to licensed betting offices in the UK, Ireland, Isle of Man and
Channel Islands.

FOBTs or Fixed Odds Betting Terminals
Computerised machines which allow players to bet on the outcome of various
games and events with fixed odds, including roulette.

Total Betting Service
Allows the customer to use the same account online, over the phone, on digital TV,
using WAP, or in any of our Ladbrokes shops nationwide.

Gambling Commission
Set up under the Gambling Act 2005, the Gambling Commission regulates casinos,
bingo, gaming machines and lotteries. It is also responsible for the regulation
of betting and remote gambling, as well as helping to protect children and
vulnerable people.

Unique Active Player
A player who has contributed to rake and/or placed a wager in the period.

Gaming Machines
Betting shops can operate machines with B2 content (including old FOBT
content) and B3 content (e.g. £500 payout jackpot games), as defined by the
2005 Gambling Act.

Virtual Call Centre
Allows Ladbrokes to operate two separate telephone call centres as one.
Calls overflow between the two sites to the next available agent, thus providing
a more efficient service to our customers.

Gross Win
Total customer stakes less customer winnings plus commission i.e. the amount
of money left behind by the customer.
Monthly Active Player Days
The sum of, for all Unique Active Players in the period, the number of days they have
played during the period.
Net Revenue
Gross win less fair value adjustments (e.g. free bets and promotional bonuses),
VAT and associate income.

Ladbrokes became the first UK bookmaker to advertise
sportsbetting on TV in October 2007. We are encouraged
by the positive response, particularly as we begin to refresh
the brand to appeal to existing, as well as to new, customer
groups. We expect to launch further campaigns, particularly
in support of our online casino business.
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HannoArt Gloss is manufactured with 100% ECF pulp that is fully recyclable. The paper is produced at a mill that is accredited with EMAS, ISO14001, ISO9001
and holds FSC chain of custody certification.

Ladbrokes R&A 07 Covers:Ladbrokes R&A 07 Covers

19/3/08

12:23

Page 1

LADBROKES PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2007

Ladbrokes plc
Imperial House
Imperial Drive
Rayners Lane
Harrow
Middlesex HA2 7JW
Telephone: +44 (0)20 8868 8899
www.ladbrokesplc.com

ANNUAL REPORT
AND ACCOUNTS 2007

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

SIR IAN ROBINSON
CONTINUING RECORD PROFITABILITY
CHRISTOPHER BELL
BUILDING STRONG FOUNDATIONS
THE EUROPEAN SHOP WINDOW
EUROPEAN RETAIL
STAYING AHEAD OF THE PACK
10 THINGS TO KNOW ABOUT
REMOTE BETTING AND GAMING

Ladbrokes R&A 07 Covers:Ladbrokes R&A 07 Covers

19/3/08

12:23

Page 2

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS SNAPSHOT: LADBROKES TV ADVERTISING CAMPAIGN, OCTOBER 2007

GLOSSARY

AWPs or Amusement with Prizes
Electronic slot machines into which customers insert coins to play games of chance.
Betting-in-Play
Betting-in-Play allows bettors the opportunity to bet on outcomes during
a live event.
Cost per Acquisition
Total of all online and offline marketing spend (including promotions and bonuses
netted from revenue), all affiliate expenses relating to deals where affiliates are paid
a one-off fee for each sign-up and all bonus costs (except those relating to sign-ups
from revenue share affiliates) divided by the aggregate of the number of real money
sign-ups from non-affiliate sources and the number of real money sign-ups through
affiliates that are paid a one-off fee.

Player Points
Customers can accumulate player points by playing raked hands on
Ladbrokespoker.com. Accumulating enough player points allows a customer
to enter tournaments for free and also entitles them to cashback bonuses.
Rake
Scaled commission fee charged by Ladbrokes for each hand of Poker,
i.e. a percentage taken from the pot after each betting round.
Real Money Sign-up
A new player who has registered and deposited funds into an account with the
Company. Customers are categorised between lines of business according to where
they first register on the gaming site to address the issues posed by shared wallets.

Electronic Point of Sale (EPOS)
Device which enables an efficient recording of the sale of goods or services to
the customer.

SIS (Satellite Information Services)
Ladbrokes owns 23.4 per cent of SIS, a leading supplier of television programming
and sports data to licensed betting offices in the UK, Ireland, Isle of Man and
Channel Islands.

FOBTs or Fixed Odds Betting Terminals
Computerised machines which allow players to bet on the outcome of various
games and events with fixed odds, including roulette.

Total Betting Service
Allows the customer to use the same account online, over the phone, on digital TV,
using WAP, or in any of our Ladbrokes shops nationwide.

Gambling Commission
Set up under the Gambling Act 2005, the Gambling Commission regulates casinos,
bingo, gaming machines and lotteries. It is also responsible for the regulation
of betting and remote gambling, as well as helping to protect children and
vulnerable people.

Unique Active Player
A player who has contributed to rake and/or placed a wager in the period.

Gaming Machines
Betting shops can operate machines with B2 content (including old FOBT
content) and B3 content (e.g. £500 payout jackpot games), as defined by the
2005 Gambling Act.

Virtual Call Centre
Allows Ladbrokes to operate two separate telephone call centres as one.
Calls overflow between the two sites to the next available agent, thus providing
a more efficient service to our customers.

Gross Win
Total customer stakes less customer winnings plus commission i.e. the amount
of money left behind by the customer.
Monthly Active Player Days
The sum of, for all Unique Active Players in the period, the number of days they have
played during the period.
Net Revenue
Gross win less fair value adjustments (e.g. free bets and promotional bonuses),
VAT and associate income.

Ladbrokes became the first UK bookmaker to advertise
sportsbetting on TV in October 2007. We are encouraged
by the positive response, particularly as we begin to refresh
the brand to appeal to existing, as well as to new, customer
groups. We expect to launch further campaigns, particularly
in support of our online casino business.

Designed and produced by Merchant in collaboration with Ammunition. Type origination by cont3xt ltd. Printed by The Midas Press. Images from Actionimages.
HannoArt Gloss is manufactured with 100% ECF pulp that is fully recyclable. The paper is produced at a mill that is accredited with EMAS, ISO14001, ISO9001
and holds FSC chain of custody certification.

Ladbrokes R&A 07 Covers:Ladbrokes R&A 07 Covers

19/3/08

12:23

Page 1

LADBROKES PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2007

Ladbrokes plc
Imperial House
Imperial Drive
Rayners Lane
Harrow
Middlesex HA2 7JW
Telephone: +44 (0)20 8868 8899
www.ladbrokesplc.com

ANNUAL REPORT
AND ACCOUNTS 2007

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

SIR IAN ROBINSON
CONTINUING RECORD PROFITABILITY
CHRISTOPHER BELL
BUILDING STRONG FOUNDATIONS
THE EUROPEAN SHOP WINDOW
EUROPEAN RETAIL
STAYING AHEAD OF THE PACK
10 THINGS TO KNOW ABOUT
REMOTE BETTING AND GAMING

